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ANGCE=E
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DEFINITIONS
B

“Board”

252

“China Oceanwide Group”

[z E]

“Bye-laws”
[~ a4 81

“China Oceanwide
Holdings Group”
[FR B2 a5 % & E

“Company”

AN

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Group”
[REE ]

“HKS”
B
“Hong Kong”
[&E]

“Listing Rules”
[ Er R Al

“Model Code”

527 Al

“Oceanwide Holdings”
[Z 8]

“PRC”
[ B

the board of Directors

-

China Oceanwide Group Limited, a company incorporated with limited liability under the laws of
Hong Kong and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings

hREBERAR —KRBREBEFBEVZMAINBERLF] RZEERNEEEE
L= NC]

the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company
RATHEBERRNMA RN F A

China Oceanwide Holdings Group Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and the controlling shareholder of Oceanwide Holdings

FEZEZEREEERAT  —KPRFREGMAZZBRRAAE - B2 EEROERK
®

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 715), a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RRERERAG(ROARIE :715)  —KRBRETMEK AR QA - H &5 7 B
REFERE™

the director(s) of the Company

AREES

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZN/NSI DN EN =N

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BREEEY

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EEB TR R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt SZ P A8 25 £ R Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LRI ESEI0FEMN EMBETAZESHTIFIHNIZESFH

Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd.* (Stock Code: 000046), a joint stock company established in the
PRC with limited liability whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the
indirect controlling Shareholder

R B R A A (R SE : 000046) « —RIFEIKZ2RHBRAR - HiR
MRANBHR S LT AEAEERERE

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report, shall exclude Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
REARKNE RAFENS  TREDS - FERPKATRERA S
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“RMB”
TARE]

“SFO”

[ 5 KEE GO
“Share(s)”

[ 17 ]

“Stock Exchange”

[ Bt 22 P

“U.s.”
=1

“Us$”
(%5t

“%U
[%)]

*

DEFINITIONS (CONTINUED)
B= (&)

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR®E - hBEZEAEER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BHLBEGRO (BB EHESTE)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
RRRRAFEBREEEE0I1I0TH LB

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBERZMARRAA

United States of America
EFEER

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the U.S.
X ERZEEER

per cent.
At

for identification purpose only {2 {# 3 5/

Unless otherwise specified, conversions of US$ into HKS in this annual & 2 B F8RE N - M AR FE R A FE T H ST
report are based on the exchange rate of US$1.00 = HK$7.751 for 1R21.00E T H B 7751 T E K E - &
illustration purpose only. No representation is made that any amounts in 45 BF 2 A o Bt E R R FE A E T el B B
US$ or HK$ can be or could have been converted at the relevant dates I8 A] LA 2% & °] LA FA 5 8 B HA 3% bt & =& of i%

at the above rate or any other rates at all.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERW|E

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (“China Oceanwide Holdings” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), currently the sole
overseas listed platform of Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd.* (“Oceanwide
Holdings”, whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 000046)), uses tremendous effort to establish three
business segments consisting of real estate development, finance and
energy. By leveraging its advantages of the Hong Kong listed platform, its
capital and talents, and by coordinating with Oceanwide Holdings’
overseas expansion strategy, the Company expects to effectively achieve
synergy of its domestic and overseas businesses through globalisation of
its management and mode of capital operation, and strive to become a
leading conglomerate to increase profits and returns to its shareholders.

In 2015, the Company adopted Oceanwide Holdings’ overseas
development strategy and, through a series of acquisitions, further
established the real estate development and energy segments in addition
to the property investment segment. Meanwhile, the Company also
developed its finance investment segment. For the real estate
development segment, the Company acquired various real estate
projects located in Los Angeles, Hawaii and New York of the United
States (“U.S.”); for the energy segment, the Company completed the
acquisition of the Medan power plant project in Indonesia. Within a year,
the Group rapidly expanded its business scope, fully demonstrated the
determination and execution of the Group’s management. In future,
China Oceanwide Holdings will not only continue to build up its various
business segments through merger and acquisition activities but also
commit to the development of its existing businesses so as to enhance
returns for its shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (A

Financial Results

With the benefit of the effective cash management, the Group achieved
remarkable growth in results for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“the
year’) as compared to that of last year, with consolidated profits
attributable to the shareholders of the Company of HK$122.5 million (20142
HK$85.8 million) and earnings per share of HK1.21 cents (2014 HK0.96
cent), representing an increase of 43% and 26%, respectively, when
compared to that of last year.

Revenue for the year amounted to HK$189.2 million (2014" % HK$171.0
million) and earnings before interest expense and tax (“EBIT”) for the year
was HK$152.9 million (2014% HK$117.4 million), representing a growth
of 11% and 30%, respectively, when compared to that of last year.
Excluding the gain on initial recognition of available-for-sale financial
assets and other net gains totaling HK$76.9 million (2014: net realised
foreign exchange losses of HK$4.2 million), the recurring EBIT for the
year was HK$75.9 milion (2014 HK$121.6 milion). The decrease in
recurring EBIT was mainly attributable to the increase in professional
advisory fee for the acquisition of projects, as well as the increase in the
preliminary operating expenses of the real estate development project in
Los Angeles, the U.S. and the Medan power plant project in Indonesia.

Dividend

In order to reserve sufficient capital for future development and operation
of the Group, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year (2014: Nil).

Notes:

1. During the year, the management of the Company has increased investments in
listed debt and equity securities which has become one of the principal activities
of the Group. Therefore, the Group changed its presentation on the interest
income which was previously separately presented in the consolidated income
statement. Interest income is included as revenue in the consolidated income
statement. The revenue amount of the Group for 2014 was adjusted accordingly.

2. During the year, the Company through its subsidiaries acquired the Medan
power plant project in Indonesia and the real estate project in Los Angeles, the U.S.
from companies under the common control of its ultimate holding company,
Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd* (“Tohigh”). Given that the ultimate holding company of
the acquirers and the acquirees has been Tohigh since 6 November 2014, the
aforesaid acquisitions are regarded as business combinations under common
control. Therefore, the Company has made retrospective adjustments to the
opening balance and the corresponding figures of last year to include the
acquirees’ financial results.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFREHE (F)

Business Overview

Property Investment

The Property Investment segment continues to contribute stable rental
income and profits from the two offices and commercial properties
located in Shanghai. As at 31 December 2015, the average occupancy
rate for these two properties was close to 100%.

Real Estate Development

The management of the Company is aware of the recovery of the
economy of the U.S.. The Group has acquired three real estate
development projects in the prime location of the U.S. during the year
which is in line with the Group’s overseas development strategy:

In August 2015, the Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties to acquire certain parcels of
land in the core area of Lower Manhattan district, covering an area of
approximately 1,367 square meters (“sgm”), with a plan to develop a
mixed-use commercial and residential tower (the “New York Real Estate
Project”). The New York Real Estate Project has obtained the certification
from the City Planning Commission of the City of New York and is
expected to be completed by the end of March 2016.

In October 2015, the Group successfully acquired the real estate project
in Los Angeles, the U.S. from a subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings. The
project covers a total land area of approximately 18,662 sgm and is
expected to be developed into a large-scale mixed use urban commercial
complex with an estimated gross floor area of approximately 138,249
sgm, including three upscale condominiums, a luxury five-star hotel, a
shopping mall with gross floor area of approximately 15,476 sgm and the
largest LED signage panel on the western coast of the U.S.. The
construction work of the project has commenced in the second half of
2014 and is currently at the foundation construction stage. The
construction is scheduled to complete in 2018.

In December 2015, the Group successfully acquired certain parcels of
land in Ko Olina Resort & Marina, Oahu Island of Hawaii, the U.S., which
is one of the scarce lands for the use of hotel development on the Oahu
Island. The land enjoys rich natural resources and beautiful coastal line.
With land area of approximately 70,000 sgm, the Group plans to develop
up to two luxury brand residential condominiums and hotels.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (A

Energy

In light of the supply shortage in the energy market of Indonesia, the
lagging of the current effective electric supply in Indonesia to meet its
development demand, coupled with the support of a series of paolicies to
attract foreign investments by the Indonesian government and the “One
Belt, One Road” development strategy from the government of the
People’s Republic of China, the management of the Company believes
that there is a potential strong growth in the Indonesian energy sector. In
2015, the Group acquired two coal fuel steam power plants (with a net
capacity of 150 megawatt each) in the Medan industrial zone of Indonesia
(the “Medan Project”). The project company (the “Project Company”) of
the Medan Project has entered into a power purchase agreement (the
“Power Purchase Agreement”) with the local state owned power grid
company, PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero) (“PLN”). The Medan
Project follows three major principles: United States dollar pricing, take or
pay, and coal-and-electricity linkage®. These principles not only avoid any
foreign exchange risks of the Medan Project, but also ensure PLN to buy
all the electricity produced at an agreed price and bear the risk of coal
price volatility that can ensure the long-term profitability of the Medan
Project. The Medan Project is currently at the stage of land clearing and
ground leveling. The Medan Project is expected to commence operations
in the beginning of 2018, and is expected to bring additional stable
revenue to the Group.

Notes: (Continued)

3. United States dollar pricing, i.e. the electric power to be generated by the Project
Company will be priced in United States dollar, which can greatly alleviate the
currency exchange risk of the Medan Project; meanwhile, Indonesia is a country
in which foreign currencies can be traded freely, which can ensure the free inflow
and outflow of the fund of the Medan Project. Take or pay, i.e. the Power
Purchase Agreement specifies that the Project Company generates power
volume as agreed and PLN promises to purchase all the electric power
generated at the agreed price, which can ensure the stability of the Project
Company’s sales income from the Medan Project. Coal-and-electricity linkage, i.e.
PLN bears the risk of coal price volatility by paying the fuel costs of coal supplied.
Accordingly, the Project Company will be able to generate stable yield. If the
power plants are designed rationally and managed properly, additional profits
can be expected.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFREHE (F)

Finance, Investment and Others

In order to manage its current fund effectively and to grasp the
appreciation opportunity in the capital market, the Group lent out
HK$700.0 million in June 2015 and earned interest income of
approximately HK$20.7 million. The loan was fully repaid in December
2015. The Group has also invested in the listed securities, including
China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (Stock Code: 1886) and GF
Securities Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1776) etc. During the year, the Group
recorded net realised gains on disposal of listed equity securities of
HK$12.7 million. As at 31 December 2015, the fair market values of the
Group’s listed equity and debt securities investments were approximately
HK$967.9 million (31 December 2014: Nil) and HK$677.9 million (31
December 2014: HK$678.5 million) respectively.

Outlook

With the efforts of the Group’s management and execution teams, China
Oceanwide Holdings achieved considerable progress in 2015, with
remarkable growth in profits and the assets size, which serves as a solid
foundation for its future development.

Looking forward, the Property Investment segment is expected to
continue contributing stable rental income and profit to the Group by
maintaining satisfactory occupancy rates on the two properties in
Shanghai.

The Real Estate Development segment will strive for developing the
acquired projects and ensure the projects to be completed on schedule
and for sale under stringent cost and risk control so as to lead the Group
to a period of earnings.

The Energy segment will work towards the construction of the projects
and strictly control its quality, safety and cost to complete the project by
the target operation date in a safe and efficient manner, in order to
broaden the source of stable income of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (A

Moreover, the Group will continue to identify investment and business
development opportunities prudently and thoroughly, to better utilise its
capital to expand the scope of business, to explore potential projects and
to acquire good quality assets. With the support and experience of the
Company’s controlling shareholder, the Group’s management will
accelerate the pace to transform China Oceanwide Holdings into a
conglomerate with businesses in real estate, finance, energy and
strategic investment and to strengthen its assets size and profitability of
the Group so as to enhance its long-term return of the shareholders of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express its gratitude to all our staff

for their hard work and dedication and to thank all our shareholders,
business partners and customers for their continuous support.

* for identification purpose only

HAN Xiaosheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

Review of Operations

In line with the strategic positioning of the Group as a multinational
conglomerate, during the year, the Group acquired certain real estate
development projects in a number of cities in the U.S. and a power plant
project in Indonesia. The Group currently engages in property investment
in the PRC, real estate development in the U.S. and the development in
the energy sector in Indonesia. The Group will strive to grow its
businesses and expand its revenue streams continuously. Apart from
active acquisitions and investments, the Group also implements prudent
financial principles to achieve a stable liquidity position and gearing ratio
in order to continuously create maximum value to its shareholders.

Property Investment

The revenue for the two office and commercial properties in Shanghai
under the Property Investment segment increased by 2% from HK$94.4
million in 2014 to HK$96.7 million in 2015. Recurring earnings before
interest expense and tax (“EBIT”) was HK$69.5 million (2014": HK$71.6
million). The decrease in EBIT was due to the increase in the lease
commission incurred for searching new tenants for the vacant office
units. As at 31 December 2015, the average occupancy rate for the two
properties was close to 100%.

Notes:

1. During the year, the management of the Company has increased investments in
listed debt and equity securities which has become one of the principal activities
of the Group. Therefore, the Group changed its presentation on the interest
income which was previously separately presented in the consolidated income
statement. Interest income is included as revenue in the consolidated income
statement. The revenue amount of the Group for 2014 was adjusted accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEN®E D (&)

Real Estate Development

In October 2015, the Group successfully acquired a real estate project
located in Los Angeles from its holding company China Oceanwide
Group Limited (“China Oceanwide Group”), which signifies the Group
officially engaging in real estate development business. Since this
acquisition involves the acquisition of companies under common control,
the assets and liabilities acquired were combined to the Company’s
financial statements using the method of business combinations under
common control. The profit or loss has been consolidated since 6
November 2014, the date when the Company has been ultimately
controlled by Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd* (“Tohigh”, the ultimate holding
company of the Company). The consolidated income statement of the
Company for 2015 includes that of the Los Angeles real estate project
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, and the comparable figures
for last year have been adjusted accordingly. In August 2015, the Group
acquired certain parcels of land in New York, the U.S., from independent
third parties at a consideration of US$390.0 million. The transaction is
expected to be completed by the end of March 2016. In December
2015, the Group completed its acquisition of certain parcels of land
located in Ko Olina Resort and Marina, Oahu Island of Hawaii, the U.S.
from independent third parties at a consideration of approximately
US$191.9 million. In February 2016, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement to acquire certain parcels of land located in Kapolei area,
Hawaii, the U.S. from an independent third party at a consideration of
US$98.0 million. This transaction has not yet been completed as at the
date of this announcement.

Loss before interest expense and tax (“LBIT”) of the Real Estate
Development segment increased from HK$0.8 million® in 2014 to
HK$14.6 million in 2015. The increase in LBIT was due to the increase of
preliminary operating expenses of the Los Angeles project.

Notes: (Continued)

2 During the year, the Company through its subsidiaries acquired the Medan
power plant project in Indonesia and the real estate project in Los Angeles, the U.S.
from companies under the common control of its ultimate holding company,
Tohigh. Given that the ultimate holding company of the acquirers and the
acquirees has been Tohigh since 6 November 2014, the aforesaid acquisitions
are regarded as business combinations under common control. Therefore, the
Company has made retrospective adjustments to the opening balance and the
corresponding figures of last year to include the acquirees’ financial results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Energy

In December 2015, the Group completed its acquisition of a power plant
project located in Medan, Indonesia from its fellow subsidiary, China
Oceanwide International Investment Company Ltd., and has diversified its
business into the energy segment. Since the acquisition involves the
acquisition of companies under common control, the assets and liabilities
acquired were combined into the Company’s financial statements using
the method of business combination under common control. The profit
or loss has been consolidated since 6 November 2014, the date when
the Company has been ultimately controlled by Tohigh. The consolidated
income statement of the Company for 2015 includes that of the
Indonesian Medan project between 1 January 2015 and 31 December of
2015 and the comparable figures for last year have been adjusted
accordingly. LBIT for the year was HK$21.6 milion (2014% HK$2.4
million), which was mainly preliminary operating expenses for the Medan
project in Indonesia.

Finance, Investment and Others

The Group has grasped the appreciation opportunities in the capital
market during the year and managed its fund effectively by using portion
of its surplus cash to enhance its returns. During the year, the Finance,
Investment and Others segment invested in various listed securities,
including China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (Stock Code: 1886) and GF
Securities Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1776) etc. Revenues from Finance,
Investment and Others segment increased by 21% from HK$76.6 million'
in 2014 to HK$92.5 million in 2015. EBIT increased by 144% from
HK$49.1 million' in 2014 to HK$119.6 million in 2015. Excluding the gain
on initial recognition of available-for-sale financial assets and other net
gains of HK$76.9 million (2014: net realised foreign exchange losses of
HK$4.2 million), EBIT decreased by 20% from HK$53.3 million' in 2014
to HK$42.6 million in 2015. The decrease in recurring EBIT was mainly
due to the increase in professional advisory fee for the projects acquired
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Future Development Strategy

The Group has been actively identifying good quality investment
opportunities in relation to real estate, finance and energy sectors outside
the PRC and continuously expanding its business and enhancing its
market position outside PRC so as to bring stable returns and value
growth for its shareholders and to strengthen its overall competitive
advantages. Each of the investment decisions is made for the benefit of
the shareholders of the Company in the long run by considering the
market conditions in different locations and the risk and retumn on each
project.

Financial Overview

Treasury Management

The primary treasury and funding policies of the Group focus on liquidity
management and maintaining an optimum level of liquidity, while funding
subsidiary operations in a cost-efficient manner. Management closely
monitors the liquidity position of the Group to ensure the assets, liabilities
and liquidity structure of the Group can meet its funding requirements.
The Group’s finance department will source funding by borrowings, issue
of debts and new shares when necessary. Operating as a centralised
service, the finance department manages the Group’s funding needs and
monitors financial risks, such as those relating to interest and foreign
exchange rates, as well as counterparty.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not enter into
any interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives transactions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Interest rate exposure

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities, except
for cash and bank deposits, loans receivable, listed debt securities
included under available-for-sale financial assets as well as bank and
other loans. The interest rates for the loan receivable and listed debt
securities are fixed.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group’s revenue and operating costs are denominated in HK$, US$
and RMB. The Group is exposed to other currency movements, primarily
in terms of overseas operations, bank deposits, available-for-sale financial
assets and bank and other loans denominated in US$.

Market price risk

The Group’s main market price risk exposures relate to the available-for-
sale financial assets, which mainly comprises listed debt and equity
securities. The Group’s management closely monitors price movements
and market conditions that may have an impact on the value of these
financial assets in order to manage the risk.

Credit exposure

Surplus funds of the Group are to be managed in a prudent manner,
usually in the form of bank deposits with financial institutions with good
credit ratings. The senior management of the Group regularly reviews
price movements of financial institutions and its counterparties, credit
ratings and set limits for the total credit amount of each of its counterparty
in order to manage default credit risks .

The Group’s listed debt securities included under available-for-sale
financial assets were mainly listed in Singapore with credit rating of A3/A-
as rated by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s as at 31 December 2015.
As at 31 December 2015, the loans receivable of the Group was mainly
receivables for the loans to the non-controlling shareholders of the jointly
developed power plant.

Liquidity and Working Capital

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total cash, liquid funds and listed
investments amounted to HK$2,725.2 million (20142 HK$3,678.2
million), 48.4% of which were denominated in the USS, 44.6% in HKS$, 6.8%
in RMB and the remainder in various other currencies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank and other loans of
HK$1,558.0 million (2014% HK$138.0 million), of which HK$1,317.7
million (2014% HK$138.0 million) was floating rate loan and repayable
within one year, HK$240.3 million (20142 nil) was fixed rate loan and
repayable in two to five years. Bank and other loans were denominated in
US$. The gearing ratio (being calculated as total debts divided by net
assets) was 24% (20142 2%).

The Group will seek to secure additional financing for the payment of the
balance of the consideration of certain projects and for their continual
development and construction. The Group’s management expects that
adequate new financing will be available from long-term bank loans to
finance the committed construction costs and for the operations of the
Group. Based on the financial strength of the Group, management
expects that all necessary borrowings of the Group can be renewed, or
otherwise be replaced by existing available or new borrowings as and
when necessary. In the event that any or all of the above borrowings
cannot be realised, with the financial support from the Company’s
controlling shareholder, the Group will be able to obtain additional
working capital through alternative fund raising exercises such as equity
financing and/or obtaining loans from the Company’s intermediate
holding companies and/or other parties.

Cash Flows

During the year ended 31 December 2015, net cash used in operating
activities and investing activities amounted to HK$1,490.9 million (20142
net cash generated from operating activities was HK$195.1 million) and
HK$1,486.8 million (2014 net cash generated from investing activities
was HK$449.8 million), respectively. Cash from financing activities during
the year mainly included proceeds from bank and other loans and
issuance of shares.

Charges and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledged HK$26.4 million bank
deposit with PLN in Indonesia as the beneficiary for the power purchase
agreement of the Indonesian Medan power plant project (2014% HK$26.3
million).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Group pledged the freehold land,
fixed assets, investment properties and properties under development of
its project for a US$325.0 million loan (2014: Nil).
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During the year, a subsidiary of the Group acted as guarantor and
provided guarantee on the US$400.0 million 9.625% senior notes issued
by Oceanwide Holdings International 2015 Co., Limited, a fellow
subsidiary. The guarantee was discharged in full in October 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, a subsidiary of the Group acted as guarantor
and provided guarantee on the US$320.0 million 11.75% senior notes
issued by Oceanwide Real Estate International Holding Company Limited,
a fellow subsidiary. The guarantee was discharged in full in October
2015.

Apart from the above, the Group had not created any other guarantee or
other contingent liabilities during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2015.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 89 staff members (20142
73). Total employee costs for the year ended 31 December 2015,
including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to HK$34.2 million (20142
HK$20.4 million).

The salary and benefit levels of the Group’s employees are competitive
and individual performance is rewarded through the salary and bonus
system of the Group. Remuneration packages are reviewed annually
during the year.

Past Performance and Forward Looking
Statements

The performance and the results of operations of the Group contained
within the annual report are historical in nature, and past performance is
no guarantee for the future results of the Group. Any forward-looking
statements and opinions contained within the annual report are based on
current plans, estimates and projections, and therefore involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from expectations
discussed in such forward-looking statements and opinions. The Group,
the Directors, employees and agents of the Group assume (a) no
obligation to correct or update the forward-looking statements or
opinions contained within the annual report; and (b) no liability in the
event that any of the forward-looking statements or opinions do not
materialise or turn out to be incorrect.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEEHE

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. HAN Xiaosheng, aged 58, has been an executive Director since
November 2014 and the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company since December 2014. Mr. Han is also a chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee
under the Board as well as a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. He is a senior accountant in the PRC and is currently a
director and chief executive officer of Oceanwide Holdings. He obtained
a Master’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China in July
1996.

Mr. LIU Bing, aged 58, has been an executive Director since November
2014. Mr. Liu is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
He is currently the vice chairman of the supervisory committee of
Oceanwide Holdings and Minsheng Holdings Co., Ltd.* (“Minsheng
Holdings”) (Stock Code: 000416), whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Liu obtained his Master’s degree in
business administration from Sacred Heart University in the US in August
1989.

Mr. LIU Hongwei, aged 49, has been an executive Director since
November 2014. Mr. Liu is also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. He is currently a supervisor of Oceanwide Holdings and a
director of Minsheng Holdings. Mr. Liu is also a non-executive director of
CuDECO Limited (Stock Code: CDU), whose shares are listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange. Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
engineering from Dalian Ocean University (formerly known as Dalian
Fisheries College) in July 1989 and a Master’s degree in management
from Massey University in New Zealand in April 2006.

Mr. LIU Guosheng, aged 47, has been an executive Director since
November 2014. Mr. Liu is also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. He is a senior accountant in the PRC. Mr. Liu is currently the
chief financial officer of Oceanwide Holdings. Mr. Liu obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in economics from Hangzhou Dianzi University (formerly
known as Hangzhou Institute of Electronic Industry) in July 1991 and a
Master’s degree in economics from Wuhan University in December 2008.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. QIN Dingguo, aged 64, has been a non-executive Director since
November 2014 and a deputy chairman of the Board since December
2014. Mr. Qin is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
He is currently a director of Oceanwide Holdings. The State Council of
the PRC granted a special governmental allowance to Mr. Qin in 2005 in
recognition of his outstanding contribution to the development of the
China electricity system. He is also the head propagation of science
expert in the national power generation engineering discipline in the
Chinese Science and Technology Association. Mr. Qin graduated from
the department of atmospheric sciences of Nanjing University in February
1980.

Mr. ZHENG Dong, aged 54, has been a non-executive Director since
November 2014 and a deputy chairman of the Board since December
2014. Mr. Zheng is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. He is
an electrical engineer in the PRC and is currently a director and the vice
president of Oceanwide Holdings. Mr. Zheng graduated from Northeast
Dianli University (formerly known as Northeast Dianli College) in April
1994.

Mr. ZHAO Yingwei, aged 44, has been a non-executive Director since
November 2014. Mr. Zhao is also a member of the audit committee
under the Board. He is a senior accountant in the PRC and is currently a
director of Oceanwide Holdings and the chairman of the supervisory
committee of Minsheng Holdings. Mr. Zhao obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in economics from Renmin University of China in January 1997 and a
Master’s degree in engineering from Beihang University in January 2013.

Mr. QI Zixin, aged 40, has been a non-executive Director since
November 2014. Mr. Qi is also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. He is an economist in the PRC. Mr. Qi is currently a director
and vice president of Oceanwide Holdings as well as the vice chairman of
the board of Minsheng Holdings. He is also the supervisor of Legend
Holdings Corporation (Stock Code: 3396), whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Qi obtained a Bachelor's degree in law and
economics from Peking University in July 1998 and a Master’s degree in
law from Peking University in June 2001.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Jipeng, aged 59, has been an independent non-executive
Director since November 2014. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of the nomination committee under the Board.
Mr. Liu is a senior economist and certified public accountant in the PRC.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 169), whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange, an independent director of AVIC Capital
Co., Ltd.* (Stock Code: 600705), whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and an independent director of Zhongjin Gold
Corp., Ltd.* (Stock Code: 600489), whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
economics from Capital University of Economics and Business (formerly
known as Beijing School of Economics) in July 1983 and a Master’s
degree in economics from Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences in July 1986.

Mr. CAl Hongping, aged 61, has been an independent non-executive
Director since November 2014. He is also chairman of the remuneration
committee under the Board. He was the executive chairman of corporate
finance, Asia Pacific in Deutsche Bank. Mr. Cai obtained an associate
degree in journalism from Fudan University in June 1988.

Mr. YAN Fashan, aged 64, has been an independent non-executive
Director since November 2014. Mr. Yan is also a member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee under the Board.
He is currently a professor in the school of economics in Fudan
University, an independent director of Zhongchang Marine Company
Limited” (Stock Code: 600242), whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and an independent director of Shanghai Dingli
Technology Development Group Co. Ltd.* (Stock Code: 600614), whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan obtained a
Master’'s degree in economics from Fudan University in 1981 and a
Doctor of Philosophy degree in political economics from Fudan University
in June 1998.
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Mr. LO Wa Kei, Roy, aged 44, has been an independent non-executive
Director since November 2014. He is also a member of the audit
committee under the Board. Mr. Lo is a certified public accountant in
Hong Kong, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lo is
currently independent non-executive director of several public companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, including, Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 1335), Sun Hing Vision
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 125), China Zhongwang Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1333) and Xinming China Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2699). He also serves as the managing director of Shinewing (HK)
CPA Limited and the founding executive vice-president and council
member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association. Mr. Lo obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from University of Hong Kong in November 1993 and a
Master’s degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2000.

Senior Management

Mr. WU Chen, aged 45, has been a deputy chief executive officer of the
Company since December 2014. Mr. Wu is an engineer in the PRC. He
is currently the vice president of Oceanwide Holdings. Mr. Wu obtained a
Master’s degree in business administration from Roosevelt University in
the US.

Mr. ZHANG Keming, aged 51, has been a deputy chief executive officer
of the Company since December 2014. Mr. Zhang is a professor-level
senior engineer in the PRC and is currently the vice president of China
Oceanwide Power Co., Limited. Mr. Zhang obtained a Master’s degree in
business administration from Tsinghua University.

Mr. SHI Yuehong, aged 51, has been the risk control director of the
Company since December 2014. Mr. Shi is a senior engineer and is
currently the supervisor of Oceanwide Holdings. Mr. Shi obtained a
degree in construction engineering from Tongji University.

Ms. WAN Wing Sze May, aged 39, has been the chief financial officer
of the Company since March 2015. Ms. Wan joined the Company in
January 2004. Ms. Wan holds a Bachelor of business administration
degree in accounting. Ms. Wan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has more than 15 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and business
control. Ms. Wan also has extensive experience in corporate
restructuring.
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The Board is pleased to present to the shareholders its report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are property investments in the PRC,
real estate development in the U.S. as well as the development in the
energy sector in Indonesia. Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the revenue and results by principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the Group during the financial
year are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 74 of this annual
report.

No final dividend is recommended by the Board for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 24 May 2016 (the “AGM”),
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 20
May 2016 to Tuesday, 24 May 2016, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch share
registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shop 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 19 May 2016.
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Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
is set out in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 6 to 11 and pages 12 to 18 of this annual report
respectively. Description of the risks and uncertainties faced by the
Company are disclosed in this annual report.

Major Projects and Events

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and events
that have taken place during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 12 to 18 of
this annual report.

Reserves

Particulars on the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity from pages 80 to
81 of this annual report respectively.

Distributable Reserves

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2015

calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda amounted to
HK$325,147,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment
Properties and Properties under Development
Details of the movements of property, plant and equipment, investment

properties and properties under development during the year are set out
in Notes 14, 15 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.

Properties

Particulars of major properties of the Group are set out from pages 168
to 170 of this annual report.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Han Xiaosheng
Liu Bing

Liu Hongwei
Liu Guosheng

Non-executive Directors

Qin Dingguo
Zheng Dong
Zhao Yingwei
Qi Zixin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Liu Jipeng

Cai Hongping
Yan Fashan

Lo Wa Kei, Roy

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws, Messrs. Liu Jipeng, Cai
Hongping, Yan Fashan and Lo Wai Kei, Roy will retire by rotation at the
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out from pages 19 to 22 of this annual report.
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Update on Director’s Information Under Rule
13.51B (1) of the Listing Rules

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations from the
Directors, the changes in the information of the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to
the date of the Company’s 2015 interim report are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

B E MR Bl 5513.51B(1) %
Eﬁi%ﬁﬂ 3

KEARAERBBEARSTEETHERE  RA
NRI2016F R HIRE BEIZ  BIZE LR
BIEA135IBIEBEFUARBEZ2EEER 2
M

E=pE BHFE
Liu Jipeng (1) Resigned as independent non-executive director of Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties
242 15 Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 3699), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with effect
from 29 January 2016
MR2016F1 A20R B EARNEEEFEMERND AR QA (R AR : 3699) (KA 17
REESZFT E ) B IEITES
(2) Resigned as independent director of CNNC HuaYuan Titanium Dioxide Co., Ltd. (Stock
Code: 002145), whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with effect from
8 September 2015
R2015F9 A8 ABER RERKB RN BR A A (B K% : 002145) (K Iz 3 7
RYNEBEHFRG EM)BILES
Yan Fashan Resigned as independent director of Oceanwide Holdings with effect from 17 August 2015
BORE MR2016F8A1TEBEZBERBUES
Lo Wa Kei, Roy Resigned as an independent non-executive director of North Mining Shares Company Limited
EEE (Stock Code: 433), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with effect from 24

November 2015

R2015F 11 B24B BT HIBERMDBER AR (BH R : 433) (KRB R AT £

m)BIIFHTES

Annual Confirmation of Independence of
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers that all of them to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the businesses of the Group, to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which any Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Directors’ Service Contract

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year and without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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EERNEFRB2ER

REE2016F12831HIEFEER T3 &
EEFEBTHRAR  EWNBRAR BERQFR
EMTER LS MR AEANERR
FEAKEZ T EZEBEEZNHEEZEBK K
AREBEBEFZ NI ER(RRAFKENE
RAEBBRIN P HBEER  MARELED
RAESI0QGEEL ZHEBEWT :

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the following Directors had
interests in the following businesses (apart from the businesses of the
Company or its subsidiaries) conducted through the companies named
below, their subsidiaries, associated companies or other investment
forms which are considered to compete or be likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the principal businesses of the Group
conducted during the year required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2)
of the Listing Rules:

Nature of Competing

Name of Director Name of Company Nature of Interest Business
EEpE IR EEMtE BMEEBUE
Han Xiaosheng China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Director Real estate development and
SR A REZBZEREE B=F investment
B ERERRE
Oceanwide Holdings Executive Director/Chief Real estate development and
e R Y Executive Officer investment
WITEE BH FEiERZEERE
Liu Bing China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Director/Vice President/ Real estate development and
27k Bz Rk E Chief Risk Control Officer investment
B RBH BaRAR P #th E R 2 BRI B
EHE
Oceanwide Holdings Vice Chairman of Supervisory Real estate development and
o R IR Committee investment
EEQRER P b E 7 2% B R B
Liu Hongwei China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Vice President Real estate development and
242 R g ZERR S EIECE-4 investment
FEihEREERE
Oceanwide Holdings Supervisor Real estate development and
e R Y BEEE investment
EIERRERE
Liu Guosheng Oceanwide Holdings Chief Financial Officer Real estate development and
21 B8 7+ e 8 % B 7% 48 S investment
P 1th E R 2 BRI B
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Nature of Competing

Name of Director Name of Company Nature of Interest Business
E=pE R EEMtE BMEEBUE
Qin Dingguo China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Director/Vice President Real estate development and
2F REE SRR EE BEE Rl investment
B E R B E
Oceanwide Holdings Director Real estate development and
e B AR g% investment
P 1th E 7 3 BRI &
Zheng Dong China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Director Real estate development and
18 R EDZ AR S 5% investment
P 1th E R 2 BRI B
Oceanwide Holdings Director/Vice President Real estate development and
g IR Y -F ¥ investment
5 b E 7R 2% B AR B
Zhao Yingwei China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Director/Vice President/ Real estate development and
iz REZBIEREE Chief Financial Officer investment
B RN MR P b E 7 2% B R B
Oceanwide Holdings Director Real estate development and
e B R g% investment
P 1t E 7 3 BRI B
Qi Zixin China Oceanwide Holdings Group  Director Real estate development and
i FEZ B S - investment

Oceanwide Holdings

e B

Director/Vice President

EE AR

FiEREREKE

Real estate development and
investment

B EREEKE

HREEFEBYUNLAER EES
HARBREBLIN EAEEAFRAREE
BeRnih BELAEBTUREVEERK
BRE BEAKEZKE AR (BEHKRFEI
BRE)REAEBER(EHR/EARE)HHRE
RESTFEBE -

As the Board is independent of the boards of directors of the above
entities, the Company has therefore been capable of carrying on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length with the above entities.
Further, although the above entities are also engaged in real estate
development and investment, no competition is considered to exist
among members of the Group (which focus on offshore investments) and
the above entities (which focus on onshore investments).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had any interest in a business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Emoluments

The Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted on 19 May 2015, under which the
Directors may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the
Company’s shares, subject to the terms and conditions as stipulated
therein.

The following is @ summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
participants (the “Participants”) with an opportunity to obtain an
equity interest in the Company, thus linking their interest with the
interest of the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive
to work better for the interest of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, at their discretion, invite any Directors (whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not), any
employee (whether full-time or part-time) and any consultant or
adviser of or to the Company or the Group (whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis and whether paid or
unpaid), who, in the absolute opinion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Company or the Group, as the
Participants.
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Total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e.
19 May 2015), being 1,076,176,870 Shares.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme to each Participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of grant
unless approved by the shareholders in general meeting.

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be such price to be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion and notified to the Participant in the
offer and shall be at least the higher of:

(@ the closing price per Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date;

(b) the average closing price per Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five (5)
consecutive business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and

(c)  the nominal value per Share.

Term of the Share Option Scheme

No option may be granted under the Share Option Scheme on or
after the date of the tenth anniversary of the date on which the
Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional (the “Scheme
Period”), but in respect of all options which remain outstanding and
exercisable on the expiry of the Scheme Period, the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

REBEBRESSTHRETH

BEBRETSIEHZITHRO RS
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B (BN201565 A19H ) E #1717 <
10% - B11,076,176,870A% A% 17 °

BE2HEHENBESEE

BROEMBRERER RS LERRIE - TR
AR+ =8 A B AR &R EE
FRAERSEERINBRETE
BOBETRAEKSTETHORNDAHK
TREBREHBEHREBHTRNEE
B1% °

wEE

REEEAARESSEENBEEEZE
BEK TRENKAEND2EE B
TMERATRSH :

(@ BMXAREBHAMELETARE
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No option has been granted by the Company of the Share Option ZARNAFTBHEMABARETZE AL WER
Scheme since its date of adoption. Bz et 2 B BB RR#E -
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement which enables the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures in
the Company and its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors were
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Company’s own
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Securities
Code”) were as follows:

() Long positions in Shares

%%%E&QQEE%ZE

ARBHEEEAMNBRATARFERNLET L
AR BEESFAEBEARANE
MEMEABEE 2RO K EREMES

A

A n 7 K HAE B
gﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁ%

R2015FE12A31IH  EE M HERHA 2
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R EBE GBI EXVER) 2 Bk - HERD RE
HFH R WEREES B EEGEXV
B ETRED WA E AN A KB
mERABR(REREBEEFRBE KD ZZ
ERNESHERAAWEEREFTZEEZR
KE) HBEIARRBRIEES P E K
BIEI2E R EBEFEZ2ELMA - KB ER
RAAFGZEEETELFR HHIZESE A
([FBEHFADAME AR R KRR 2 #E
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

1542 7

Number of % #E 2 4

Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held BoL

EENE g 4% EEME iR & B (%)

Liu Jipeng Beneficial owner Personal Interest 9,900,000 0.09
242 15 EnlEE A &l A 1 2
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() Long positions in the shares of Oceanwide

Holdings

) RZeERKROZ2ER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of in Oceanwide

ordinary shares in Holdings

Oceanwide 2R

Holdings held REZBLY

Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests sz SR Batt

EEnR g7} ERtE EERYE (%)

Han Xiaosheng Beneficial owner Personal Interest 2,880,000 0.06%
BRI A BERERA & A &

Liu Hongwei Beneficial owner Personal Interest 30,000 0.0007%
Bt BEREAA (PN

Zheng Dong Beneficial owner Personal Interest 2,160,000 0.04%
LIS ERERA (BN 3

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors

Br X PTIR FE &SN B2015F12 431 H -

ARBEEREFRTHRABREEREZ
EMEERENRARARREEMABBER
(EERBHFMBE RO BEXVELR) Z B D
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HI'E 15 ) 55 352 R A 10 a% 15 19 P #8 2 & AT it
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and the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Securities Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial FERERHMW A T RK B
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares RiHBROZEZRAE

and Underlying Shares

TESATA R20159412H318 T4 A
TRARBIRMDKIEER DT EERESR
HEREEGROIEXVEE2REID 2 IEX
HARARAIRE 2 EEmIAR - KB A
RRARIBZESHSRAEKGIEIB6EKEE 2
Ereft sk A E A5 X Ae A AR R

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2015, the
following persons had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or, which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange: ZHRERIKAE
Long positions in the Shares RN ZHE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the Company
Number of HAEQXTREZ
Name Capacity Shares held BHBED
wnEEB 514 R4 EE (%)
Lu Zhigiang Interest of controlled corporations 6,575,715,847 61.10
& & 58 YA E 2R (Note 5)
(Bt 5E5)
Huang Qiongzi Interest of controlled corporations 6,575,715,847 61.10
FEZ TP A T 2R (Note 5)
(Bt 5E5)
Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 6,575,715,847 61.10
BEERERAA SZEH AR Z (Note 4)
(B aE4)
Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 6,575,715,847 61.10
wBEEFRAR ZAEHIA R 2 = (Note 3)
(B 5E3)
China Oceanwide Holdings Group Interest of controlled corporations 6,575,715,847 61.10
FEDZ BEREE ZAEHIA R 2 (Note 2)
(B sE2)
Oceanwide Holdings Interest of controlled corporations 6,575,715,847 61.10
B EER ZAEHIA R 2 = (Note 1)
(MH5E1)
China Oceanwide Group Interest of controlled corporations 6,575,715,847 61.10
hZEE ZAEGIA R 2 s (Note 1)
(Bt&E1)
PEERERAT 20158% O3
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Approximate

percentage of

shareholding

in the Company

Number of HAQATREZ

Name Capacity Shares held BB
HE LB g4 FERGEE (%)
Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 6,419,461,847 59.65
o YR IR B PR A BR A A ExEEA (Note 1)
(M)
CTI Capital Management Limited Security interest in shares 6,468,612,099 60.11
FEEEEBEELRERA BH 2 REER (Note 6)
(Kt 3E6)
CITIC Group Corporation Interest of controlled corporations 6,468,612,099 60.11
FEFEEEBRAR ARG A R 2
CITIC Limited Interest of controlled corporations 6,468,612,099 60.11
FEFERNDERAF ZAEGIA R 2 s
CITIC Trust Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporations 6,468,612,099 60.11
FEELEAEREMERA ARG A R 2
Kwok Sau Po Beneficial owner 820,036,000 7.62
20 & Al BESHEAA
Notes: M
(1)  Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd, Oceanwide Holdings (1) REEREBERAR - ZEHZER
International Finance Limited and Oceanwide Real Estate International BEemBERABARZEELEERER
Company Limited are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Oceanwide ARAAFZEEBERARAZEZENE
Group, which in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings. pEl MEZEBAAZEER S
By virtue of the SFO, China Oceanwide Group and Oceanwide Holdings EWBRAR - BREFHRBAEEH -
are deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 6,575,715,847 Shares, FREERZBEREB ARG &
including: () 6,419,461,847 Shares held by Oceanwide Holdings 6,575,715,847 i i DR EEEZ B
International Co., Ltd; (i) 103,228,000 Shares held by Oceanwide B ZEEREBRERRAAFEZ
Holdings International Finance Limited; and (i) 53,026,000 Shares held by 6,419,461,847 % I% 17 : (i) 2 /& 5 %
Oceanwide Real Estate International Company Limited. Oceanwide B & mA R A A A 2108,228,000
Holdings International Co., Ltd has charged its equity interest in AR AR 10 ¢ R (i) 2 B ERBEER AR AR
6,419,461,847 Shares to secure a loan facility from The Ka Wah Bank FF B 253,026,0008% f& 17 ° iz /8 & &
(Nominees) Limited which in turn is the registered owner of such BB R A A E &R E6,419,461,847
6,419,461,847 Shares. & B% 19 2 A% #& LA B 45 The Ka Wah Bank

(Nominees) Limited #% {H 2 B X @ & +
The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited fI] £
6,419,461,847 R I 2 BERRFHFH A °

(2)  China Oceanwide Holdings Group directly and indirectly holds 76.54% @ HFEREZEEBREBEELRAERARZ
interest in the issued share capital of Oceanwide Holdings. By virtue of IR B BITIRA 276.54% % &= ° 1R
the SFO, China Oceanwide Holdings Group is deemed to be interested in BEFRBEGHL  pEZEERER
all the Shares in which Oceanwide Holdings is interested. ?BZ E!;%g}/z BEREEER ZFTAR

A o
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(8)  Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* holds 97.43% interest in the issued share
capital of China Oceanwide Holdings Group. By virtue of the SFO,
Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
in which China Oceanwide Holdings Group is interested.

(4)  Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* holds the entire issued share capital of
Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the SFO, Tohigh Holdings Co.,
Ltd.* is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Oceanwide
Group Co., Ltd.* is interested.

(6)  Mr. Lu Zhigiang and Ms. Huang Qiongzi (spouse of Mr. Lu Zhigiang)
together holds more than one-third of the voting power at general
meetings of Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lu
Zhigiang and Ms. Huang Qiongzi are deemed to be interested in all the
Shares in which Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* is interested.

(6)  CTI Capital Management Limited is wholly owned by CITIC Trust Co., Ltd.
CITIC Trust Co., Ltd. is 80% indirectly owned by CITIC Limited which is
indirectly owned as to 58.13% by CITIC Group Corporation. CTl Capital
Management Limited is interested in 6,468,612,099 Shares. By virtue of
the SFO, CITIC Group Corporation, CITIC Limited and CITIC Trust Co.,
Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which
CTI Capital Management Limited is interested.

Material Related Party Transactions

Material related party transactions entered by the Group during the year
are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements. In relation to those
related party transactions that also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Group as defined in the Listing
Rules, the Company has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the year.

@ RESEERARFEPEZEER
SEEBTRA Z297.43% % 5= o 1B IE
FHERAEGKS  ZEEEERD AE
BAERFEZEE Hﬁ%@%ﬁﬁéﬁnz
BRGNP HEEES

4 RBEEBRERARAFKAEZEEBAR
AR Z 2AEHITRA - RIEF 5 M
%ﬂxﬁ‘l BIBERAERARBERANZ
BEBERQAEARE A RN
PR

) J’Eiéﬁf’ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁxﬁi(rﬁiéﬁ%i
ZHE{%):./\%%E@/E% BERA
REARE LBB= Z AR o *E%
BEESRMEGRD  ETHLERRE
*Ki?&%ﬁﬁﬁ/\@ﬁﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ A %
EHmzMBERD P HEAES -

6 FEEEEEEANFRAAMH
RAERETRREZEEHR - H1
rﬁﬁi{i/&imﬂhlqﬂrﬂx@
FS % % 5 80% + 1M A B {5 7
ABEFBEREEERERAR
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Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions entered by the
Group during the year are required to be disclosed in this annual report:

Connected Transactions

In 2015, the Company has strictly complied with the requirements
specified under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
following connected transactions entered by the Group and has obtained
the approvals from the independent Shareholders. Details of such
transactions are as follows:

Acquisition of Real Estate Project Located in Los Angeles,
the U.S.

On 20 August 2015, China Oceanwide Real Estate Development |
Limited (as purchaser), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and China Oceanwide Group (as seller) entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Oceanwide Real Estate International Investment
Company Limited (“Oceanwide Real Estate International Investment”) and
the inter-company loan in the amount of approximately US$24,573,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$190.5 million) provided by China
Oceanwide Group to Oceanwide Plaza LLC (“Oceanwide Plaza”) at a
total consideration of US$215,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,667.2 million). The project site is located at a prime location in Los
Angeles, the U.S. (the “US Los Angeles Real Estate Project”). The
acquisition was completed in October 2015 and the final consideration
paid after completion adjustment was HK$1,670.8 million.

The acquisition represents a good opportunity for the Group to build up
its principal business of real estate development outside of the PRC by
leveraging on the relevant experience of the management team of the
Company.
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Acquisition of Coal Power Plant Project in Medan, Indonesia

On 20 August 2015, China Oceanwide Power Investment | Limited (as
purchaser), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
China Oceanwide International Investment Company Limited (“China
Oceanwide International Investment”) (as seller), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Oceanwide Holdings Group, entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement to acquire the entire issued
share capital of China Oceanwide Power Co., Limited (“China Oceanwide
Power”, formerly known as China Oceanwide Green Energy International
Investment Co., Limited) and the inter-company loan in the amount of
approximately US$685,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5.3 million)
provided by China Oceanwide International Investment to China
Oceanwide Power at a total consideration of US$37,090,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$287.5 million) (the “Indonesian Medan Power Plant
Project”). The acquisition was completed in December 2015.

The acquisition represents an excellent opportunity for the Group to
diversify its business lines into the energy industry and is in line with the
Group’s intention to develop the Group into a conglomerate.

Consulting Services Agreement

On 30 December 2015, China Oceanwide International Investment
entered into a consulting services agreement (the “Consulting Services
Agreement”) with China Oceanwide Power pursuant to which China
Oceanwide International Investment shall provide consultancy services
for the two coal fuel steam power plant facilities with net capacity of 150
megawatt (“MW”) each developed by PT. Mabar Elektrindo (“PT Mabar”)
in the Medan Industrial Area, North Sumatra, Indonesia (the “Project”) to
China Oceanwide Power and PT Mabar and assist China Oceanwide
Power and PT Mabar in the financing and insurance arrangement in
respect of the Project.

Subject to China Oceanwide International Investment successfully
assisting China Oceanwide Power or PT Mabar in securing a loan facility
of not less than US$400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,100.4 million) from the relevant banks or financial institutes during
the course of providing the above consultancy services, China
Oceanwide Power agreed to pay a service fee of not more than
US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7.8 million) (exclusive of
tax) (the “Service Fee”) to China Oceanwide International Investment.

The Service Fee has been agreed on arm-length basis by the negotiation
between China Oceanwide Power and China Oceanwide International
Investment with reference to China Oceanwide International Investment’s
cost for provision of the consultancy services and the market price of
consultancy services of similar nature offered by unrelated third parties.

W REDEAR BV E X ERIRE

R2015F8H20H  FIZENIREE —HR
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PT Mabar agreed that it shall be responsible for all the cost and fees
(including but not limited to the Service Fee) payable by China Oceanwide
Power under the Consulting Services Agreement.

The entering into the Consulting Services Agreement facilitates the
financing process of the business of China Oceanwide Power and PT
Mabar. Meanwhile, it is beneficial for the Company to enter into the
Consulting Services Agreement with China Oceanwide International
Investment to fully utilize the human and business resources of its
controlling Shareholder to assist the development of PT Mabar.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Upon completion of the Group’s acquisition of the US Los Angeles Real
Estate Project and the Indonesian Medan Power Plant Project in October
2015 and December 2015 respectively, Oceanwide Real Estate
International Investment and China Oceanwide Power have become the
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. As such, the
following transactions with affiliates of China Oceanwide Holdings Group
(other than members of the Group) have become continuing connected
transactions of the Company. The Company has strictly complied with
the requirements specified under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of these transactions. Details of such transactions are as follows:

Consulting and Technical Support Services Agreement

On 20 August 2015, Oceanwide Real Estate Group (USA) Corp.
(“Oceanwide US”), Oceanwide Plaza LLC and Oceanwide Holdings
entered into a consulting and technical support services agreement (the
“Consulting and Technical Support Services Agreement”) pursuant to
which Oceanwide Holdings shall provide consulting and technical support
service to Oceanwide US in relation to the US based projects held
through Oceanwide Plaza for a term of three years, effective from 1
January 2015 and ending on 31 December 2017.

The provision of consulting and technical support services by Oceanwide
Holdings to Oceanwide US and Oceanwide Plaza under the Consulting
and Technical Support Services Agreement shall continue to be
conducted on an arm’s length basis between the parties and on normal
commercial terms with reference to: (i) the cost of the provision of
services and assistance; (i) a mark-up on such cost; and (i) applicable
taxes.
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The maximum aggregate amount payable by Oceanwide US under the
Consulting and Technical Support Services Agreement is not expected to
exceed HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$1,282,050) for
each of the three financial years ending 31 December 2017, and if the
actual amount payable in respect of the services will exceed or has
exceeded HK$10,000,000 in any financial year, the excess amount
above HK$10,000,000 shall not be payable unless and until the
Company has complied with the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules.

During the year, the fee paid by Oceanwide US in respect of the support
services provided by Oceanwide Holdings under the Consulting and
Technical Support Services Agreement was approximately US$159,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,234,000).

Apartment and Office Lease Agreements

On 18 January 2015, PT. China Oceanwide Indonesia (“PT CQOI”) and PT
Mabar entered into an apartment lease agreement pursuant to which PT
Mabar agreed to lease certain apartments located in JIn. Senopati Raya
No.44, Jakarta Selatan from 1 February 2015 to 31 December 2017.

On 18 May 2015, PT COI and PT Mabar entered into an office lease
agreement pursuant to which PT Mabar agreed to lease certain office
space located in JI.KH.Mas Mansyur Kav. 126, Jakarta 12920-Indonesia
from 1 June 2015 to 31 December 2017.

On 18 June 2015, PT COI and PT Mabar entered into an apartment lease
agreement pursuant to which PT Mabar agreed to lease certain
apartments located in JIn. Senopati Raya No. 44, Jakarta Selatan from 1
July 2015 to 31 December 2017.

The rents of the above leases were determined between PT COIl and PT
Mabar after arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial terms
taking into account the location of the relevant properties, the term of the
lease agreements and prevailing market rates and conditions.

The maximum aggregate amount of rent payable by PT Mabar under the
aforesaid apartment and office lease agreements determined based on
the annual rent of US$924,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7.2
million) payable under the aforesaid Apartment and office lease
agreements is for each of the three financial years ending 31 December
2017.
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During the year, the rent paid by PT Mabar under the aforesaid apartment
and office lease agreements was US$662,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,132,000).

Capital Contribution to PT Mabar

On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power (as lender) and Shanghai
Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd* (“SEPC”) (as borrower) entered into
a loan agreement pursuant to which China Oceanwide Power agreed to
make available a loan in the principal amount of up to US$3,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27.1 million) at an interest rate
equivalent to the rate of expected average financing cost for the power
plant project developed by PT Mabar to SEPC. The purpose of this loan
was to provide SEPC with funds to make capital contribution into PT
Mabar in proportion to its 20% shareholding. The loan shall be repaid
when SEPC obtains the approval of the State Administration of Foreign
Exchange of the PRC (“SAFE”) for the transfer of its capital overseas. As
at 31 December 2015, SEPC has not yet repaid the loan, pending the
approval of SAFE. During the year ended 31 December 2015, interest
income of approximately US$245,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,896,000) was accrued by China Oceanwide Power. As at 31
December 2015, the principal and interest receivable of the loan was
approximately US$3,890,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$30,153,000).

Engineering, Procurement and Construction Contracts

On 283 December 2013, PT Mabar (as employer) and SEPC (as
contractor) entered into a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”)
pursuant to which PT Mabar engaged SEPC to provide all materials,
parts, equipment and construction equipment, transportation to sites
(including customs clearance) and other labour services and to perform
all works, activities and services on a fixed lump sum turnkey basis for
the design, engineering, procurement, construction, commissioning,
testing and completion of, and making good of defects in relation to the
two coal fuel steam power plant facilities with net capacity of 150 MW
each in Medan Industrial Area, North Sumatra, Indonesia, for a cash
consideration of US$426,430,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,305.3 million) which was determined through negotiations on an
arm’s length basis with reference to market rates for such work and
services and existing conditions. Pursuant to the Master Agreement, the
project construction period is 28 months from the construction starting
date.
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To facilitate the provision of the engineering, procurement and
construction services by SEPC under the Master Agreement, on 25
December 2013, PT Mabar and SEPC entered into an engineering,
procurement and construction contract which specified the procedures,
plans, specification and conditions for the provision of the engineering,
procurement and construction services by SEPC. Pursuant to the
contract, the cash consideration for the engineering, procurement and
construction services is US$370,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,874.1 million) which constitutes part of the total cash consideration
of US$426,430,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,305.3 million)
under the Master Agreement.

To further define and elaborate on the scope of the work and services
provided by SEPC under the Master Agreement, on 23 November 2014,
PT Mabar and SEPC entered into a term sheet (the “Term Sheet”), which
forms the basis on which PT Mabar and SEPC shall negotiate in good
faith to agree on a definitive engineering, procurement and construction
contract. Pursuant to the Term Sheet, the total contract price of the
definitive engineering, procurement and construction contract shall be
US$426,430,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,305.3 million) which
is the same as the total cash consideration under the Master Agreement.
The total contract price under the Term Sheet would be valid for one year
from the date of the term sheet.

On 29 June 2015, PT Mabar and PT. Shanghai Electric Power
Construction (“PT.SEPC”) (together wtih SEPC, collectively the “SEPC
Group”) entered into a supplemental agreement to the limited pre-notice-
to-proceed agreement dated 3 December 2014 and its two supplemental
agreements dated 21 January 2015 and 11 June 2015 respectively
pursuant to which PT Mabar engaged PT.SEPC to perform certain
preparatory works in Indonesia to expedite the plant construction
process and under which PT Mabar shall make an advance payment of
US$40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$310.0 million) to PT
SEPC which constitutes part of the total consideration of
US$426,430,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,305.3 million) under
the master agreement.

On 23 November 2015, PT Mabar entered into two supplemental
agreements with the SEPC Group (as defined above) pursuant to which
the scope of work to be conducted by SEPC also include ground
investigation, design and construction and the total consideration under
the Master Agreement was adjusted to US$431,930,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,347.9 million).
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The terms of the aforesaid agreements were negotiated and arrived at on
an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the China Oceanwide Power with reference to market rates.

During the year, the amount paid by PT Mabar under the aforesaid
agreements was US$95,520,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$740,379,000).

Loan Transaction

On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power (as lender) entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with PT. Garda Sayap Garuda (“PT.
GSG”) (as borrower), making available a loan (the “Loan”) in the principal
amount of the lower of: (a) US$22,442,400 (equivalent to approximately
HK$174.0 million); or (b) the amount equivalent to the face value of 20%
of the total registered capital of PT Mabar, at an interest rate equivalent
to the project financing interest rate of the power plant developed by PT
Mabar in the Medan Industrial area, North Sumatra, Indonesia (the
“Project”).

On 30 December 2015, China Oceanwide Power and PT.GSG entered
into a supplemental loan agreement (the “Supplemental Loan
Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties agreed to revise, among
others, (a) the principal amount of the Loan to US$28,353,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$219.8 million); (b) the loan period to three years
commencing from the date of the Loan Agreement; and (c) the interest
rate equivalent to the project financing interest rate (including but not
limited to upfront fee, commitment fee, loan arrangement fee, bank
advisory, agency and management fee etc.) of the Project.

The principal amount of the Loan was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between China Oceanwide Power and PT.GSG, and was
determined with reference to the capital contribution need of PT.GSG in
proportion to its 20% shareholding in PT Mabar for the development of
the Project.

The interest rate charged by China Oceanwide Power on the Loan was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between China Oceanwide
Power and PT.GSG, and shall be equivalent to the financing interest rate
of the Project (including but not limited to upfront fee, commitment fee,
loan arrangement fee, bank advisory fee, agency and management fee
etc.) of the Project.

The expected annual cap amount of the Loan for each of the years from
2015 to 2017 shall be US$28,353,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$219.8 million), which was determined with reference to the principal
amount of the Loan under the Loan Agreement as supplemented by the
Supplemental Loan Agreement.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, interest income of
approximately US$526,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,074,000)
was accrued by China Oceanwide Power. As at 31 December 2015, the
principal and interest receivable of the Loan was US$8,365,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$64,840,000).

Annual Review of Continuing Connected
Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. onnormal commercial terms or better; and

3.  according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, were engaged to
report on the aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Placing of Shares under General Mandate

On 29 April 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the
“Placing Agreement”) with Haitong International Securities Company
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Placing Agent
conditionally agreed with the Company to endeavor to place up to
1,793,628,000 Shares (the “Placing Share(s)”) at the placing price (the
“Placing Price”) of HK$0.961 per Placing Share (the “Placing”). The
Placing Price of HK$0.961 per Placing Share represented a discount of
approximately 19.92% to the closing price of HK$1.2 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 29 April 2015.
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The Directors are of the view that the Placing would provide the Group
with a good opportunity to raise additional funds to strengthen its
financial position and broaden its shareholder and capital base so as to
facilitate its future development.

The Placing was completed on 11 May 2015. 45,460,000 Placing Shares
have been subscribed by the Placing Agent and 1,748,168,000 Placing
Shares have been placed by the Placing Agent to not less than six
placees (the “Placees”) at the Placing Price of HK$0.961 per Placing
Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement.
The aggregate nominal value of all the Placing Shares was
HK$179,362,800. The Placing Shares were issued under the general
mandate granted to the Directors by a resolution passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 13
May 2014.

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, the Placing Agent, the Placees and their
respective ultimate beneficial owners are not connected with or acting in
concert with the Directors, chief executive or substantial Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and are not
connected persons of the Company.

The net proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$1,714.9
million, representing a net Placing Price of HK$0.956 per Placing Share.
As at 31 December 2015, the net proceeds from the Placing had been
fully utilised for the Group’s acquisitions.

Events After the Reporting Period

Rights Issue

On 25 January 2016, the Company proposed to issue 5,380,884,353
rights shares (“Rights Share(s)”) at the subscription price of HK$0.85 per
Rights Share on the basis of one Rights Share for every two Shares (the
“Rights Issuge”).
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Each of Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd (“Oceanwide
International”), Oceanwide Holdings International Finance Limited and
Oceanwide Real Estate International Company Limited, the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Oceanwide Holdings, has performed their obligations
under their respective irrevocable undertaking to the Company to
subscribe for its provisional entitlement of the Rights Shares in full. The
Rights Issue was fully underwritten by Oceanwide International subject to
the terms and conditions of an underwriting agreement entered into
between the Company and Oceanwide International on 25 January 2016.

The Board believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and its
Shareholders to strengthen the capital base of the Company through the
Rights Issue as it provides the Shareholders with an opportunity to
maintain their respective pro rata shareholding interest in the Company
while supporting the Group’s development and diversification of its
business.

The Rights Issue was completed on 11 March 2016. The Group raised
gross proceeds of approximately HK$4,573.8 million. For further details
of the Rights Issue, please refer to the prospectus of the Company dated
18 February 2016 and the announcement of the Company dated 9
March 2016.

Acquisition of Property in Kapolei Area, Oahu
Island of Hawaii

On 5 February 2016, China Oceanwide Real Estate Development I
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as
purchaser (the “Purchaser”) and Aina Nui Corporation as seller (the “Seller”)
entered into a disposition agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to acquire and the Seller conditionally agreed to sell
the certain parcels of land situated in the Kapolei area, Oahu Island of
Hawaii, the U.S. with an area of approximately 514.430 acres at a
consideration of US$98,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$759.6
million). Up to the date of this annual report, this acquisition has not yet
been completed. For further details of the acquisition, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 5 February 2016.
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Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there had been no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

Borrowings

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out
in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the listed securities of the Company. In addition,
the Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during the
year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There were no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 167 of this annual report.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the Group is set out in
Note 12 to the financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of revenue (excluding interest income and dividend
income) for the year ended 31 December 2015 attributable to the major
customers of the Group were as follows:

TEREFNMHERS

EHE2015F12A831BILEE AEE
DREERAREE WA KB 17EF 8 W A F1 %
BWA)BEDHZERIT :

Percentage of
total revenue

of the Group

CES .

BRABED L

The largest customer 17.2%
RAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate 43.7%

BARP AR

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the major customers noted
above.

There was no purchase from suppliers by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Public Float

Based on information available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules during the year and
to the date of this annual report.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 49 to 68 of this annual report.
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Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors

The Board has adopted its own Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) regulating Directors’ dealings in
securities of the Company, on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code. In response to specific enquiries made, all
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Securities
Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor
of the Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board

Han Xiaosheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards of corporate
governance best suited to the needs and interests of the Group as it
believes that effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
safeguarding interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and
enhancing shareholders’ value. To this end, the Board and our
management make continuous effort to reinforce our standards of
corporate governance with emphasis on independence, effective internal
control, transparency and accountability to the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied during the year ended 31 December 2015
with all applicable code provisions (“Code Provision(s)”) and principles
under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the following deviations
which are explained below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Han Xiaosheng currently performs the two roles of the Company’s
chairman and chief executive. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of both chairman and chief executive in the same person has the benefit
of ensuring consistent leadership with the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will enable the
Company to make and implement decision promptly and efficiently. The
Board will regularly review the effectiveness of this structure to ensure
that such structure is appropriate in view of the Company’s prevailing
circumstances.

Code Provision A.4.2

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a causal
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment.

The existing Directors did not offer themselves for election at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 24 December 2014. They
retired at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 May
2015 in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and were re-elected
by shareholders of the Company thereat.
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Code Provision A.6.7

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should, inter alia, attend general
meetings.

Due to other business engagement, Mr. Zheng Dong, the non-executive
Director and Mr. Cai Hongping, the independent non-executive Director,
did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 19
May 2015 and the special general meeting of the Company held on 14
October 2015, and Messrs. Qin Dingguo and Zhao Yingwei, the non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Yan Fashan, the independent non-executive
Director, did not attend the special general meeting of the Company held
on 14 October 2015. The other non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors were present at the above general meetings to
enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views of
the shareholders.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors (the
“INED(s)").

At least one of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are well-versed in
respective areas such as accounting and finance, business management
and industry knowledge and the Board as a whole has achieved an
appropriate balance of skills and experience. The Directors’ biographical
details are set out from pages 19 to 22 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial or family
relationship among the Board members. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgment on all matters concerning the Company.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance and as an essential element in maintaining strategic
objectives and sustainable development of the Group. All appointment of
the Board members will be based on merits against objective criteria and
with due regards for benefits and balance of diversity on the Board. The
Board diversity will be considered in terms of, among other things,
gender, age, professional experience and qualifications and educational
and cultural background, and any other factors that the Nomination
Committee (as defined below) may consider relevant and applicable from
time to time towards complementing and extending the skills, know-how
and experience of the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is available on the website of the Company at
www.oceanwide.hk. The Nomination Committee will review and monitor
from time to time the implementation of the policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application.

Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s
strategies, providing leadership and guidance to put them into effect,
reviewing and monitoring the performance of the Group and are
accountable to the Company’s shareholders. To maximise the
effectiveness of the Group’s operations, the Board has delegated
management and administration of the Group’s daily operations to the
executive Directors and the management (the “Management”) while
reserving several important matters for its approval. To this end, the
Board has adopted written guidelines (the “Guidelines”) laying down the
division of functions between the Board and the Management.

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and the
Management are summarised as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining/approving the overall strategy and annual operating
budget of the Group;

2. reviewing all significant policy matters of the Group;
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3.  monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure that the
business operations of the Group are properly planned, authorised
and undertaken; and

4.  overseeing the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems on an ongoing basis, and reviewing the effectiveness of
such systems at least annually.

The duties of the Management mainly include the following aspects:

1. is vested with all general powers of management and control as are
vested in the Directors, save and except for those that may
specifically be reserved by the Board and/or the Board committees
for decision and implementation; or those that may only be
exercised by the Board pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Bye-laws
and/or the terms of reference of the Board Committees;

2. is authorised to perform all acts as may be performed by the
Directors, save and except for those that may only be performed
by the Board pursuant to the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-
laws, the Listing Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Buy-backs;

3. is empowered to implement policies/measures for business
activities, internal control, risk management and corporate
governance of the Group; and

4, is empowered to implement any other matters as assigned by the
Board from time to time.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The Board has assessed the independence of INEDs and considers all of
them to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmations on
independence as required under the Listing Rules, (i) the absence of
involvement in the daily management of the Company and (iii) the
absence of any relationships or circumstances which would interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgment. Throughout the year, the
number of INEDs on the Board meets the one-third requirement under
the Listing Rules.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years,
subject to renewal and re-election as and when required under the Listing
Rules and the Bye-laws. However, any Director who is appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company, or in the case of an additional
appointment, until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company, and shall be eligible for re-election at the relevant general
meeting. All the Directors are subject to retirement from office and shall
be eligible for re-election at the annual general meetings at least once
every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages containing the
duties and responsibilities of directors as required under the Listing Rules
and other applicable rules and regulations.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year with meeting
dates scheduled prior to the beginning of the year. Between scheduled
meetings, senior management of the Group provides to Directors, on a
regular basis, monthly updates and other information with respect to the
performance, and business activities and development of the Group.
Throughout the year, the Directors participated in the deliberation and
approval of routine and operational matters of the Company by way of
written resolutions with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented
by additional verbal and/or written information from the Company
Secretary or other executives as and when required. Details of material
transactions of subsidiaries are provided to the Directors as appropriate.
Whenever warranted, additional Board meetings are held. In addition, the
Directors have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors and they are at liberty to propose appropriate matters for
inclusion in Board agendas.
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors receive written
notice of the meeting generally about a month in advance and an agenda
with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to the
meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice as is
reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, a
Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for
consideration abstains from voting on the relevant resolution and such
Director is not counted for quorum determination purposes.

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the
scheduled Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2015:

EREFENENER SEFT—KRRY
—EAMESEEMNEEZBN YREH
B AR =ZRERXGAZENIAH
ERXMH-EREMEREA ARAHRTE
noERENMERATHNBATERRAE
ERHBEA-BRARAR R ETRA R
WBERN REEZEFTGUHZSEHE
MEH R5 R EMEMERZZT
BAEANGNES ARBRRBNRE
BE MZEENAAGHEEEIEEA
gA-

TXRI SREZFENREHZE2015412 318 IEF
EHETHE=SeeZMEL

No. of the scheduled
Board meetings

attended/held
Name of Director HE BT ES
EEMS EESEENARE
Executive Directors HITES
Han Xiaosheng A 6/6
Liu Bing 2 7k 6/6
Liu Hongwei 2t 6/6
Liu Guosheng 2IE A 5/6
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Qin Dingguo B 5/6
Zheng Dong 1520 3/6
Zhao Yingwei IR 5/6
Qi Zixin =EFE& 3/6
Independent non-executive Directors BIKEHITES
Liu Jipeng 2142 15 6/6
Cai Hongping T 5/6
Yan Fashan BUEE 6/6
Lo Wa Kei, Roy EEE 6/6
In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular meetings with KBREZE @& FFHEBTESRITE

the executive Directors and at least two meetings with the non-executive
Directors (including INEDs) annually without the presence of the executive
Directors. The non-executive Directors (including INEDs) freely provide
their independent opinion to the Board.
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Company Secretary

The Chairman has authorised the company secretary of the Company to
prepare agenda for each Board meeting and to ensure that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings and
receive adequate and accurate information in a timely manner.

Ms. Lam Wai Yee Sophie, the company secretary of the Company, is a
fellow member of The Institute of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom. She is a full time employee of the Company and
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and ensuring that the Board complies with the applicable rules and
regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2015, Ms. Lam has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

Directors’ Training and Continuing Professional
Development

The Company arranges and provides continuous professional
development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials to the
Directors from time to time to help ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in
which the Group conducts its businesses and to refresh their knowledge
and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.
In addition, attendance at external forums or briefing sessions (including
delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also counts toward CPD
training.

The Directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
CPD training undertaken by them from time to time.

The Directors have to disclose to the Company their interests as director
and other office in other public companies and organisations in a timely
manner and update the Company on any subsequent changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all the Directors have
participated in the CPD by attending internal CPD training/seminars/
programmes and/or reading materials relating to updates on corporate
governance and regulations.
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Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors

The Board has adopted its own Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) regulating Directors’ dealings in the
Company’s securities on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code. In response to specific enquiries made, all
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Securities
Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure that the Group’s pay
levels are competitive in attracting and retaining the Directors, senior
management and employees as well as motivating them in the continual
pursuit of the Group’s goal.

The remuneration package of the Directors and senior management is
performance-based and takes into account factors such as the Group’s
business performance and prevailing market practices. The key
components of the Group’s remuneration package include basic salary,
medical insurance, discretionary cash bonus and retirement benefit
scheme. No individual Director or senior management will be involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee under the Board will consult with chairman
of the Board in respect of their recommendations in determining the
remuneration of the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company. The details of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the
section headed “Board Committees” below.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff of the Group for their
potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging their respective duties.
The Company reviews the insurance coverage for the Directors and the
Group’s senior staff on an annual basis.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) (collectively the “Committees”) to oversee specific aspects
of the Group’s affairs. The Committees have been provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their respective duties. Each of the Committees
has adopted specific terms of reference covering its duties, powers and
functions which will be reviewed by the Board from time to time. The
terms of reference of the Committees have been posted on website of
the Company at www.oceanwide.hk. The company secretary of the
Company also acts as secretary of the Committees. The Committees
adopt as far as practicable, the procedures and arrangement of the
Board meeting in relation to the conduct of meetings, notice of meetings
and recording of minutes. Further particulars of each of the Committees
are set out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Jipeng, the INED with Mr.
Zhao Yingwei, the non-executive Director and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, the
INED as members. All of them possess the relevant business and
financial management experience and skills to understand financial
statements and contribute to the financial governance, internal controls
and risk management of the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the
relationship between the Company and its external auditor, review the
preliminary results, interim and final results, and annual and interim
financial statements of the Group, monitor the corporate governance of
the Group including compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of the activities
of internal audit of the Group, engage independent legal and other
advisers and conduct investigations as it determines to be necessary. All
members of the Audit Committee have unrestricted access to the
Group’s external auditors and management.

EEZEE

EFZeENY-—EEZES BIEER
ZEg((BE%ZEg]) FHEZE 2 ([ &
Zag ) kREZEe((REZET]) (&
BZEE]) UWHASEEBENETHR
ETER - ZESCERBERNERNE
TRERESECBE - SZESCDHKMEAR
MBESE BEERE #OKRBE: I
THAHEESHETRT ZESNBESR
E & FI& R A A 7 48 v www.oceanwide.hk ©
AARARMENETZEGWE -HEE
BRATERAT ZESHRBTEH &8
STl eEFLBE T EEERNEESTS
eZxERCEFELE S ZTESHNE —
FSHIBHIOT

BEREES
ERZBEeRBUNRTESI LB L
BEIFE KERFHUTESTBERELE
MBUFFATESTEERELE - FHEA
BHEENAERMEEELRMRENRT
BUBRREHUARBNPBER - WA
ERkRBRERFELER-

ERZBEENIEZEREREREANAH
SNERBENEER BRHAKENDNLSE
BPHRFEREEZEEARFE D HTBG
BR ERAKENGCEXER BREEATH
ETRAURENETER  BIIAKER
MEZNTFRE RREKRY EERR
FERZBBUNEELEMER MRE
THE - BRZES2REKEHATER
HEEARE NSRBI R EEE -

PTERERAT 201558 O/



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXERHE (B

The Audit Committee meets with the chief financial officer of the
Company and other senior management of the Group from time to time
for the purposes of reviewing the interim and final results, the interim
report and annual report, and other financial, internal control, corporate
governance and risk management matters of the Group. It considers and
discusses the reports and presentations of the management, the internal
and external auditors of the Group, with a view of ensuring that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
It also meets at least twice a year with the principal external auditor of the
Group, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), to consider the reports of PwC
on the scope, strategy, progress and outcome of its independent review
of the interim financial report and its annual audit of the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Audit Committee holds regular
private meetings with PwC, the chief financial officer and the internal
auditor separately without the presence of the management.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
maintaining an effective system of internal control and risk management.
It reviews the process by which the Group evaluates its control
environment and risk assessment process, and the way in which
business and control risks are managed. It receives and considers the
presentations of the management in relation to the reviews on the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in the
accounting and financial reporting function of the Group, as well as their
training programmes and budget. In addition, the Audit Committee
reviews with the internal auditor the work plans for its audits on the
Group together with its resource requirements and considers the internal
audit reports to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of internal
controls in the business operations of the Group. Further, it also receives
the reports from the company secretary of the Company on the
compliance status on regulatory requirements of the Group. These
reviews and reports are taken into consideration by the Audit Committee
when it makes its recommendation to the Board for approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee held
four meetings to (1) review the management and accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group; (2) discuss financial reporting
matters including the review of 2014 annual results and 2015 interim
results of the Group; (3) review the adequacy of resources, accounting
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions; (4) review
the corporate governance structure and practices within the Group; and (5)
review of the Group’s internal control procedures, risk management,
connected transactions and other related issues.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors. The Audit Committee also met the external auditors at least
twice without the presence of the executive Directors.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit
Committee at the Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015:

EEeRERZE S ZRAMINEZ AN K
BE I BIEIHRLBERE - BRZ
EE@TERYBERATEZTAESNER T A
SMNEERZ BRBD = A & E R

TRITEZEZESKERE E2015F12
ABlBLFEHEEZZESSZMNER

No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held

Name of Audit Committee member HE BTHEXRZES
ERZEEHERR BBRY
Liu Jipeng 24 s 4/4
Zhao Yingwei i 3/4
Lo Wai Kei Roy [E#FEXE 4/4

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members with expertise
in human resources and personnel emoluments. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Cai Hongping, an INED, with Mr. Han
Xiaosheng, chairman of the Board, and Mr. Yan Fashan, an INED, as
members. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to
determinate the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Remuneration matters are also considered
and approved by the Remuneration Committee by way of written
resolutions and additional meetings where warranted.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the
Board in achieving its objective of attracting, retaining and motivating
employees of the highest calibre and experience needed to shape and
execute strategy of the Group. It assists the Group in the administration
of a fair and transparent procedure for setting remuneration policies for all
Directors and senior executives of the Group. Whilst the Board retains its
power to determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the
responsibility for reviewing and determining the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the Group is
delegated to the Remuneration Committee.

yHEES

FHEZEEm =R EBANEREH NG
BITEHEROKEBEEAX - FHEZESHE
YHRATESERAFRERCETERF KB
REZQIFBBRELERBIIFNTE
EBREERLE -FHEZESQEAARAELE
FROT-R UNETEERAEBESRE

BAEBNHFMNTE MALE FMEET
BRFMEEGUEBMAZREIGER

X TFAE BRI -

FNEZEENI2RERHBEETSEN
HEZ  BIRa - RE BB &RAT EME
BEHOAT  BAKE T ERITRES o 5 BN
ZEEWHASERTAFMAEREN
B AN 2R8EFEAKESRTR
AEMFMER - GBEEECHBAEEN
HITESHFHMED EEHREELE
EEMATEERSREBABRTMTE
WBECETHFMEZES -

mzERERAT 201568 D9



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERKRE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to (1) review the remuneration policies of the Group;
and (2) review the proposed 2016 directors’ fees for the executive
Directors. The executive Directors do not participate in the determination
of their own remuneration.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee at the Remuneration Committee meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2015:

HE205F12A31IBIEFEE T E B
S RT IR D E (1) 6 A £ B A B K
R RQEMBB06FHNTEETNES
EZWE T ESTELEEBTELRY
9 35 B o

TRITHMEZE K ENE E2015F12
ABIALFELEFMEZESRZMNBER

No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held

Name of Remuneration Committee member HE /BTN THNESES
FHMZEERBER S BRRE
Cai Hongping £ F 0/1
Han Xiaosheng &% ks 4 1/1
Yan Fashan BAE 1/1
During the year, the annual remuneration of the Company’s senior FR ' ARASREEAENFE Z B
management is within the following bands: LU

Remuneration band
2

HK$

B

Number of senior management

EREEABAY

1,500,001-2,000,000
1,000,001-1,500,000
< 1,000,001

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Han Xiaosheng, chairman
of the Board with Mr. Liu Jipeng and Mr. Yan Fashan, the INEDs, as
members.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to (1) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (3) assess the
independence of INEDs; and (4) make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession planning
for the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the structure and composition of the Board
and assessed the independence of INEDs in accordance with the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Nomination
Committee at the Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended
31 December 2015:

REZEENIZERESNELEFRE
EEenRBE ABLKAK(BREKE M
BERR) YHREFMNRES ANQAHNLQF
REMMREESSFLHNEIREESR
QVEeERBGAREERIKARESTENEN
AL AUREBERBEBATHEESZTIH
HREEERHEZR: QFRBILIFEAT
EEMBLM ROREFZOAHAEHZ
EUREFHIHERNETSREER -

HE2015F12A31BILFE  ERLE 2
BT —REH AREBEEWARNEBER
ERNEESSMNEBRAN WF%BL
EMITEENBLIE -

TRINRREZZESHKEREE2015F12
A31BEFELEIREZESSHMNIBEN

No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held

Name of Nomination Committee member HE ETHREEZEES
BEEZEERENS SERY
Han Xiaosheng &%z 4 11
Liu Jipeng 21 42 15 11
Yan Fashan BAE 11

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published in a timely
manner, within three months and two months respectively of the year
end and the half-year period end.

The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the financial statements is
set out below. It should be read in conjunction with, but distinguished
from, the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 72 and 73 which
acknowledges the reporting responsibility of the auditor of the Group.
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Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
annual report and financial statements of the Company, ensuring that the
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance with
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has applied appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
adopted and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose the financial position of the Group
upon which financial statements of the Group could be prepared in
accordance with the accounting policies of the Group.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities within the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the view that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the
Group to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

External Auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor PwC’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process. It
receives each year a letter from the external auditor confirming its
independence and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives of
the external auditor to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees,
and the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be
provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and retention of the external auditor.
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The policy of the Group regarding the engagement of PwC for the various
services listed below is as follows:

Audit services — include audit services provided in connection with
the audit of the consolidated financial statements. All such services
are to be provided by external auditor.

Audit related services — include services that would normally be
provided by an external auditor but not generally included in audit
fees, for example, audits of the pension plans of the Group,
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions, internal
control reviews of systems and/or processes, and issuance of
special audit reports for tax or other purposes. The external auditor
is to be invited to undertake those services that it must, or is best
placed, to undertake in its capacity as auditor.

Taxation related services — include all tax compliance and tax
planning services, except for those services which are provided in
connection with the audit. The Group uses the services of the
external auditor where it is best suited. All other significant taxation
related work is undertaken by other parties as appropriate.

Other services — include, for example, financial due diligence,
review of actuarial reports and calculations, risk management
diagnostics and assessments, and non-financial systems
consultations. The external auditor is also permitted to assist
Management and the internal auditor with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These services are
subject to specific approval by the Audit Committee.

General consulting services — the external auditor is not eligible to
provide services involving general consulting work.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees paid by the Company
to PwC in respect of their audit and non-audit services were as follows:

REZE2015F12831HIEFEEAR » KA A
MK KEITNNZBERIEZBREE
BT :

Nature of services Amount
R MR oL
HK$'000

BT T

Audit and audit related services /4% & B 1% A B &0 IR 15 8,024
Non-audit services Bz T 300
Total e 8,324

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for maintaining effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group to safeguard
the shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets. The risk management
and internal control systems comprising an organisational structure that
facilitates segregation of duties and comprehensive operational, financial
and compliance controls. The management of the Company is
responsible for implementing and monitoring the risk management and
internal control systems whilst the Board is responsible for overseeing the
management in the implementation and monitoring of the systems.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the management
of the Company and subject to review and approval by both the
executive management team and the executive Directors. Reforecasts for
the current year are prepared on a quarterly basis, reviewed for variances
to the budget and for approval. When setting budgets and reforecasts,
the management identifies, evaluates and reports on the likelihood and
potential financial impact of significant business risks.

The executive Directors review monthly management reports on the
financial results and key operating statistics of the business. In addition,
the chief executive officer of the Company holds periodic meetings with
the executive management team and senior management of business
operations to review business performance, significant business risk
sensitivities and strategies. The Chief Financial Officer also holds monthly
meetings with finance managers of business operations to review
monthly performance against budget and forecast, and to address
accounting and finance related matters.
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The Company maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiaries’ operations and the finance department of the Company
oversees the investment and lending activities of the Group. Treasury
reports on cash and liquid investments of the Group and movements
thereof are distributed daily.

The chief financial officer of the Company has established guidelines and
procedures for the approval and control of expenditures. Operating
expenditures are subject to overall budget control and are controlled
within each business with approval levels set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each executive and officer. Capital expenditures are
subject to overall control within the annual budget review and approval
process, and more specific control and approval prior to commitment by
the chief financial officer of the Company or the executive Directors are
required for unbudgeted expenditures and material expenditures within
the approved budget.

The internal auditor, reporting directly to the Audit Committee, provides
independent assurance as to the existence and effectiveness of the risk
management activities and controls in the business operations of the
Group. Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account the
dynamics of the activities of the Group, internal audit derives its yearly
audit plan which is reviewed by the Audit Committee, and reassessed
during the year as needed to ensure that adequate resources are
deployed and the objectives of the plan are met. The internal auditor is
responsible for assessing the internal control system of the Group,
formulating an impartial opinion on the system, and reporting its findings
to the Audit Committee, the Chief Financial Officer and the senior
management concerned as well as following up on all reports to ensure
that all issues have been satisfactorily resolved. In addition, a regular
dialogue is maintained with the external auditor of the Group so that both
are aware of the significant factors which may affect their respective
scope of work.

Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure of individual
business units, the scope of work performed by the internal auditor
includes financial and operations reviews, recurring and surprise audits,
fraud investigations and productivity efficiency reviews.

Reports from the external auditor on internal controls and relevant
financial reporting matters are presented to the internal auditor and, as
appropriate, to the Chief Financial Officer. These reports are reviewed
and appropriate actions are taken.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 covering all material
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and is satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate.
In addition, it has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of the accounting
and financial reporting function of the Group, and their training
programmes and budget.

Employees’ Code of Conduct

The Group places utmost importance on employees’ ethical, personal
and professional standards. Every employee is required to undertake to
adhere to the code of conduct of the Group, and is expected to achieve
the highest standards set out in the code of conduct including avoiding
conflict of interest, discrimination or harassment and bribery and
corruption etc. Employees are required to report any non-compliance
with the code of conduct to the management.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Group actively promotes investor relations and communication with
the investment community throughout the year. Through its Chairman,
the Group responds to requests for information and queries from the
investment community. A policy on shareholders’ communication, which
is available on the website of the Company, was adopted and is subject
to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and compliance
with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the
Group to Shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. An up-to-date
consolidated version of the Bye-laws is published on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).
Moreover, additional information on the Group is also available to
shareholders and stakeholders through the “Investor Relations” page on
the website of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for shareholders to convening a
special general meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the issued share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights at general meetings of the
Company have statutory rights to call for special general meetings and
put forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders, by sending
the Company Secretary at the registered office address a written request
for such general meetings, duly signed by the shareholders concerned
together with the proposed agenda items.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or of at least one hundred shareholders in
number, may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company by sending to the Company Secretary at the
registered office address a written request for such proposals according
to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act. All substantive
resolutions at general meetings are decided on a poll which is conducted
by the Company Secretary and scrutinised by the Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar of the Company. The results of the poll are published on
the websites of the Company and HKEx. In addition, regular updated
financial, business and other information on the Group is made available
on the website of the Company for shareholders and stakeholders.
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During the year, the Company has held two general meetings. The
following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2015:

FR - ARARBITTRABRERE - TK7
REEZRNEZ2015F 12831 B IEFEHE
BRRSHIER :

No. of general meetings

Name of Director attended/held
EEMR HE  BITHRRAERE
Executive Directors HITES

Han Xiaosheng A 2/2
Liu Bing 2 7k 2/2
Liu Hongwei 24512 2/2
Liu Guosheng 2 B F+ 1/2
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Qin Dingguo =E 1/2
Zheng Dong (=S} 0/2
Zhao Yingwei HHE(E 1/2
Qi Zixin i3 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

Liu Jipeng 2 42 116 2/2
Cai Hongping ZOA 0/2
Yan Fashan BEE 1/2
Lo Wa Kei, Roy EER 2/2

The Group values feedback from Shareholders on its efforts to promote
transparency and foster investor relationship. Comments and suggestions
to the Board or the Company are welcome and can be addressed to the
Chairman by mail to 64/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong
Kong.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its businesses
and the communities in which it conducts business. It has adopted a
proactive approach to environmental, social and governance
responsibility. Details of the initiatives are set out in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Report from pages 69 to 71 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
TEHEEERE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its businesses
and the communities with which it engages. We pursue this business
approach by managing our business prudently and executing
management decisions with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

Continuous dialogue is maintained with stakeholders that include
customers, employees, regulators and the public. The Company seeks to
balance the views and interests of these various stakeholders through
constructive conversations with a view to charting a course for the long-
term prosperity of the Company and the communities we touch.

Customers

Customer feedback plays a very important role in the operation of the
Group. Various channels are established to maintain interactive
communications between tenants and the Group.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone of a company.
The Company treasures its loyal and hard-working staff members. In
addition, the Company adopts non-discriminatory hiring and employment
practices.

Regulators/Public

Strenuous efforts are exerted to ensure compliance with the laws and
regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates. The
public at large is also an important stakeholder of the Company. A stable
and prosperous community is important to the steady growth and long-
term future prospects of the Group.
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Workplace Quality

The quality of the employees of the Company is crucial to maintaining a
leadership position in the market. With this in mind, the Company seeks
to attract and retain talented individuals committed to achieving goals
and objectives in a work environment that nurtures values such as fair
play, respect and integrity. Heavy emphasis on career development
translates into extensive and ongoing training, according to the needs of
the Group. Compensation packages are competitive, and individuals are
rewarded according to performance plus an annually-reviewed framework
of salary, working conditions, bonuses and incentive systems. Benefits
include medical cover, provident funds and long-service awards.

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace for all
its employees and complying with all applicable health and safety laws
and regulations. Health and safety considerations are incorporated into
the design, operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided appropriate job skills and safety training and are
educated with regard to their responsibilities for achieving the health and
safety objectives of the Group. The Group also communicates with its
employees on occupational health and safety issues.

Environmental Protection

The Group strives to protect the environment by integrating a range of
environmental initiatives across our business. We are committed to
minimising the environmental impact of the Group’s business operation
by reinforcing environmental awareness and implementing measures for
the responsible use of resources, energy saving and waste management.

The Group has introduced a series of measures to enhance the
awareness of environmental protection among staff with the aims of
saving energy, fully utilising resources and recycling wastes in daily office
operation. For the past years, the Group had undertaken initiatives to
reduce paper usage and encourage the use of online version of corporate
communications.
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Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical standards. All
employees are given a Code of Conduct to which they are required to
adhere. The Code explicitly prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting
or offering bribes or any form of advantage. The Code also outlines the
Group’s expectations on staff with regard to conflicts of interest. All
managers are expected to communicate and instill a culture of good
corporate governance to their staff.

We are committed to offering quality services to our customers by
satisfying their expectations and needs. Questionnaires are regularly sent
to tenants in order to obtain feedback. Complaints are recorded and
reviewed for determining preventive actions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERE

To the shareholders of China Oceanwide Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 74 to 166, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBE RS ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performances and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e WER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 i £2015F12 310 ILFE

Restated
=l
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = BET T BT T
Revenue WA 5 189,208 171,008
Cost of sales $H 6 PR A (18,446) (16,955)
Gross profit E ] 170,762 154,053
Other net gains/(losses) HiFEFRE/(BE) 6 (a) 76,940 (4,215)
Administrative expenses THEHR (90,724) (30,634)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R $HEK AR (4,090) (1,793)
Profit before tax R B AT R E 6 152,888 117,411
Income tax expense FrisfIBFA 7 (22,212) (22,966)
Profit for the year F A F 130,676 94,445
Profit attributable to: DU FE 4 #8 -
Shareholders of the Company RNARRE 122,510 85,808
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR RS 8,166 8,637
130,676 94,445
Basic and diluted earnings per share ARBREEME 2 FRER
attributable to shareholders of N E 2 A HK1.21 cents HK0.96 cent
the Company 9 7 11,2141 75 #0.96 11l
The notes from pages 82 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated FEEFE16B M R F4RE 0
financial statements. KR ZEKED ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e T HWER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015F12831HILFE

Restated

& E

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Profit for the year F A FE

Other comprehensive income/(expenses): Ha2mEmkzE (FX) :

Items that may be reclassified subsequently EEAIfEEH o EEBRZ Z2ER

to profit and loss:

130,676 94,445

Translating financial statements of foreign BINETI SRR 2B E
operations:
— Losses taken to reserves — st AREZEE (93,754) (12,514)
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHEECHBEE :
— Net valuation gains taken to reserves — st AREBEZHEFENE 192,747 30,039
— Gains previously in reserves recognised in —BAEBRNFEEANFNER
income statement W R ER (12,688) (7,440)

Other comprehensive income for the year, S RBRHIEE 2 HM2EHKE*

net of tax*

86,305 10,085

Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEZEKZEEE

216,981 104,530

Total comprehensive income attributable to: Ll T fE{S > 2 E Uk 25 & 58 :

218,262 97,473

(1,281) 7,067

216,981 104,530

Shareholders of the Company YNNI 851
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE =
* There was no tax effect on each component of the other comprehensive income/

(expenses) for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The notes from pages 82 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

* H 220156 R2014F12A31A L FE - &

2EWE(FIX) ZEERBDBEERE Y
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FREFI6BEZWE BN EFLREMBRE
ZHRE D e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR &R

At 31 December 2015 732015512 831H

Note
B =
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e S 14
Investment properties "EME 15
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 3 & + i A 16
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEZHEEE 17
Prepayments and other receivables Ta A~ R I8 B H At & W TR IR 18
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development B % 19
Trade receivables JE W AR 3K 20
Deposits, prepayments and other Be - ENRIEREAM
receivables JE W SRR 18
Loan to a related party ERTHEEALT 21
Restricted cash 2R 5135 & 22
Bank deposits with maturity over three iRim =8 A B H 2 R1T
months e 22
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEED 22
Total assets EEHE
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to shareholders AATRREGER
of the Company
Share capital fi% < 25
Reserves 1
Non-controlling interests FERER
Total equity AR
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2015
HK$°000
BETT

778,931
1,627,017
1,462
1,645,824
579,463

4,632,697

2,804,199
84

192,173

26,353

1,079,408

4,102,217

8,734,914

1,076,177
5,063,406

6,139,583
251,621

6,391,204

Restated
KE
2014
HK$’000
ik b

117,276
1,029,872
1,610
678,536
205,364

2,032,658

1,624,403
1,764

52,713
120,057
26,335

320,931
2,678,726

4,724,929

6,757,587

896,814
5,068,350

5,965,164
263,512

6,228,676



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

& R OR & (&)

At 31 December 2015 732015512 831H

Restated
=5
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B E BT T BT T
LIABILITIES 88
Non-current liabilities IRBERS
Other loans HEHWER 26 240,281 —
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFASHRIEEAE 24 179,002 190,441
419,283 190,441
Current liabilities REBEE
Deposits received, other payables and Bl S - H e 3RIE
accruals KE=TIER 23 583,028 166,197
Bank loans RITER 26 1,317,670 137,970
Current income tax liabilities MEFTSEHEAE 23,729 34,303
1,924,427 338,470
Total liabilities BEAEE 2,343,710 528,911
Total equity and liabilities BmRkEEHEE 8,734,914 6,757,587

The notes from pages 82 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

HAN Xiaosheng
BBRE

Chairman
*E

FEEREFI6E <M E/ILFHATHEER
ZHRER D

LIU Guosheng
218 F
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 i £2015F12 310 ILFE

Restated
=l
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Operating activities REHER
Cash (used in)/generated from operating ARzt gl & KA « B 518
activities before finance costs, tax paid LEEESEERAZ
and changes in working capital B (Fr ), FrE
EZBE 27(a) (18,941) 34,007
Changes in working capital BEEG 27(b) (1,534,186) 71,893
Cash (used in)/generated from e (TR EE
operations 2B e (1,553,127) 105,900
Interest received 2 U R B 89,578 109,946
Dividend received B A% B 3,703 -
Tax paid — outside Hong Kong BEHIE — HB AR (31,082) (20,766)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEK(FTR) FrEE
from operating activities ZELEEE (1,490,928) 195,080
Investing activities REXEK
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits B =18 A EIE Z $R1T
with maturity over three months TR,/ (3 ) 320,931 (31,614)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BBEREE
equipment (647,526) (1,858)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BENHEEZHEEE
assets (816,017) (490,968)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- 28 B 1 & 7] {f £ & Bf 75
sale financial assets BEZBHIE 103,743 1,115,400
Loan repaid from a related party —ZBEANTERZER 120,057 =
Loan to an independent third party ERFHBIE=H (700,000) —
Loan repaid from an independent third BUYFE=FEEER
party 700,000 —
Additions to investment properties NEREYE (203,663) —
Increase in other non-current assets H b IE R BB E LN (364,696) (141,136)
Proceeds from disposal of property, KEHEWE - EER
plant and equipment BB TS RE 343 =
Net cash (used in)/generated REZK(FTR) FiEE
from investing activities ZHREFEE (1,486,828) 449,824
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERER (A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015F12831HILFE

Restated
K ET
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo 5E BET T BT
Financing activities Al &
Dividends paid BT B = (1,990,927)
Proceeds from bank and other loans IRITREME KT RIE 26 1,419,981 137,970
Cash acquired from common control KELREZEHEGHZ
combinations EARS 28 30,231
Payment of the consideration for HEZEH S Z2RENK
common control combinations (1,476,584) —
Payment for an assigned loan REERARK (194,265) -
Interest paid EENEESS (30,538) -
Proceeds from issuance of shares REEITRG ZFA1E KA 25 1,714,925 =
Increase in restricted cash S BR %I 3R £ 12 hn - (26,335)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests & 1< JE 122 J& 4 25 A% &, (22,963) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEKFEL (FTA)
financing activities ZHREFE 1,410,556 (1,849,061)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 34 & 1 € Z @Y & (1,567,200) (1,204,157)
Cash and cash equivalents at M1B1EZRERES
1 January ZEY 2,678,726 3,888,476
Exchange losses on cash and cash ReRASEB/YER
equivalents B8 (32,118) (5,593
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A31MAZRERES
31 December ZEBY 1,079,408 2,678,726
Analysis of cash, liquid funds and He RBEeRLHTRE
listed investments ais
Bank deposits with maturity of less than % =1 A R 2 HA 7 $R 177 =%
three months 398,656 2,558,651
Cash at banks and on hand RITFERKEIRE 680,752 120,075
Cash and cash equivalents HERBFESEEY 1,079,408 2,678,726
Bank deposits with maturity over three wHBid=ME A 2 H 2 RITERK
months - 320,931
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEZMKEE 1,645,824 678,536
Total cash, liquid funds and RE RBESRETRE
listed investments 428 2,725,232 3,678,193

FEREFI0A ZME/LFHEMBEHRER
ZHRER S

The notes from pages 82 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERZETR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12 310 ILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ERARRES
Other
properties (Note) Non-
Share Share Exchange revaluation Other  Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve reserve  reserves profits  Sub-total interests Total

Az (M5
kA RiEE EXRE EfEE HoRE REAE P OFERRER L
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETr ERTn BA%Tr #EETz B%Tr BTz BERTx ERTz BRTx

At 1 January 2015 201541818 2,612,756 258,174 35,178 397,989 4,209,794 162,627 4,372,421
Adjustment for common control ARG HAR
combinations (Note 28) (MiE28) 1,757,855 (2,485) 1,755,370 100,885 1,856,255
As restated &G 2,612,756 258,174 1,793,033 395,504 5,965,164 263,512 6,228,676
Other comprehensive income Hi2E K
Losses on translating financial BREBNEBUBRE
statements of foreign operations: ZEA:
— Taken to reserves — it AR (83,788) (84,307) (9,447)  (93,754)
Available-for-sale financial assets: e HEAE:
— Net valuation gains taken to SN 1 PARE
reserves G 192,747 192,747 192,747
— Gains previously in reserves —BARARERER
recognised in income statement ZHBREER
%2 (12,688) (12,688) (12,688)

Net (expenses)/income recognised directly & 1 1 & 25 H#A 2
in equity F (AR k& (83,788) - (9,447) 86,305
Profit for the year FRHE - 122,510 8,166 130,676

Total comprehensive income/ 2EKE/ (%) A5

(expenses) (83,788) 180,059 122,510 218,262 (1,281) 216,981
Issue of shares (Note 25) TR (Fi3E25) 179,363 1,535,562 1,714,925 1,714,925
Share capital injection by non-controlling 12 i 1 75 i A5 &

interests 12,353 12,353
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 2 7 3£ #2 Ik # %5 1% & (22,963)  (22,963)
Adjustment for common control LREHA G AR

combinations (Note 28) (MisE28) (1,758,768) (1,758,768) - (1,758,768)

Total transactions with shareholders EERABXBERAZERE
recognised directly in equity ZREHBE 179,363 1,535,562 (1,758,768) (43,843) (10,610)  (54,453)

At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 431 B 1,076,177 4,148,318 214,324 518,014 6,139,583 251,621 6,391,204
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
RERE2F R (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EZ2015F12831HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KA RRREM
Other
properties (Note) Non-
Share Share  Exchange  revaluation Other Retained controling
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves profits ~ Sub-total interests Total

Hvmx  (Ms)
kA BRhEE EifE ERRE EnREE  REMNE Nt FERER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BT BT B%Tn A%t A%Tr A%Tr BBt B%Tn
Restated Restated Restated Restated ~ Restated
BEj FER]] BE5 BEF  KEF|

At 1 January 2014 E"2014E1 )EJ 1H 896,814 2,612,756 269,021 8,970 12,780 2,300,422 6,100,763 154,753 6,255,516
Other comprehensive income §
Losses on translating financial hE /@ % %ﬁ% iRy EES
statements of foreign operations: ZEAR:
— Taken to reserves N1 = - (10847) 87) - - (10,934) (1,580)  (12,514)
Available-for-sale financial assets: HINEZHBEE
— Valuation gains taken to reserves SN PARE
15 - - — — 30,039 - 30,039 - 30,039
— Gains previously in reserves —BARAREREA
recognised in income statement ZHERRER
2 - - - — (7440 = (7.440) - (#0)
Net income/(expenses) recognised ERRERER Z
directly in equity éllﬁzm/ (Fx%) = - (10847) 87) 22,599 - 11,665 (1580 10,085
Profit for the year FRFE - - - - - 85,808 85,808 8,637 94,445
Total comprehensive income/ 2@l (%) B8
(expenses) - — (10,847) 87) 22,599 85,308 97,473 7,057 104,530
Merger reserve and non-controlling EBEAHELZAH
interest arising from business GiE R RER
combination (Note 28) (Fi3E28) - — - — 1,757,855 — 1,757,855 101,702 1,859,557
Shares options lapsed BRI RN - - - - (201) 201 - - =
2013 final dlividend paid E 20135 B R ER 8 = - - - - (197299)  (197,299) — (197,299
2014 interim dividend paid EN2014FETHRE
(Note 10) (Mz10) = = - - — (1,793,628 (1,793,628) — (1,793,628)
Total transactions with shareholders B REHER 2
recognised directly in equity RRERZEH = - - — 1,757,654 (1,990,726)  (233,072) 101,702 (131,370)
At 31 December 2014 (As restated) 12014612 A31 R
(E5) 896,814 2,612,756 258,174 8,883 1,793,033 395,504 5,965,164 263512 6,228,676
Note: ME3E -
Other reserves comprise investment revaluation reserve, merger reserve, share-based i & & & j REEGHHEE A EE BROFRH
compensation reserve and capital redemption reserve. it R EANE B 1 -
Investment Share-based Capital
revaluation compensation redemption
___reserve Merger reserve reserve R reserve Total
RESHHE EOtEE ROBMEE BELXABEOREE WA
“HK$'000 “HK$'000 “HK$'000 “HK$'000 _HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T ST T ok b
At 1 January 2014 201441 A1H 9,021 — 201 3,558 12,780

At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H
and 1 January 2015 &201541 A1H
(Restated) (&&= 5) 31,620 1,757,855 X 1,793,033

At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 211,679 (913) y 214,324

The notes from pages 82 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated 82 ZE £ 166 B » i 5 A It 45 4 B 8 &
financial statements. ZHBKE D e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R R BT AE

82

General Information

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
property investments in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
real estate development in the United States (the “U.S.”) and
development in the energy sector in Indonesia.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and the shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties
and available-for-sale financial assets, which are carried at fair
value, as explained in the significant accounting policies set out
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the directors of the Company to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests represent the interests of
shareholders external to the Group in the operating results
and net assets of subsidiaries.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

2 EARETHERE @

(a)

(b)

mEXER
HREVBRRBERARTRET
FTEWNEB AREZ12A31H It
Z R o

AEEAMBEEARAIZAZR
S REFHRFRARBARIEH -

IR IR AR EAINZ IR
BRREMBARIZEEXERE
EFETHEEOES -

REikHE

MEBAREASBHEARE
HEZER(BREBEER) -
EAKERN2EERM AR E
O % 2 E B sk = A A] & 0l o #
mo TEERNEBEHZEE L
BAFE I F O HME - ANEE R
BHZER - BRI RES
REBEASEERERS

R WRIEFIELLEEAETE
NN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 39 “Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurement” (“HKAS
39" in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not re-measured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date when the control is transferred
to the Group to the date when control ceases.

Merger accounting for common control
combinations

During the year, the Group has completed the
acquisitions of certain subsidiaries which are under the
common control of Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd * (i@ /&%
A% A IR A7) (“Tohigh”), the ultimate holding company
of the Company. These acquisitions are regarded as
“business combination under common control”.
Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements
have been prepared using the principles of merger
accounting, as prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” (“AG 5”) issued by the HKICPA.

The net assets of the combining entities are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquirees’
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combinations,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EARBHBEREw@
Policies (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) 258K E @

(i) Merger accounting for common control

combination (Continued)

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining
entities first came under the common control, where
this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combinations.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position are presented as if the
entities had been combined at the beginning of previous
year unless they first came under common control at a
later date.

The assets and liabilities acquired in the common
control combinations are stated at their carrying
amounts and the results of these subsidiaries are
combined to the Group since 6 November 2014, the
date when Tohigh obtained the control of the Company.
The effects arising from the common control
combinations are set out in Note 28.

(c) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

88

(d) Segment Reporting

(e)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors and the chief financial officer that
make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated
in foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
equity instruments held at fair value through profit or
loss, are reported in the income statement as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary items, such as equities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, are included in other
comprehensive income.

Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

() Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprises mainly freehold

land, construction in progress, buildings,

improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and motor
vehicles. Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial period

in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less
accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful

lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold
improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 7 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years

Freehold land is stated at historical cost and not depreciated.

Gain or loss on disposal of a property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in

the income statement.

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each date of statement of financial position.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount.
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5 years or over the term of the
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2 EARETHERE @

(f)

ME BEMRBEETERREKA
XL ErIR BF M
EMERE KA BERER
BE ARAE-ME BRI R
AR 1 4R B S B AN R T B AURE 1B
BIER - ELRAREKEZA
BEEREEMNRAX -

HEXRAREBERZEABBBY
AREEMBZBARERARSE
B MmZEE KRR ERE
B FTEEREEEMNREENXE
REBUAE(WMER)  Eikj
DHREESRIEER A%
ErRREEEEENMBRHER
R U R R AHIER

ME BBENRENTERAN
RO & AJ 8 A B R R AR F0 B
R EEBRREEGED BT

L

BF 204F

HEWE 54 g% @ B8 49

=AE FEH S AR E
ppi

KA -BE 3&E7HF

HERXE

RE 5E 84

S L EXN. S LN
BT HHTE -

HEWME BEMRBREEZ
Ba DHERAFEEARE
EXREAEMERCEZR L&
Wtk P HER

BEAERFHRE @B
mRBETRE  RELEEH

%Eko

FEENREESREMGF K
&% EHEmENREREER
AU E & e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(g) Construction in progress

(h)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings, the cost
of plant and machinery, employee benefit expenses,
professional fees and interest charges arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the period of construction
or installation and testing, if any. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and are available for intended
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated
taking into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development comprise costs of
land use rights, construction costs, employee benefit
expenses, borrowing costs and loan arrangement fee
capitalised for qualifying assets and professional fees incurred
during the development period.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising of leasehold
land and buildings, that are not occupied by the Group, are
held for long-term rental yields, capital appreciation or both.
Properties that are being constructed or developed for future
long-term rental yields, capital appreciation or both are also
classified as investment properties. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting
period and fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time,
are stated at cost. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

92

1)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated or not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date —
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from
the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that use only data
from observable markets. Any difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price is
recognised as a gain or loss in the income statement.

At each statement of financial position date subsequent to
initial recognition, these financial assets are carried at fair
value and changes in fair value are dealt with as movements
in the investment revaluation reserve except for impairment
losses which are charged to the income statement. Where
these investments are interest bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement. Dividends from available-for-sale
investments are recognised when the right to receive
payment is established. When available-for-sale investments
are sold, the cumulative fair value gains or losses previously
recognised in investment revaluation reserve is removed from
investment revaluation reserve and recognised in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

1)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired. An available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a Group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

94

1)

(k)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

Loans, trade and other receivables

Loans, trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of loans, trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to original terms of receivables. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, the probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered as indicators that
the loan, trade and other receivables are impaired. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The reversal of the previously recognised
impairment cost is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Assets that are subject to depreciation or
amortisation are reviewed to determine whether there is any
indication that the carrying value of these assets may not be
recoverable and have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Such
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of
three months or less.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

96

(n)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingencies (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

98

(r) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the date of statement of financial position in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill and the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the date of statement of
financial position and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(r) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

(s) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the leasing company are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (including up-front prepayments made for
the leasehold land and land use rights) net of any incentives
received from the leasing company are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(t} Employee benefits

U

(i)

(i)

Salaries, bonus, paid annual leave and the cost of other
benefits to the Group are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of
the Group.

The Group operates two defined contribution schemes
for Hong Kong employees, the assets of which are held
in separate administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to the defined contribution schemes are
expensed as incurred and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The Group also contributes on a monthly basis to
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and future
retired employees for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds managed by the
government of the PRC. Contributions to these plans
are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilites and Contingent Assets”, and involves the
payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(u) Share-based compensation

(v)

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become vested. At each date of the statement of
financial position, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
income statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Revenue recognition

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the year in which they are earned.

Service income from operating leases
Revenue from the provision of property management service
is recognised when the service is provided.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2

Policies (Continued)

(w) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

(x) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, as appropriate.

The Group has adopted all of the new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations issued by the HKICPA that are
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2015. The
adoption of these new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations does not have any significant impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

At the date these financial statements are authorised for issue, the
following standards and amendments were in issue but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKAS 1 Amendment The Disclosure Initiative'™

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods

Amendment of Depreciation and Amortisation
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants™
Amendment
HKAS 27 Amendment Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements"”
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
Amendment between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment Entities: Apply the

HKAS 28 Amendment Consolidation Exception'”
HKFRS 11 Amendment Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations"”
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts!”
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
Annual Improvements Improvements to HKFRSs"

2012-2014 Cycle

) Effective for the Group for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016

@ Effective for the Group for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

@ To be determined

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of the
above new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

3 Financial Risk Management

(@) Financial Risk Factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk
management is carried out by senior management of the
Group under policies approved by the board of directors of
the Company.

(i)

Market Risk

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the United States dollar (‘US$”), HK$ and Renminbi
as the Group’s revenue and the operating costs are
denominated in these currencies. The Group is also
exposed to other currency movements, primarily in
terms of bank deposits, available-for-sale financial
assets, investments in the U.S. and Indonesia
denominated in US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The
Group has not entered into any derivative instruments
to hedge its foreign exchange exposures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(@) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(i)

Market Risk (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if the HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 0.5% against the US$ with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year and equity
would have been HK$3,398,000 (2014 restated:
HK$13,945,000) and HK$76,000 (2014 restated: Nil)
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$
denominated cash and bank deposits and available-for-
sale financial assets. Profit is less sensitive to movement
in the HK$/US$ exchange rate in 2015 than 2014
because of the decreased amount of US$ denominated
cash and bank deposits. Equity is more sensitive to
movement in the HK$/US$ exchange rate in 2015 than
2014 because of the increased amount of US$
denominated available-for-sale financial assets. The
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HK$ and the US$ to be not
significant due to the fact that the HK$ and the US$ are

pegged.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(@) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(i)

Market Risk (Continued)

Price Risk

The Group’s main market price risk exposures relate to
available-for-sale financial assets which are mainly
comprised of listed debt and equity securities. At 31
December 2015, if the market price of the available-for-
sale financial assets had increased/decreased by 5%,
the Group’s equity would have been HK$82,291,000
(2014: HK$33,927,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result
of the gains/losses on available-for-sale financial assets.
The Group closely monitors the price movement and
changes in market conditions that may have an impact
on the value of these financial assets.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for cash and bank deposits, the listed debt
securities included under available-for-sale financial
assets and loans receivables. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing liabilities except for bank and
other loans.

The interest rate for the listed debt securities, loan
receivables and other loans are fixed. The interest of the
bank loans is capitalised. At 31 December 2015, if
interest rates on cash and bank deposits had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been
HK$11,058,000 (2014 restated: HK$30,260,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of decreased amount
of cash and bank deposits in 2015.

106 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

3 HEERREREm@
(a) Br# =R B R = @)

(i)

™5 Rk (@)
1B 1% 7 Bz
REBZETEMHERKE
BEAHHECHBEEE
Bl ZEBENLTES
EREZESH A E - KR2015
F12A318 WA #HEE
2B EENTEE IR
15% ¢ Bl A K B 2 # = i
# 90,6 4 7 # 82,291,000
JC (2014 4F : 7% % 33,927,000
T TEHRAHEEZ
MG EENS BB -
N £ B 2 1)) B 2R 0] Rt ¥
EUKEEBEEMTE
MF%“@&ﬁﬁﬁ“o

T = [ B

BRRERBTER ATH
HEZHBEERRE T2
LA E 5 WA K
S AEBEYWEBBEBRGFEE
o BRERTT R E A E RN
AEBEYBBEAFEAE-

ITEBES BREFRK
HiBERNFEAEE - §
TEFNFIBEEERNEL - R
201512 A31H » 10 R iR
e RBOTFERINERE
Hﬁimo%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂzl
ZREFAE - AIFEFBEE
iEbD//JEKQ/%ﬁZH,OS&OOO
TL(20144 & E 5 B
30,260,0007t ) © £ Z 2 i
R2015F ] & KR 1T F XK
R D °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(@) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(i)

Market Risk (Continued)

Credit Risk

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers
represents 43.7% (2014: 46.7%) of total revenue
excluding interest income and dividend income, of
which, one customer (2014: two customers) individually
exceeds 10% of the total revenue (excluding interest
income and dividend income) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

At 31 December 2015, the balance of trade and other
receivables mainly represented rental receivables and
interest receivables. Rental deposits are required from
tenants prior to the commencement of leases. The
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of these
debtors to manage the risk.

There is no significant credit risk in relation to the
Group’s cash and bank deposits as cash and bank
deposits are placed with banks and financial institutions
with good credit ratings. 71% of the Group’s bank
deposits were placed in international financial
institutions with minimum credit ratings of A3/A- as
rated by Moody’'s and Standard & Poor’s as at 31
December 2015.

The Group’s listed debt securities were mainly listed in
Singapore with credit rating of AS/A- as rated by
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s as at 31 December
2015.

The credit risk on loan receivables is limited because of
the counterparties’ strong financial position.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group and
the Company at the reporting date is the carrying
amount of each class of financial assets.

3 HEERREREm@
(a) Br# =R B R = @)

(i)

PZERERAF

™5 Rk (@)
=ERE

#H E2015%F12 A31 8 Ik £
B XEEBRAURARF
ZWA B EF B &
BB E) A EERKRAR
43.7% (2014 4F : 46.7%)
H i — {7 (20144 : W iz )
EEBBERWRA(CTEE
A B U R IR B ES) BB
10% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(@) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(i)

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, senior management of the Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of the statement of financial position
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed

3 HEEREREm@m
(a) B # & B B & @)

(if)

B L R
EERMORERREERE
HBRENRENBER
5 BRERERNAKEER
EEGSURAES kAR
BEMERR BHREEE
B ERR ~EESRE
BEEEZEBEFAIRN
AuEEBEERKESE
Ja M e

TEREBEMBMRAEXRAE
BHIHMEMRGER B
BAEBMIHAMASHAN
SEMBREETON K

in the table are the undiscounted cash flows. AR B RE A oK B IR IR
B °
Contractual payment
SR SENEN
Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and Over

1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years

1FUT 122528 2855 2H 5F 0 F

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT BETr ABETT

At 31 December 2015
Deposits received, other
payables and accruals

R201512 A31 H
BliES - Hib
&~ 3078 & fE AT

15 B
Bank loans RITE X
Other loans HEME R

456,856
1,317,670

1,774,526

At 31 December 2014 7R2014412 A 31 H

11,682

240,281

251,963

(Restated) (g E5)
Deposits received, other 2 iz « H b
payables and accruals  JE < 5k 18 [ fE &t
I3 H 17,360 6,367 10,445 2,152
Bank loans RITER 154,912 = = =
172,272 6,367 10,445 2,152
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is
calculated as “total borrowings”. Total capital is calculated as
“equity”, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a healthy gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios, as calculated by total borrowings over
total shareholders’ equity, are as follows:

3 HEERREREm@
(b) EXEERE

AEBEEREAR  LEERN
SEERFEERRBRKEEXBN
EENRBER KM AKRREMRE
o W A H Al A 2548 B8 U7 5 2R A
@ AR ERREENERE LR

RTRFIAABELRGERE A&
B A RAEMERROBE &
BRREAR BOHFBRIHLEER
B AR DB 7

AEERBERNABRHERE
TTEE BEEXEE - %R
B ARRBEBGRABEN &
BRENEEREIFE R
BMBARRARMAR  EXBEIN
[HEzs 5t & -

AEEBZRBEEBREZER
BEX -EABGBELER(KREER
BERARREEREBGTE) W
T

Restated

KE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Bank loans RITERK 1,317,670 137,970
Other loans Hi B 240,281 —
Total debt BB 1,557,951 137,970
Total equity M AR ER 6,391,204 6,228,676
Gearing ratio EAREBEBEX 24.4% 2.2%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Capital Risk Management (Continued)

(c)

In order to fund the daily operation and the expansion of the
business of the Group, significant amounts of capital in the
form of borrowing or equity, or a combination of both, is
considered to be necessary in the future. The directors
consider such funding for the future operation and expansion
will be available as and when required.

Fair Value Estimation

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

(i) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

(i)  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

@iy Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).
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(b)

(c)

EXAMERE @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 UXEKRERE@
(c) Fair Value Estimation (Continued) (c) A2 FEEM @
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E14K E24K 3 g

HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000
AETIT BRI ARTT ABETT

At 31 December 2015 7R2015F12 A 31 H

Available-for-sale financial RJ{t & 72 KA E

assets
— Debt securities with —BEBRXRZEE
fixed interest rate 7B 677,893 677,893
— Equity securities — REF 967,931 967,931
Total financial assets B 7% B EE 1B R 1,645,824 1,645,824
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31H

Available-for-sale financial A ft & 7 Bt I & B

assets
— Debt securities with —BEEREXZES
fixed interest rate B 5 678,536 — — 678,536
Total financial assets W EERRE 678,536 - — 678,536
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the R E E2015F128318 IF FE
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). Moo B8 B8 N E3% 2
BEER (20145 : &) -
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets EERMERRINE/MIA
is based on quoted market prices at the date of the statement RFEEEAREBMRRLE BB
of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted M5 mE SR o a0 R % ME A A
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, AGHRBEBHER S TS - K&
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory HE KA EEXEEH KRE
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly REEBRERRBETERS X
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The BEEREREEE A TM5
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the REWMER EFHERE - Zmis
Group is the current bid price. ERBRRERE AEEFENHY
BEEGCAMNMEBERERRITH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amount:

(i) Loans receivables
(i) Trade receivables
(i)  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

(iv)  Cash and bank deposits
(v)  Deposits received, other payables and accruals

(vii Bank loans and other loans

The disclosures of the investment properties that are
measured at fair value are set out in Note 15.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments

Note 2 of the financial statements includes a summary of the
significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the
financial statements. The preparation of financial statements often
requires the use of judgments to select specific accounting
methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives.
Furthermore, significant estimates and assumptions concerning the
future may be required in selecting and applying those methods
and policies in the financial statements. The Group bases its
estimates and judgments on historical experience and various
assumptions that are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates and judgments under
different assumptions or conditions.

The following is a review of the more significant assumptions and
estimates, as well as the accounting policies and methods used in
the preparation of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Income Taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong,
the U.S., Indonesia and the PRC, in which new and revised
tax laws and regulations are issued from time to time and
some of which may take effect on a retrospective basis.
Significant judgment is required in determining provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, in
particular for the tax in the PRC, during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues taking into account the existing tax legislations
and market practice. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current income tax
and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimated Fair Value of Investment
Properties

Details of the judgment and assumptions used to determine
the fair value of investment properties have been disclosed in
Note 15.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably established.

Management’s judgment is required in assessing the
quantum of provisions at each date of the statement of
financial position, which is made based on an estimation of
historical and anticipated claims, the merits of the claims
against the Group, and the existence of any obligations under
the terms of relevant agreements with the counterparties. The
amounts of provisions represent management’s best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligations.
The basis of estimation is reviewed on an on-going basis and
revised where appropriate to reflect the current best estimate.

4 BEESITEERHE @

(a)

(b)

(c)

Fr&H A

AEEXTEERE XB - -HE
RABEMAEHR  ZFmE T
By 78 10 37 7] R AR AB BT A RAR
- 2hREHIZEPREEL
M- GEEEMSHBERBE T2
EHERHEG - E—REBER
BB ERSZMEAERS &H
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MR R TS B - BRI
BEFTEEEREBE - MUHEFS
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SRITAE - WEEZRBTZEED
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RAABERENFE R VEEZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of Non-Financial Asset

At the date of statement of financial position, the Group
undertakes a review to determine whether there is any
indication of asset impairment.

Property, plant and equipment and other non-financial assets
are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows. Reversal of an
impairment provision is recorded as income in the period
when the reversal occurs. Reversal on impairment loss would
be recognised if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment test was carried out.

Depreciation and Useful Lives of Power
Plant

Estimation of the useful lives of the Group’s power plant
facilities is based on the Group’s assessment of industry
practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with
similar assets. Management estimates the useful lives of the
power plant facilities, which are under construction, to be
around 40 years. Changes in the expected level of usage and
technological development could have an impact on the
economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
and therefore future depreciation charges.

The estimated useful lives are reviewed at least each financial
year-end and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limitations on
the use of the assets. It is possible, however, that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes
in the factors mentioned above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

() Impairment of Available-For-Sale Equity
Investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39, to determine
when an available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost; and the financial health of and business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

5 Revenue and Segment Information

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 34.

The senior management comprising executive directors and the
chief financial officer are the Group’s chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”). Management has determined the operating
segments for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

Revenue represents rental and service income, interest income and
dividend income. The amount of revenue recognised during the
year is as follows:

4 BEESITEERHE @

(f) gﬁ%tﬂ%ﬂﬁi—ﬁ?ﬁﬁZﬂﬁi

AEEERERETB G EREION
Z 15 5| B E f) B A i oh B AR AR
BHBARE - ZEEAFEHREKR
Hl o RIEH BRAH B - NE
B G (AR eE) —BREZA
FEEBEREKRAEZFHHRRE
B REHROM G RENRR
XM= (BRBHNTERDH
RE - RMEHARKLERT B
Reng8FHAX) -

5 WARZHEHR

KRB ZEBEBK AR ELRK - B
NAlZ EBEBH R L34 -

EREEE(BERATEZTRMBR
BEAASENIZLERREE (X2
RERKRE] BRECEERED
B RETERSERKRBAE -

WABREHEERRSE K - F S s
MR E FAEHRZWAESRE
LI

Restated

KET

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT I

Rental income from investment properties WEME B WS 93,772 90,094
Service income from investment properties "EME 2 RB W= 2,887 4,320
Interest income F B = 88,516 76,594
Dividend income A% B S 4,033 —
189,208 171,008
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5

During the year ended 31 December 2015, management has
significantly increased the investment in listed debt and equity
securities which is now considered as one of the principal activities
of the Group. Therefore, the Group has changed its presentation
on interest income, which was previously separately presented in
the consolidated income statement. Subsequent to the change in
presentation, interest income is included in revenue in the
consolidated income statement. The results from “Corporate”
segment includes the results of the Group’s financial investments
and has been renamed as the “Finance Investment and Others”
segment. Management believes that the change in segment
presentation provides a more appropriate picture of how the
Group’s treasury and investment functions are managed. The effect
on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2014 is as follows:

WA Ko EBE B )

RN A E2015F12A31BIEFE - &
BEABEBEMNETMESLAREESHK
B HBRERAAEE 2 EE XK
— o Atk A"EB D R E R B W B
EETme$$$@£WWET
BEE 25 EN 2o - A BN F LR
/\uszmiewuz%uw\ [ % |30 H) %
BEREAEEVMEREZEBETTE R
BB EREMIZ - EEEHEE
DESRH N EREFREWR Y AL
B ESREEBREISITIETE
B WHE2014FE12A831BILEEZ
HRAWBEROTZENT

2014
HK$’000
BT T

Consolidated income statement e WK
Increase in revenue (Note) U A 42 on (Bt 53 76,594
Decrease in interest income ) B U %5 R (76,594)

Note: Included interest income of HK$590,000 arising from the merger of
subsidiaries (see Note 28).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
completed the acquisitions of a real estate development project in
the Los Angeles, the U.S. and a coal fuel steam power plant project
in Medan, Indonesia, which are under the common control of
Tohigh, the ultimate holding company of the Company. These
acquisitions are regarded as business combinations under common
control by applying the principles of merger accounting in
accordance with AG 5 as if the acquisitions had occurred on the
date when the combining entities first came under the control of the
substantial shareholder. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
acquired in the common control combinations are stated at their
carrying amounts as if they had been held or incurred by the Group
from the later of 6 November 2014, the date on which the
combining entities first came under the control of the substantial
shareholder, or the relevant transactions giving rise to the assets or
liabilities arose. As a result, the Group has added two new
segments, namely the Real Estate Development segment and the
Energy segment. Together with the existing business segments,
the Property Investment division and the Finance, Investment and
Others segment, the Group has four reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5

The segments are managed separately as each business segment
has different business objectives and each segment is subject to
risks and returns that are different from one another.

Earnings/(losses) before interest expense and tax (“EBIT/(LBIT)”) is
regarded as segment results in respect of the Group’s reportable
segments as the CODM considers that this can better reflect the
performance of each segment. EBIT/(LBIT) is used in the Group’s
internal financial and management reporting to monitor business

performances.

Segment Information

Segment revenue
— Company and subsidiaries

ELON
~ARARKBRF

Segment results before other net

A EREH

gains ZDHEE

— Company and subsidiaries /NG NG
Other net gains (Note 6) HF 15 (i 26)
EBIT/(LBIT) FleRBAIBF,

(B8)

Income tax expense FERERS
Profit for the year FRF
Segment assets ABEE
Total assets BERE
Segment liabilities ABER
Bank loans RITER
Other loans Hih B
Current income tax liabilities REEHBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEHMENERRE
Total liabilities BEEH
Additions to non-current RNEFRDOHEE

segment assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights

NE- HERRE
ZHE
HET R EAEL

Property

Investment

NERE
HK$’000

BET T

1,188,342

66,337

21,587
178,018

WARDIHER @
BHREEBOCEBBRAR - L
k&SI R 2B KB ®REE 5
REMI B AUSHB2ERIE
HRBHETT o
FELKEARARERRRABRAEZH
EBEMAF(FE) (F 8RB
B/ (BER)EEEHNRBEEED
HeRE HECHARNEEARE
DEZDEELE - F B KF AT &R/
(BER)EFERANAEE 2 NI 7B &
BIEWE  NEEERRIR -
7 & #
Year ended 31 December 2015
BZ2015F12A31 AL EE
Finance
Real Estate Investment
Development Energy  and Others Total
BBRE
EHEMR BRE D REAM am
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETR

189,208

42,617
76,940

75,948

(14,559)
= 76,940

(21,565)

(14,559) (21,565) 119,557 152,888

(22,212)
130,676

3,705,123 1,909,961 1,931,488 8,734,914

8,734,914

186,307 307,091

1,317,670

583,028
1,317,670
240,281
23,729
179,002

240,281

984 -

2,343,710

237,844* 984,377 1,242,159

2,053

55
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Segment Information (Continued)

5 Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

22 E R @)

* During the year, property under development of HK$448,650,000 were i
reclassified as investment properties. The addition to investment
properties due to this reclassification was not considered as additions to
non-current segment in 2015.

The additions to non-current segment assets exclude available-for-sale

financial asset and loans and interest receivables from related parties.

WA Ko EBE B )

RANEE - 7% 448,650,000 < B %
MESTDERRENE -HREFH
EMEBBAEREMETHR BR2015

FZFERBARZAE °

REFRBOBEETESAHBEE
ZHMBEEMERBERBTDNERR

B -

Year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated)
BZ2014F12A31ALLFE (KEF)

Finance
Property Real Estate Investment
Investment  Development Energy  and Others Total
\ \ BB E
MERE EHERZ EREN REAM ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment revenue RN
— Company and subsidiaries —ARFEKBAF 94,414 = — 76,594 171,008
Segment results before other net  E )% E5 18 A1
losses ZAEEE
— Company and subsidiaries —ARFRERMBAR 71,551 (818) (2,379) 53,272 121,626
Other net losses (Note 6) H % E 18 (F6) - - = (4,215) (4,215)
EBIT/LBIT) FERFAARN
(B#) 71,551 (818) (2,379) 49,057 117,411
Income tax expense FTEMIERY (22,966)
Profit for the year FRFE 94,445
Segment assets DEBE 1,857,991 1,539,868 548,090 2,811,638 6,757,587
Total assets BELE 6,757,587
Segment liabilities AHERE 68,672 55,580 34,058 7,887 166,197
Bank loan RITER = = 137,970 = 137,970
Current income tax liabilities TEMEREARE 34,303 - - - 34,303
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEHERE 186,346 4,095 - - 190,441
Total liabilities BRER 528,911
Additions to non-current segment R E R EN DB E E
assets 184 — 116,184 1,674 118,042
Depreciation of property, plantand #1% - #22 & & &
equipment ZHE 489 - - 85 574
Amortisation of leasehold land and 7 & + 3t % + 3t 5 F3 4
land use rights 2 56 = - — 56
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical Information

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong, the PRC, the U.S. and
Indonesia. In presenting information of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the location of the provision of
services, interest and dividend income.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, revenues
and assets by the geographical location are as follows:

WA &2 EBE B )
#h 15 & B

AEBTERTELE FE ZXERD
EREXRT - NEJIHWHERE - 2
BUATIREREERSE - B REER
WamB U EETHE -

NEZE 20154 R2014E12 31 B IE&F
Bz BEUERDNKRAREEDN
T

Hong
U.S. Indonesia PRC Kong Total
ES e H BB B

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
BETIT BETRT BEBETT ABTRT BETE

2015 2015

Revenue PN 17,199 112,129 59,880 189,208
Total assets BEBE 3,705,123 1,810,578 1,187,196 2,032,017 8,734,914
2014 (Restated) 2014 5 (R E51)

Revenue A = 590 116,102 54,316 171,008
Total assets BEMBT 1,539,868 443,695 1,852,823 2,921,201 6,757,587

Information about Major Customers

Excluding interest income and dividend income, revenue of
approximately HK$16.6 million is derived from one single external
customer (2014: HK$28.0 million from two external customers),
which individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue. This revenue is attributable to the Property Investment
segment and derived from the PRC.

FRTEFEF2ER

Tt R B2 R Bg B s - W AP
B 0BITELER — R BE I
B F (20144 : B #2800 7T 2K B W
ZOBEE) ZRFEBHAEER
AZ10%3k LA | o 2 WA 5B R W 3
WA BRI R E P -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

6 Profit Before Tax 6 BRBi AR H
Profit before tax is stated after crediting and charging the following: GEmABEE T ARTKB TYIER :
Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Crediting s A
Gain on initial recognition of available-for-sale ¥ AR ATt E 2 B KA
financial assets (Note a) EF 15 (HaEa) =
Net realised gain on disposal of equity securities H £ &% 22 2& 35 )% &4 38 51|15
(Note a) (Bt sEa) -
Rental income from investment properties less 1% & ¥ % 18 € U 25 5 B =
outgoings of HK$15,456,000 7 #15,456,000 7T
(2014: HK$13,051,000) (20144 : /& ¥13,051,0007T) 77,043
Charging 1 B
Staff costs (Note 11) 1E B Mk A (FiFaE11) 17,632
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #)% - S LR E 2T E
(Note 14) (Note b) (Mg 7E14) (M 7EDb) 574
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use FHE 1 it K2 + 3 55 B #E 2 5
rights (Note 16) (f7E16) 56
Operating lease charges in respect of YEEEBHER (M3Ec)
properties (Note c) 981
Auditor’s remuneration % RN B
Audit and audit related work BN EZEEIE
PricewaterhouseCoopers B oK BT AE ST 2,897
Other auditors H b i A 38
Non-audit related work I 2 1% A0 B R 75
PricewaterhouseCoopers ZEERKBEEENELAT =
Net foreign exchange losses (Note a) SNEEBE HOF &5 18 (M ska) 4,215

120 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

Profit Before Tax (continued)

Notes:

(@) Other net gains of HK$76,940,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015
represent gains on initial recognition of available-for-sale financial assets
of HK$68,700,000, being the difference between the fair value of the
securities at the date of purchase and their purchase costs, a net realised
gain on disposal of listed equity securities of HK$12,688,000 net of the
net foreign exchange losses of HK$4,448,000 (2014: HK$4,215,000).

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2015, depreciation charges amounting
to HK$736,000 were capitalised into properties under development (2014:
Nil).

(c) For the year ended 31 December 2015, operating lease charges

amounting to HK$6,187,000 were capitalised into properties under
development (2014 restated: HK$134,000).

Income Tax Expense

6 ERBATFE @

(@ B ZE2015F12A31B It FEE 2 H 1
S R 15 7 #76,940,0007C & ) R W R
AUHEHEZHBEEZNEELE
68,700,000 L (BB ERE XEFEH 2 A

AR 32 3 5 % # 3 FI 15 45 % 12,688,000
TC H0 BR S 85 BE 3 F &5 18 7 5 4,448,000
7L (2014 4F : #5#4,215,0007T) ©

() HEZE2015F12A318 It F F: & ¥
736,000 Z M EE R E E AR
R (2014 4F « £8) ©

(© B E2015412A31H It FE - B &
6,187,000t 2 E XM BRHE &AL
REZRYECOULERLEY: B
134,0007T) °

FrieBER X

Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
ok ok

Current income tax MENFTIS T IR
— outside Hong Kong — BABEIN 10,960
— Hong Kong — &% -
Deferred income tax charge (Note 24) ELEMEHREBEXI H (FiE24) 12,006
22,966

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to Enterprise
Income Tax at a standard rate of 25% for 2015 (2014: 25%).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, no Hong Kong profits tax
was provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profits.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, Hong Kong profits tax had
been provided at the rate of 16.5%.

R2015F  REBRFPBEMNM B A A
T8 ¥R 1Z E T K 25% (2014 4F : 25%) 45
MR -

H E2014F12A31B EEFEE - AR
ANEBWE MG ERRAE &
REBFEHIREE - HE2015F
12A31BLEFEE EBFNEH K
16.5% < Bi 514 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

7 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 7 FISHEBRZm
The differences between the Group’s expected tax charges RERN REBNUEMBREAE 278
calculated at the domestic rates and the Group’s tax charge for the M EYHEAER ZHBEYH 2=
years are as follows: REOR
Restated
K&
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Profit before tax B %% A1 ) B 117,411
Tax calculated at the domestic rates applicable #2745 78 B %% i F #) & #0515 4
to the profits in the countries concerned BERAE 7 Fi1E 30,257 19,256
Income not subject to tax U &= (19,129) (4,856)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TAEREFIERA R ZHAX 10,296 6,724
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2T IHEE 1,045 2,334
Utilisation of previously recognised tax losses B S RIfER 2 Fi B 518 (257) (492)
Total tax charge MIEY A% 22,212 22,966
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19.8% (2014 N3 A X R19.8% (2014 F £

restated: 16.4%). E5:16.4%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

8 Borrowing Costs 8 BEMAK
Restated
gE7|
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT AT T
Borrowing costs on bank and other loans BOKHEMERZEERA 979
Less: Capitalised on qualifying assets B BREEREREE 979
Borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 1.7%-11.5% BEARNIZET F1.7%211.5% (2014
(2014: 1.8%-11.5%) per annum on qualifying assets. F18%E11.5%) 2 F| XK ERILES
BIREE -
9 Earnings Per Share 9 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) BREXZR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit RERZRF THBIEA R ARR
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted FEAEFERAFRNE ZEITEBR
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. ZIMEFEHEHETE -
Restated
=l
2015 2014
Weighted average number BT L @R 2 T8
of ordinary shares in issue 10,122,942,296 8,968,140,707
Profit attributable to shareholders N &) AR R FE A A1
of the Company (HK$’000) (BEFT) 122,510 85,808
Basic earnings per share attributable ARNaRREGEERER
to shareholders of the Company A F) (F R B EEAL)
(HK cent per share) 0.96
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

9 Earnings per share (Continued) 9 BRENum
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREEZR

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares deemed to be
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

SREERMNTDEBABRER
BREREETENKTETZ
BB INEFHBGHE -

Restated
KET
2015 2014

Weighted average number of BT E @A 2 e 8
ordinary shares in issue
Adjustment for share option oh B IR R VE A AR

(R PPRZ0Rl T 8,968,140,707
= 7,286

Profit attributable to shareholders of the 75 A &] A% 5 F& {5 7138 (B ¥ F 1)

Company (HK$’000)

Diluted earnings per share attributable to 7 /A 7] i% 22 & 15 7 I% i 55 2 7
shareholders of the Company (R 7B L)
(HK cent per share)

DR PRIl T 8,068,147,993

122,510 85,808

0.96

Following the close of the mandatory cash offers which arose
from the change of controlling shareholders, the share
options were lapsed on 18 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

10 Dividend 10 R 2
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Final dividend proposed — Nil (2014: Nil) per FEEAPRKE —FRETBER:

ordinary share (20144 « &) =
Interim dividend paid — Nil (2014: HK20.0 cents) & 1~ f1 HA % B — & f% & @ X :
per ordinary share 47 (2014 4F : B ¥ 20.01l) 1,793,628
1,793,628
No final dividend was proposed for the year ended 31 December 2 A 22015 12 A31 8 &
2015 and 31 December 2014. 2014512 A31H Ik F [E Ik %% R Hl %
8 o
11 Staff costs (including directors’ 11 EEFTMREA(BEES
emoluments) <)
Staff costs recognised during the year are as follows: RENERZEEFTM AT :
Restated
4 & 7
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Wages and salaries IE&ENH= 17,680
Pension costs RIKE A 1,867
Other allowances and benefits B Bk Kt 845
Total staff costs (including directors’ (== E=01) DN L
emoluments) (BRESHS) 20,392
Less: amount capitalised into properties under & : RE R 2 R IHE
development and investment properties MEERN LS (2,860)
17,532
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

12 Retirement benefits schemes

The Group provides retirement benefits mainly to employees in
Hong Kong and in the PRC.

The Group has two defined contribution schemes for all qualified
employees in Hong Kong.

(@

Hong Kong employees who commenced employment before
1 September 2000 are members of the first defined
contribution scheme. The assets of the first defined
contribution scheme are held separately under a provident
fund managed by an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the scheme, the employers and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme calculated
at 5% of the employees’ basic salaries on a monthly basis.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employers’
contributions and accrued interest after 10 years of service,
or at an increasing scale ranging from 20% to 90% after
completion of 2 to 9 years of service.

When there are employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, in accordance with the rules
of the scheme, the forfeited employers’ contributions arising
from members terminating employment before becoming fully
vested are allocated to the benefit of the remaining members
instead of being used to reduce the future contributions of
the employers.

All qualified Hong Kong employees who commenced
employment on or after 1 September 2000 are members of
the second defined contribution scheme which has been set
up in accordance with the guidelines of Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Both the employers and
employees contribute 5% of relevant income (limited to
HK$1,250 before 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500 from 1 June
2014) to the scheme each month. The assets of the second
defined contribution scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

13 Directors’ and senior management’s 13 EERGREEAENSE

emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEM <
Directors’ emoluments comprise of the payments to directors EENEeBRASERAARE
of the Company by the Group in connection with the EEEAEBREEM N2
management of the affairs of the Group. The emoluments of Lo ZREBEBFEZMe TEEWERE
each of the directors exclude amounts received from the ARafBRARA RN FAR
subsidiaries of the Company and paid to the Company. The Bl HIB - ARNAIES 2 e W
emoluments of the directors of the Company are as follows: T

Basic salaries,

allowances Inducement or
and benefits-  Discretionary Provident fund compensation 2015 Total
Name of director Director’s fees in-kind bonuses  contributions fees  emoluments
EARHH -
RERED 20156
EspnR ESne lE: MEEAL LAREHR HDIAHR mesE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR

Executive Directors HTES
Han Xiaosheng @ B A R
Liu Bing L

Liu Hongwei 2%

Liu Guosheng 206

Non-executive Directors ¥ #{TEZ

Qin Dingguo EZEH
Zheng Dong g
Zhao Yingwei @ HHEE®
Qi Zixin Ef&

Independent Non-executive BV EHTES

Directors
Liu Jipeng (@)4) %\J i m% )4)
Cai Hongping ? EHEO
Yan Fashan @ BAE
Lo Wa Kei, Roy EERO
Total — 2015 @R _2015F
Notes: B E
(1)  Chief Executive Officer 1) A
(2)  Member of the Remuneration Committee 2 FHEZEEKE
(3)  Member of the Audit Committee B BEZREZEEKE
4)  Member of the Nomination Committee 4 RBEZBEBEKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

13 Directors’ and senior management’s 13 EEREREEBEAEME
emoluments (Continued) (#8)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ EEM e w
Basic salaries,
allowances Inducement or
and benefits- Discretionary ~ Provident fund ~ compensation 2014 Total
Name of director Director’s fees in-kind bonuses contributions fees emoluments
EARGH -
REREY 20146
B 2k Wigs WL AReMHR  RBSHE Be@E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL EETL BETL BETT BETT BETL

Executive Directors HITES

Han Xiaosheng (1214)6) ﬁ? ﬁ H (12)4)6) _ _ _ _ _ _
Liu Bing © 2k 0 _ _ _ _ _ _
Liu Hongwei © B3tz o — _ _ _ _ _
Liu Guosheng © 2|HFHO _ _ _ _ _ _
Fok Kin Ning, Canning @@ EEgen 87 = = = — 87
Lai Kai Ming, Dominic BapeR 0 67 _ _ _ _ 67
Tsui Kin Tung, Tony " mEgoen 67 1,880 1,929 322 = 4,198
Chow Woo Mo Fong, Susan ' B #& 5= 7 67 _ _ _ _ 67
Edith Shin @ MR 67 _ _ _ _ -

Non-executive Directors 3 {TE=

Qin Dingguo @ ESlcily - _ _ _ _ _
Zheng Dong © # O - _ _ _ _ _
Zhao Yingwei ©© iz ee - _ _ _ _ _
Qi Zixin © E7E0 = — —_ _ _ _
Ronald Joseph Arculi " EifEg e 135 = = - - 135

Independent Non-executive BYEHTES

Directors
Liu Jipeng 3)416) %\] i m% (3)4)6) 19 — — — — 19
Cai Hongping *® B o 19 - - - - 19
Yan Fashan @4 BAE A 19 - - - - 19
Lo Wa Kei, Roy @ EEHOO 19 = = = = 19
Kwan Kai Cheong 4 R & @ 154 - - - - 154
Lam Lee G, 260 o i 2o 154 _ _ _ _ 154
Lan Hong Tsung, David ” ERE0 67 - - - - 67
Total — 2014 BE2014F 941 1,880 1,929 322 - 5,072
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

13 EERGREERAENME

13 Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued) (4#)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ EEME W@
Notes: Bt 5
(1) Chief Executive Officer 1  H#BE
2)  Member/former member of the Remuneration Committee @ FHZEEKE BIKE
@) Member/former member of the Audit Committee @ BHREEEKE RIKE
@) Member of the Nomination Committee @ REZEEKE
(5)  Director’s fee received from the Company’s subsidiaries have been G WHMEARARNBARKNEEHE
paid to the Company and are not included in the amounts above SESNFAAR U AABEE
FaRIER
(6)  Appointed with effect from 28 November 2014 6) H2014F11 A28 EZ T
(7)  Resigned with effect from 19 December 2014 (7)  F2014512 A19B B £

(b)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include no (2014: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note
13(a) to the financial statements. The emoluments payable to
the five (2014: remaining four) individuals for the year are as
follows:

(b)

REZE2015%F K 2014412 31 H
IEFE TEEEHEXREN
EI A% -

FfuGREMEAL

EAFEASENERS ZAM
AT WE(20145F : — i) E
B2 E RMEARGIEHREM T
13@) 2 DTN - RAFERENMT T
AAL(2014F : H T AL Z
B < a0

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Basic salaries, allowances and EREH - EMRE Y
benefits-in-kind 3,116
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAL 1,046
Provident fund contributions NESHK 303
4,465
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

13 Directors’ and senior management’s 13 EERSREEAEHS
emoluments (Continued) (&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) b) ENERESHME AL @
The emoluments of the five (2014: remaining four) individuals REEZEEMEZ ALTH - Al
with the highest emoluments for the year fall within the (2014%F : A THAL) AT 2B 2
following bands: JB 7T %1 S B 6 [

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
Emolument bands HK$’000 HK$’'000
E2 BET T BT T
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 7 % 2,500,001 ST &= 7 ¥
3,000,000 7% _
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 75 51,500,001 7T & A& I
2,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 75 1,000,001 7T &= & &
1,500,000 7T 1
< HK$1,000,001 7 11,000,001 JT LA T 2
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no RELE2015F & 2014F 12 431 H IEF
emoluments were paid by the Group for any of the directors ER  AEEBMERARRBERNES
of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an HAMN e e AT FERBEE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as ARSI E N AL Bk in AR & E &
compensation for loss of office. RSB S IE ABER R (E o

130 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y% - B RKRE
Furniture,
Freehold Construction Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land in progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
XAFE RE EE
it EEIR BF HENEEE RERRE AE X
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

BT  E%TR  B%TR BT  E%TR  EBTR  BETx

Cost A

At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 18 64,512 121,373
Exchange translation differences & i, % %8 - (443)
Additions 2 658,040 664,998
Disposals and write off & R8s - (392)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31H 722,552 785,536

Accumulated depreciation B EREE
and impairment

At 1 January 2015 m201561A1H
Exchange translation differences  [& ¥ = %48
Charge for the year (Note 6) AEEHRE (fiz6)

Disposals and write off 6 R 8

At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 318

Net book value REEE

At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31H 778,931
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

14 Y% - B RZHE @

Furniture,
Freehold  Construction Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
land in progress Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
KAFEME HE-EE
T TEEIR BF HENEEE RERSE pa= k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT T BET T BT T BRI BETT BETT
Cost R
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H — — 4,388 648 2,164 804 8,004
Exchange translation differences  [E ¥ 58 - = (43) ) (18) (8) (79)
Common control combinations £ [ 2 1 4 4
(Note 28) (P +£28) 42,382 64,512 - 682 1,219 2,803 111,598
Additions bk} - - - — 1,858 - 1,858
Disposals and write off & R 3H = = - - (12) - (12)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 42,382 64,512 4,345 1,324 5211 3,599 121,373
Accumulated depreciation R MERRAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 818 - - 495 328 1,805 562 3,185
Exchange translation differences & 5, % 58 = = @) @ 17 @ (26)
Common control combinations 2t @12 & & 6
(Note 28) (BizE28) - - - 23 100 253 376
Charge for the year (Note 6) REEHE (HzEe) - - 216 134 161 63 574
Disposals and write off & R - - - - (12) = (12)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 8318 - - 708 478 2,037 874 4,097
Net book value IR EFE
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) 72014412 531 H
(mE3) 42,382 64,512 3,637 846 3,174 2,725 117,276
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

15 Investment Properties 15 REWE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT
Valuation/cost CR=Pg %N
At 1 January ®W1H1H 1,029,872 1,039,946
Additions 158 208,875 —
Reclassified from properties under development B 2 £ E#H H A
(Note 19) (P 5E19) 448,650 —
Exchange translation differences MR EH (60,380) (10,074)
At 31 December M12 A31H 1,627,017 1,029,872
Notes: B 5
(@  The Group’s investment properties comprise: @ AEENREVMESSE:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Shanghai, the PRC — Office units (i) FEEE— HAREA() 984,024 1,029,872
Los Angeles, the U.S. — Commercial properties (i) 5= B1)& 42 B — 75 8 4 2 (i)
— Freehold land — KA ZERE i 534,489 —
— Construction costs and capitalised expenditures — — & & gk 748 | & A~ b 5 52 103,292 -
— Interest expenses capitalised —BARF ERAX 5,212 —

1,627,017 1,029,872
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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15 Investment Properties (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

)

The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for
investment properties. These fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs to valuation techniques used.

15 RE Y % @)

Quoted prices

in active

markets for

identical
assets
Level 1

HEEEE
WS

DFPEEER

Fair value hierarchy

At 31 December 2015 RK20154F12 A31 H

Office units — PRC

At 31 December 2014

Office units — PRC

w1E

R
HK$’'000
BT T

BeE - (&)

(@)

()

@

= 1,029,872

TRITBERABREMEZRELE
RNFEEFAEDT - WELQTF(E
Bt ERBEHEERTAMERZ
BAEMRAFEESRFOE
> ENEE Sl

Significant
other Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
Level 2 Level 3 Total
HMWEEW EENARA
AE R A BRE@A
i £¢
Ho E3R e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEFT BETT

984,024

1,029,872

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers into/out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

As at 31 December 2015, the office units in the PRC have been
valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, professional valuers.
The fair value of the investment properties was determined based
on, amongst other things, comparable market transactions, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

The valuations are derived using the income capitalisation method.
This method is based on the capitalisation of net income with due
allowance for outgoings and reversionary income potential by
adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from
analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing
investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing market rents
adopted in the valuation are referenced to valuers’ view of recent
lettings, within the subject properties and other comparable
properties.
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AEENRRBENBEEEE Z(F
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HR2015% 12 A31H » HEMAE
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RAREITHE REMEZR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15 Investment Properties (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)
(i) (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements on office units in the
PRC based on Level 3 fair value hierarchy:

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique inputs

EZHAAERE
&8 % BAHE

Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

15 RE Y % @)

Bt : ()

Fair value at
31 December
W12H31H
2AYEME
Description
it 2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Harbour Ring Plaza 839,732
B RS
Harbour Ring leralis 190,140
Huangpu Centre
7 e R R

Income capitalisation | Capitalisation rate

method
WABARL T % BARAp &
Rental rate
Hex

Income capitalisation | Capitalisation rate

method
WAB AT & AR R
Rental rate
Hex

@ (&

0) (#&)
FHEBRBERATFEEFEIER2T
BEMAZEMNAFEEAESE
*

Range of significant
unobservable inputs Relationship of
ERNTIRE unobservable inputs to
BARBHE fair value
ENTE 23PN ¢
2015 2014 HEATEENBE
8.5% | The higher the
capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
ERfbEHEs BATF
BEBE
GLlEgRDEZPIES RMB130-220/ | The higher the rental rate,
month/sq.m. month/sg.m. the higher the fair value
B¥EK BYAR | HexEs ART
BAARY ESHPN:S BEMLR
130t £220t RRIpHEYZ0hY
8.5% 8.5% | The higher the
capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
BERfbEHS - BAF
BEBE
RMB80-200/ RMB80-200/ | The higher the rental rate,
month/sq.m. month/sg.m. the higher the fair value
B¥HK BYAK | HEXEs AT
BAARY BAARE BESR
80T £200T EIENIYH

(ii) The investment properties in the U.S. are under construction and
their fair value is not reliably measureable due to significant
uncertainty as to its future cash flows. Accordingly, the investment
properties are carried at cost. The fair value is expected to become
reliably measureable when the construction is completed.

(i

th

EXEERREMENAFEEE
AR EFE REASEBRRAS
MEFEERTEENL - Bt
BREMEREATE - R F(EE
TRHIN R e BE A SE ST E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

16 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments.

16 HE Lt K+t fE HE

AEEREEL R L EREZ#E
BRBMNREHENR-

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Net book value BREFE
At 1 January M1A1H 1,682
Exchange translation differences fEH =5 (16)
Amortisation (Note 6) 54 (fY7E6) (56)
At 31 December M®12A31H 1,610
17 Available-For-Sale Financial Assets 17 I HECHKEEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed debt securities, at fair value tHEBES  BRAFEE
— overseas — &4 669,670 678,536
— Hong Kong — &5 8,223 —
Listed equity securities, at fair value FTRERS  BRATFEE
— overseas — g 15,242 —
— Hong Kong — BB 952,689 —
1,645,824 678,536

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

AHHECHMBEEATIEEE
|:

HKS$ S
US$ ETT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
952,689 —
693,135 678,536
1,645,824 678,536
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

18 Prepayment and Other Receivables 18 FA{I FRIE K H fih fE Yt ;1B
Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Non-current portion FEREIB D
Prepayments for construction of power plants & =% 2% & i 2 8 (- 7 18
(Note a and Note 31(d)) (Fff 5 a K Bt 5231(d)) 116,184
Loan and interest receivables from El—ENBATRREZER
shareholders of a subsidiary N F B (M 5 b X Bt 5£31(g))
(Note b and Note 31(g))
— Shanghai Electric Power Construction —EBENERER
Co., Ltd. = Raa/NG| 30,153 28,238
— PT. Garda Sayap Garuda —PT. Garda Sayap Garuda 64,840 60,725
Prepaid insurance for property development ¥ %3 EIE R 2 AR E
project 40,388 =

Others HAh 4,740 217

Total non-current portion FERE)F 2 A 579,463 205,364

Current portion 7 B 2B o

Deposit paid for the acquisition of land WM 2 BN iEe

in the U.S. (Note 33(b)) (B 7E33(0b)) 116,266 —
Prepaid insurance for property development WX #ERIE R 2 AN RE
project 21,168 —

Other interest receivables H th JE L FI 2 12,243 17,287

Amounts due from related parties (Note 31(g)) /& Uk 8 B 75 78 (M 7531(g)) 13,004 14,154

Others Hib 29,492 21,272

Total current portion il ke 192,173 52,713

Notes: B & -

(@)  The balance represents advance payments made to Shanghai Electric @@ EZNBEEBNRENEN B EREE R
Power Construction Co., Ltd (“SEPC”), a non-controliing shareholder of a TERLBRERMA —MHE QA H0
subsidiary, for the procurement and installation of equipment and —ERRERESENEXBERE
machineries for the power plant projects in Indonesia. FERBI([SEPC]) {EH 2 FAfI 3K
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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18 Prepayment and Other Receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

The loan and interest receivables are due from SEPC and PT. Garda
Sayap Garuda (“PT.GSG”), non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the loan to SEPC and
PT.GSG was HK$27,129,000 (2014: HK$27,110,000) and
HK$59,101,000 (2014: HK$59,060,000), respectively. The interest
receivables from SEPC and PT.GSG were HK$3,024,000 (2014:
HK$1,128,000) and HK$5,739,000 (2014: HK$1,665,000) respectively.
The loans and interest receivables are denominated in US$ and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The loan to PT.GSG was secured by the equity
interests owned by PT.GSG in the subsidiary and interest bearing at 7%
per annum. The loan to SEPC was unsecured and interest bearing at 7%
per annum.

No impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil).

19 Properties Under Development

18 FENRERHEMEVRIE®

BeE - (88)

()

BB RFEERMNE QR ZIERE
fi% B% = SEPC & PT.Garda Sayap Garuda
([PT.GSGJ) Yt Bu o R 20154 12 A 31
B fEUWSEPCKPT.GSGZ ER Z R M
B % B A& 7% # 27,129,000 7t (2014 £ :
75 #627,110,0007T ) K 74 # 59,101,000
JL (2014 4F : /& ¥59,060,0007C ) ° f&
W SEPC RPT.GSGZ F| B 9 Bl & 7 &
3,024,000 7T (2014 4 : # % 1,128,000
JT) K % #5,739,000 7T (2014 £ : & #&
1,665,00070) ° xS W E R KL F B TY
NETHE YEBTERB- BT
PT.GSG 2 & F I PT.GSG X #% it B A 7]
ZRAEEIR AR WIRT%FEF KT E »
B FSEPCZERAEEMA  WIR7%F
M=FE -

RE E2015F12 A31 B Ik & & 1 £ i
RO E RS (2014 4F « #) o

19 BIEE AR Y £

At 1 January ®m1A1H
Addition during the year FRZAE

Common control combinations (Note 28)
Exchange differences
Reclassified to investment properties (Note 15)

bE L =5

HRZF & o (M 5E28)

EMDBEEREWE(HE15)

At 31 December

M®12A31H

Restated

&7

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
1,524,403 —
1,729,361 58,296
- 1,471,107

(915) —
(448,650) —
2,804,199 1,524,403
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

19 Properties Under Development (Continued) 19 AR FYWEwm

Properties under development comprise: HERYEBTE
Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ok v
Los Angeles, the U.S. 3 B8 42 1
— Freehold land —KAFEREL M 901,151 1,436,688
— Construction cost and capitalised —BERARANRE RN R
expenditure 404,463 86,736
— Interest expense capitalised —BEARF B 8,787 979
Freehold land in Hawaii, the U.S. EFEERRZ KAREL
— Freehold land —KAFERELTH 1,488,625 -
— Acquisition cost capitalised — BRI EE A A 1,173 —
2,804,199 1,524,403
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the properties R2015412 A31H K 2014%F12 8318 -
under development are expected to be completed and recovered RAERYEFRAER —FEBETRK
after one year. [B] 5K I8 ©
Properties under development are reclassified to investment PAE R B R T S M AB FE BS B B0 P Bt A
properties based on the floor areas, which will be held for rental B HAERAMESBEEERBEES
income or capital appreciation purposes when the related DERREME AR BIEESHE
development plan is approved by the relevant regulatory authorities. SWAREREERS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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20 Trade Receivables

20 EWRERR

At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, trade receivables
represent rental receivables for which no credit terms have been
granted. At 31 December, the aging analysis of trade receivables,
net of provision and based on the date of invoices is as follows:

R2015F12 531 H K 2014412 A 31
H BUBERABARLEERZER
e -M12A318 LB ZERHH A%
I H0BR Bt 18 2 FE W BR SR BR e 9 AT 1A
T

0-30 days 0-30H
31-60 days 31-60H

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
1,745

19

1,764

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables. The trade
receivables included in the above aging analysis are considered not
impaired (2014: Nil) as these relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of the trade receivables. The Group does not hold any
collateral securities.

21 Loan to a Related Party

380 HA e KRR B AR URER I B - R RS
k22 E8BURFRBYTEERSD
8 FABRER D T B IE N BRI
TR BB A (20145 : &) -

RAHE BN HFKEERRSEKR
TR FEE AKELERFBLM
HHRY

21 ERTHEAL

Loan to PT China Oceanwide Indonesia
(“PTCOQI"), a fellow subsidiary (Note 31)

[\ — & R & if /8 2 5] PT China
Oceanwide Indonesia ([PTCOI)
fEH 2 B3 (Mf7E31)

Restated

el

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
120,057
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21

22

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Loan to a Related Party (continued) 21

The loan is repayable in one year after drawdown date and interest
bearing at 7% per annum. There is no collateral for this loan.

The loan was fully repaid in October 2015.

Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

EXTHEAT@

ZEFRABRDRAME-FAEE"
BI%F N KRG B - ZE XYL E KM

[}
on °

ZERENR2015F10 A BEEE -

Cash and Bank Deposits 22 BERBITHERK
Restated
el
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bank deposits with maturity less than K= A AR ERITHER 398,656 2,558,651

three months

Cash at banks and on hand RITEREFERS 680,752 120,075
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 1,079,408 2,678,726
Restricted cash (Note) SR 4138 & () 26,353 26,335
Bank deposits with maturity over three months 238 =& B 2| 8 2 SR 177 & - 320,931
Cash and bank deposits e R|ITENX 1,105,761 3,025,992

Note:

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, bank deposit of
HK$26,353,000 and HK$26,335,000 respectively, was secured for a bank
guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the Group in favour of PT Perusahaan
Listrik Negara (Persero) (“PLN”), an Indonesia state owned limited liability
company. The guarantee is required under a power purchase agreement signed
between PLN and a the subsidiary of the Company.

Bank balances of HK$186,150,000 (2014: HK$806,034,000) are
denominated in Renminbi and are placed with banks in the PRC.
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
The remaining bank balances are mainly denominated in HK$ or
USS$.

GEE

M20154 12 A31H K2014F12A318 &
7| & 7 ¥ 26,353,000 7T & 7% ¥ 26,335,000 7T 2
BOFEREERERREE —HENBE AR M
PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero) ([PLN] -
—HEEREEERAR)RBHZRITERZE
o ZERIIBPLNEAR L F —FEKH B A F%
EZBEBEBRE -

7 #186,150,000 7T (2014 F : & &
806,034,0007T) Z R1T & R A A R &
A EMGEREFRBZET - BZEE
© 0E AR BB AR BT ONEE B 2
MR- B TIRITEBREZE BB NRE
JLEHE °
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23

24

Deposits Received, Other Payables and
Accruals

Included in deposits received, other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2015 are payables and accrual for construction costs of
HK$136.9 million (2014: Nil), rental deposits received of HK$29.4
million (2014: HK$28.4 million) and consideration payable to a
fellow subsidiary for acquisition of subsidiaries of HK$287.5 million
(2014: Nil). The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within the next twelve months from the date of statement of
financial position.

As at 31 December 2014, the balances included amounts due to
related parties of HK$4.0 million and loan and interest payables to
related parties of HK$45.1 million, of which HK$39.8 million was
unsecured, interest bearing at 11.5% and had no fixed terms of
repayment. The remaining balances of HK$5.3 million were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
related to the same fiscal authority.

(@  The gross movement in the deferred income tax liabilities is

23

24

EWZE - HiES IR
RESER

R2015F12A31H  BlZ & Eb
FENREREFEESEREZKAE
2 e ERIE R HEET I8 B B % 1.36918
(201445 &) BURBEEKRS B
2,940 8 JT (20144 : 7 ¥2,8408 T )
R ENE AR EMN—ER RN B
RN Al Z KB ¥2.87518 7Tt (2014 4F ¢
) BB AERT  RERAR
AR RABHEr —EARNEE-

R2014F12A31H A& &% B8 1&
JE - B8 A £ 3RS 84008 T & B
HBEEALTEREF B BK45108
gL HA B #3,0808 T AERKME - %
ME5%FTEW LR BERTERBH - K
BRERBESETTAERE 28K
BAREREEE -

IESEFR & A
EEBEREANTENSRE SN
HEERRPMEHRABEHBELE
A FE P15 B0 RS B[R] — B R R B
BEMEHAEEERBERN THHE-

(@) EEMBEHEAEBEAZHIOT

as follows:
Restated
K&
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January ®1A1H8 190,441 177,860
Exchange translation differences PE N ZR (10,973) (2,825)
Common control combinations (Note 28) H[FEE H A o (Fi 5E28) - 3,400
Reversal of deferred tax liability upon R EKRENBRRZ
distribution of profits from subsidiaries F B EDRERBAE (7,440) =
Charge to income statement (Note 7) P 2 R 0BR (M EE7) 6,974 12,006
At 31 December M12 A31H 179,002 190,441
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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24 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 24 EEFMEHIE@®
(b)  Analysis of net deferred income tax (assets) and liabilities: b) EIEMEMBE(EE)NBEFHE
D
Changes in
Accelerated fair value of Other
Tax tax investment temporary
losses depreciation properties differences Total
REME
b0 B E DFEE Hity
BEEE neE 2E ERESR mam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2015 20151 A1H

(Restated) (& =5) (2,953) 123,597
Exchange translation N Z8

differences (7,590) (3,261) (10,973)
(Credit)/charge to income R zE & (Gt A),/

statement Hk (9,797) 8,664 6,974

Reversal of deferred tax i =R
liability upon distribution N Al M 1R

of profits from subsidiaries [ i {EF{ T8 & f& (7,440)
At 31 December 2015 RW2015F 12 A31H (12,750) 124,671 179,002
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1 A1H — 115,950 58,097 3,813 177,860
Exchange translation EXER

differences — (1,065) (1,598) (162) (2,825)
(Credit)/charge to income a2 (5FA),/

statement ok (492) 8,712 - 3,786 12,006
Common control HREHE 6

combinations (Note 28) (ByzE28) (2,461) — — 5,861 3,400
At 31 December 2014 R2014%E12 A31H

(Restated) (B 7)) (2,953) 123,597 56,499 13,208 190,441
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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24 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

(©

The investment properties are held within a business model
with the objective to substantially realise all of the economic
benefits embodied in the properties over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses carried forward to the extent it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. The
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative unused tax losses of approximately
HK$111,607,000 (2014: HK$106,626,000). These amounts
can be carried forward indefinitely, except for Indonesian tax
losses of approximately HK$597,000 (2014: HK$1,005,000)
which can be carried forward for 25 years.

24 EFE Fr 15 B IE )

€ BREMEUBEEAFE BH
I 3F 235 38 th & T 2 B B R A
ERRENEMBEN@REBD

44578 )25

d WREFMBASEE BRKEHK
SIS ERFEAE Ml £ BEE
MABAREEE BIRESE X
AR BERERELTHEH
BE - AEETERZTASH
i T8 5 48 49 % 111,607,000 7T
(20144 : 7 # 106,626,000 7T ) F&
RELCHBEE -ZSSHEAE
IR HR 45 82 - M 498 #597,0007C
(2014 4 : 7% 1,005,0007T) Z EN
fE i TH B 1R {2 ] 45 B 25 4F o

25 Share Capital 25 B
Amount
Number of -l
shares HK$ 000
vk =] BT T
Authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at 72201441 A1 H - 20154 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
1 January 2014, 1 January 2015 and 1A1H K&2015F 128318 2
31 December 2015 SEREEBEOATZET
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR :
At 1 January 2014 and 1 January 2015 M20145%1 A1 H k20154 8,968,140,707 896,814
1H1H
Issue of shares BTG 1,7983,628,000 179,363
At 31 December 2015 R20154F12 A31H 10,761,768,707 1,076,177
On 11 May 2015, an aggregate of 1,793,628,000 new shares were R2015F5 811 H & #* % 17

issued for a total consideration of HK$1,723,676,508 (representing
HK$0.961 per share). Issuance expense of HK$8,752,000 was
netted off against share premium.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

26 Bank and Other Loans

26 RITREMER

RITLEMERDFTAOT

The analysis of bank and other loans is as follows:

Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ok v
Bank loans, secured (Note a) RITEF - BHEF(MEa) 1,317,670 137,970
Other loan, secured (Note b) HEMER  BEA(HED) 240,281 —
1,557,951 137,970
Current portion B EB 5 (1,317,670) (137,970)
Non-current portion EREE D 240,281 —
Notes: ek :

(@) As at 31 December 2015, the Group had two (2014: one) bank loans as

below.

A bank loan with a carrying amount of HK$542,570,000 (2014:
137,970,000) secured by standby letter of credit in favour of a bank.

Another bank loan with a carrying amount of HK$775,100,000 (2014: Nil)

secured by:

i) a guarantee provided by the Company’s intermediate holding

company; and

(ii) certain investment shares held by the Company’s intermediate

holding company.

Both loans are denominated in the US$ and bear interest rate at London
Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a specific margin per annum.

R2015F12A318  "REFEHEA AT
M (20145 : —%)BTER -

— S IR E &7 542,570,000 7T (2014
£F @ 75 #137,970,0007T) 2 RITE R T
N—HMBRTEIHEAZERARERAEE
A o

5 —Z£ KR EE A B %775100,0007T
(20144 : &) ZRITERTANA T A
YEHEHA -

() ARARREAERARRERZE
"R

(i) AARREERARZEEZET
BERKGD -

M E R R AR TRHE L R fa BURTT
R%HFE (TRBERTREFE D ML
ENBEEZFEFFE
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26 Bank and Other Loans (Continued) 26 RITREMER @

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Other loan is secured by:
(i) freehold land (included in properties under development and

investment properties) with total carrying value of
HK$1,435,640,000 (2014: HK$1,436,688,000);

(ii) development expenditures (included in properties under
development and investment properties) amounting to
HK$507,755,000 (2014: HK$86,736,000);

(iii) all fixed assets held by the borrowing subsidiary; and

(iv) a guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the Group and a

Company’s intermediate holding company.

The loan is denominated in the US$ and bears interest at 1.8% per
annum.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as

Bt : (&)
(o) EAMERBAIATSIAELR

[0} 48 BF T 5 /& 75 1 1,435,640,000 7T
(2014 4 : 7 #1,436,688,000 7T )
ZOKAEEL W (GTARZHY
ERIREME)

(ii) A B B 507,755,000 7T (2014
£ 1 75 #586,736,0007T) 2 F ¥ X
HGEARBERMEREENE):

iy EXNBRAFEZAEEEER
E Rk

(v) AEEHBRERARQ RS REIE
R EREZER -

% B 3R A X 7T AHE IR FF I T 1.8%
B o

N

MR2015F12 A31H - REB EEREE

follows: N
Restated
K E 5
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bank loans — within one year RITER— —FNR 1,317,670 137,970
Other loan — between 2 and 5 years HWER—Z—EZRF 240,281 =
Total Et 1,557,951 137,970

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in US$.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had undrawn banking facilities
amounting to HK$434,056,000 (2014: HK$620,080,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

27 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 27 ZREBRERERME

Cash Flows
(@  Reconciliation of operating profit to cash (used in)/generated @ KLEMBHEARGTREXAN B
from operating activities before finance costs, tax paid and MBEREEESHEP 2 K8 %
changes in working capital: BA)/MEEZRSHE:
Restated
K5 7|
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Operating profit # e F 152,888 117,411
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income ) Bz (88,516) (76,594)
Dividend income % Bz (4,033) —
Gain on listed debt securities I EBES NG = (7,440)
Gain on disposal of listed equity securities HE FRIRERS ZHE (12,688) —
Gain on initial recognition of BHAERAHNEZ
available-for-sale financial assets MBEE TG (68,700) —
Depreciation of property, plant and W WERBREZITE
equipment 2,053 574
Amortisation of leasehold land and land THE L &t b (F A
use rights 2 5 55 56
(18,941) 34,007
(b)  Changes in working capital: (b) EE;
Restated
K5
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok v
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other JiE U BR 3R K B A JiE U 3R
receivables, deposits and prepayments - ke MR RIE
(& 1n), B (141,466) 20,096
Increase in properties under development 3% m W EE 12N (1,572,963) (563,296)
Increase in deposits received, BliES - Efh S FIE
other payables and accruals K FEETIE B 1 180,243 105,093
(1,534,186) 71,893
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28 Common Control Combinations

On 22 October 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Oceanwide Real Estate International
Investment Company Limited (“OREII”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “LA Group”) and an assignment of a shareholder loan from
China Oceanwide Group Limited (“COG”), an intermediate holding
company, at a total consideration of HK$1,670.8 million (“US
Consideration”). The LA Group is engaged in the business of
residential and commercial property development in Los Angeles,
the U.S..

The US Consideration comprised HK$1,476.6 million for the 100%
equity interest in OREIl and the assignment of a loan of HK$194.2
million previously provided by COG to the LA Group repayable by
the Group to COG. The US Consideration was fully settled during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

On 28 December 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in China Oceanwide Power Co., Limited
(“COP”), which owns 60% equity interest in PT Mabar Elektrindo,
the operating subsidiary (collectively the “Mabar Group”) and an
assignment of a shareholder loan from China Oceanwide
International Investment Company Limited (“COIl"), a fellow
subsidiary, at a total consideration of HK$287.5 million (“Indonesian
Consideration”). The Mabar Group is engaged in the business of
coal power plant generation in Indonesia.

The Indonesian Consideration comprised HK$282.2 million for the
100% equity interest in COP and the assignment of a loan of
HK$5.3 million previously provided by COIl to the Mabar Group
repayable by the Group to COIl. The Indonesian Consideration has
not been settled as at 31 December 2015.

The Company has been ultimately controlled by Tohigh since 6
November 2014. As the LA Group and the Mabar Group are also
ultimately controlled by Tohigh, the aforesaid acquisitions are
regarded as business combinations under common control by
applying the principles of merger accounting in accordance with
AG 5 as if the acquisitions had occurred on the date when the
combining entities first came under the control of the substantial
shareholder. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities acquired in the
common control combinations are stated at their carrying amounts
as if they had been held or incurred by the Group from the later of
6 November 2014, the date on which the combining entities first
came under the control of the substantial shareholder, or the
relevant transactions giving rise to the assets or liabilities arose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

28 Common Control Combinations (Continued) H# [E) 1§ 5 6 @)
In accordance with AG 5, the comparative amounts of the financial BIEEstIES| F55 AEEFFHRE

PR RSBESEY A RIASE
EMabark B 2 B 53k - Btk %5
WS R ERERNTERELES

statements of the Group have been restated to include the financial
statement items of the LA Group and the Mabar Group. The effects
of the acquisitions on and hence, the restated items in the

comparative financial statements are summarised below: VRERER R (T
(@)  Effects on the consolidated statement of financial position as @ ¥ R2014 ¢ 1 2B31H & 4 B 18
at 31 December 2014: 0=
Consolidation Consolidation
adjustment adjustment
Acquisition  Acquisition for the for the Mabar
As previously of the of the LA Group Group
reported LA Group Mabar Group (Note) (Note) As restated
FLASE HiMabarkE
W iE W B ZEERAE ZHREeRAR
o0 5t BT 2 3R LA%E MabarkHE (Fff %) (B %) KE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T BETT BT Nk e BB T BETT
Non-current assets JERE)EE
Property, plant and ¥ 3 - #28 &
equipment B 6,054 3,526 107,696 — — 117,276
Investment properties 1% & ¥ 3 1,029,872 — — — — 1,029,872
Leasehold land and & £t %
land use rights -+ 3 {5 R A 1,610 — — — — 1,610
Available-for-sale AHEHEHEZ
financial assets B EE 678,536 — — — — 678,536
Prepayments and TEHIE R
other receivables H b fE UL
RIE — - 205,364 — — 205,364
1,716,072 3,526 313,060 — — 2,032,658
Current assets REEE
Properties under FZER Y
development — 1,524,408 — — — 1,524,408
Trade receivables & Uk BR 3% 1,764 — — — = 1,764
Deposits, & - AR
prepayments and SR8 R H A
other receivables TE W k18 25,282 524 26,907 — — 52,713
Loan to a related BERF
party T BEAL = = 120,057 = — 120,057
Restricted cash SRR & — — 26,335 — — 26,335
Bank deposits with HBiE =& A
maturity over three  EI|Hi 2 $R 77
months T 320,931 — — — — 320,931
Cash and cash ReREE
equivalents EEY 2,605,580 11,415 61,731 — — 2,678,726
2,953,657 1,636,342 235,030 — — 4,724,929
Total assets EEHARE 4,669,629 1,539,868 548,090 — — 6,757,587
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28 Common Control Combinations (Continued) 28 HEEFE 6@

(@) Effects on the consolidated statement of financial position as @ HR2014F12A31HEATH
at 31 December 2014: (Continued) MRAKRHFE : (B)

Consolidation Consolidation
adjustment adjustment

Acquisition  Acquisition for the for the Mabar
As previously of the of the LA Group Group
reported LA Group Mabar Group (Note) (Note) As restated
FLAKE 3 Mabar%k
Wi g ZEEHAE ZREeAE
o %k Al 2 8 LA%XE MabarkH (B %) (B 7E) KEZ
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT  B%ETR BETT  B%Tn B%ETn
Equity =
Equity attributable to  Zx 2 & A% 3
shareholders of the  E{E#Ezs
Company
Share capital % A 896,814 388 283,235 (388) (2883,235) 896,814
Share premium R& 17 3% (B 2,612,756 1,472,982 = (1,472,982) — 2,612,756
Merger reserve SR — — — 1,481,705 276,150 1,757,855
Retained earnings and 1% 28 #15E &
other reserve H & 700,224 6,823 (8,058) (8,335) 7,085 697,739
4,209,794 1,480,193 275177 — — 5,965,164
Non-controlling R ER
interests 162,627 — 100,885 — — 263,512
Total equity A 4,372,421 1,480,193 376,062 — — 6,228,676
Non-current ERBEME
liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities & XE F 15 7% 18
B& 186,346 4,095 — — — 190,441
186,346 4,095 — — — 190,441
Current liabilites R E& &
Deposits received, BlES
other payables and  E #f [iE < 3k
accruals 18 & FE 5T
5 B 76,559 55,580 34,058 — = 166,197
Bank loans MITER = = 137,970 = = 137,970
Tax payables P&~ R IR 34,303 — — — — 34,303
110,862 55,580 172,028 — — 338,470
Total liabilities EEEH 297,208 59,675 172,028 — — 528,911
Total equity and EEREE
liabilities 4mEE 4,669,629 1,539,368 548,090 — — 6,757,587
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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28 Common Control Combinations (Continued) 28 HEEFE 6@

() Effect on consolidated income statement and other (b) & =2014F 128318 Ikt F &
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December GHAEWREEMEIERREROE
2014: 2.

Consolidation Consolidation
As Acquisition Acquisition of  adjustmentfor  Adjustment for

previously of the LA the the LA Group the Mabar Group  Adjustment
reported Group  Mabar Group (Note) (Note) (Note 5) As restated
PMLAEE # Mabar £ &
W i ZIRARE ZERERE HE
MERMEHR KWELAKE Mabar & & (P &) (P 3E) (B 5E5) RE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB T BETT BB T BETT BETT
Revenue LON 94,414 1 589 = = 76,004 171,008
Cost of sales $HE KR (16,955) - - - - = (16,955)
Gross profit ¥ 77,459 1 589 — — 76,004 154,053
Interest income B gz 76,004 - - - - (76,004) -
Other net losses Hin R E1E (4,215) — - - - - (4,215)
Administrative expenses 17 I & i (27,437) 818) (2,379) — - - (30,634)
Selling and distribution  $4€& & 2 $4 Ak A&
costs (1,793) - — - - - (1,793)
Profit before tax R %% A0 A 120,018 (817) (1,790) - _ — 117,411
Income tax expense Frig B it (22,271) (695) - - - - (22,966)
Profit for the year ERFH 97,747 (1,512) (1,790) = = = 94,445
Other comprehensive H i 2 F 2/
income/(expenses): (BI %) :
Items that may be HETRKERS
reclassified EZBHZ
subsequently to HE:
profit and loss:
Translating financial B INETE B 75
statements of foreign HRER2BE
operations:
— Losses taken to —FAREZ
reserves & 18 (12,514) - - - - - (12,514)
Available-for-sale financial & 4 i & 2
assets: BgEE:
— Net valuation —FAREZ
gains taken to ftfE
reserves IR 30,039 — — — — — 30,039
— Gains previously — BAERRR
in reserves @EEAZ
recognised in pERIEE YIS
income W a&
statement R (7,440) - - - - - (7,440)
Other comprehensive ~ FRKBRFIEE 2
income for the year, H 2 e as
net of tax* 10,085 — — — — — 10,085
Total comprehensive £ R 2 H W%
income for year Pk ) 107,832 (1,512) (1,790) — — — 104,530
Total comprehensive L\ FRE{h 2 2@
income attributable g 458 :
to:
Shareholders of the VNG| 3
Company 99,958 (1,612 973) - — — 97,473
Non-controlling interests ~ 3F 22 % & 25 7,874 — (817) — - - 7,057
107,832 (1,612) (1,790) - - - 104,530
* There was no tax effect on each component of the other comprehensive 3 HE2014F12A31BLEE £ 2
income for the year ended 31 December 2014. RS2 SERS D MERIEHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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28 Common Control Combinations (continued) 28 I [E 12 4§ & 6f &)
Note: Bt 3 -
The above consolidation adjustments eliminate the share capital, share premium, PG EAREEHBEE ZRA . IRMH i
retained earnings and other reserves of the combining entities against merger B REBNBEREMBEEES FHEEEHE =
reserve. The difference of HK$1,757,855,000 has been made to the merger H B HA1757,855,000t E RNEE M BHRERED
reserve in the consolidated financial statements. No other significant adjustments AMEERN TERERIES S HYEERNE
were made to the net assets and net profit or loss of any entities or businesses Mgl R EE RN B EEETEM
as a result of the common control combinations to achieve consistency of EERARBRNETSTHENGSE — -
accounting policies.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, upon completion of the common RE E2015F12A318 It FE - R T K&
control transactions, the considerations paid and payable of HK$1,476,584,000 RIEHZ % B zEERR2EEN
and HK$282,184,000 for the 100% equity interest in OREIl and COP respectively HETBREMIBIENERAESFZAREBEHK
were recognised and offset against the merger reserve. As at 31 December 1,476,584,000 7T & & # 282,184,000 7T E # 2
2015, the merger reserve amounted to a debit of HK$913,000 (2014: a credit of WK A G o R2015%F12 318 - A 64
HK$1,757,855,000) is recognised in the consolidated financial statements. fit i {8 77 82 58 78 #013,000 T (2014 F : E A
£ B8 75 %5 1,757,855,000 7T ) WA 4R & BA 75 SRk R
é‘?\J\ °
29 Capital Commitments 29 EXREE
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, capital commitments not R2015%F K 2014F 12 A31 H + REE
provided for were as follows: ZEREEMAT
Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Authorised but not contracted for: EHREBERENE
— Property, plant and equipment — xR HBERER 439,172 871,863
— Properties under development and —HEPYENKREME
investment properties 6,075,210 6,417,395
— Leasehold improvement —HEMEEE - 5,500
6,514,382 7,294,758
Contracted but not provided for: ERELBRBE -
— Property, plant and equipment — W B RERE 2,838,653 3,079,878
— Properties under development and —HABEPYERREME
investment properties 3,125,574 147,214
5,964,227 3,227,092
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Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

30 Operating Leases 30 KEHE
(@) At 31 December, the Group’s future aggregate minimum @ M12A318  AEERKEEME
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases in BEAAFHEHSCSHENRKE
respect of investment properties are as follows: W REBESEBELNT :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT ok v
Not later than one year HBE— 5 95,885 75,479
Later than one year and not later than —F2BRRAFUA
five years 171,541 130,658
Later than five years AFZ1%& 118,290 3,214
385,716 209,351
(b) At 31 December, the Group’s future aggregate minimum () M12A318 ' AEEFLYERIE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in A A EHERRRERMNZ
respect of properties are as follows: wEESBEWOT :
Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT ok b
Not later than one year BB —F 1,486
Later than one year and not later than —F2REAFUA
five years 2,766
4,252
31 Material Related Party Transactions 31 EXRBEAELXRS
The directors consider the ultimate holding company of the EERABEARA 2 & BIERRE FB
Company to be Tohigh, a company incorporated in the PRC, which B Z AR NP BEEMAY W EE
is ultimately controlled by Mr. Lu Zhigiang. R A AR o
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31 Material Related Party Transactions 31 EXBEAETRZ @
(Continued)
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the M BREREMSBMIBEEZN  F
following significant transactions were carried out with related NBEEAZEATHETUTEARS
parties during the year in the normal course of business at terms ZERG IR ERTEEBREPERS
determined and agreed by both parties: EHETRRAE ZIGRET:
(a) Sales of services (@) RBEE
Restated
45 7|
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Rental income charged to a fellow subsidiary  [a] — &5 & Z K8 A =
W B 2 18 & W as =
Tohigh Construction Company Limited* BEREARA A
(b) Purchases of services (b) FRIEEKE
Restated
4 & 7|
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’'000
BT T ok v
Rental expense charged by a fellow subsidiary [a] — & [ Z ki & A &) 3% -+
ZHERX
— PTCOI — PTCOI —
Purchase of consulting and technical support  [A] /il 2 i% A 7] BE B
from an intermediate holding company B R T 2 R
— Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd* —RBERRMNER
NAE 802
* for identification purpose only * EXaS ]
(c) Interest income (c) R E W=
Restated
=l
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BT T ok mubiv
Interest charge to M\ T %1 & 5 WER ) Al B
— PTCOI (Note 21) — PTCOI (Kt #£21) 204
— SEPC (Note 18) — SEPC (Kt 18) 1,128
— PT.GSG (Note 18) — PT.GSG (Fif 3% 18) 1,665

1 54 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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31 Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

31 EABEALIRZ @

(d) Construction cost paid to a non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries,

d XHFHEDRFEKR
BRRSEPCK H ¥ 2 F

SEPC and its subsidiary PT.SEPC PT.SEPC = Z &% i &
Restated
K ET
2015 2014
HK$' 000 HK$’000
BT T T I

Recognised in:

RTH&IRFER

— Property, plant and equipment (i) — W KB REE) 413,814 —
— Prepayments for construction of power —EBREER2EN
plants (i) and (i) FRIE (i) K (i) 439,342 116,184

Pursuant to construction contracts and the two
supplemental construction agreements signed with
SEPC and its subsidiary PT. Shanghai Electric Power
Construction (“PT.SEPC”) on 23 November 2015 at a
total consideration of US$431,930,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,347,900,000), SEPC and its subsidiary PT.SEPC
are engaged to provide all materials, parts, equipment
and construction equipment, transportation to sites
(including customs clearance) and ground investigation,
design and construction of transmission lines, other
labour services and to perform all works, activities and
services on a fixed lump sum turnkey basis for the

RIEEREZEXRED
&ﬁ%m&ﬁ%@ﬁr
Shanghai Electric Power
Construction ([PT.SEPC |) 7
mwiﬂﬂma 5 E 0 M
harzELHhz RaK
ﬁ%%w%m@ﬁﬂm%
A 7 #83,347,900,000 7T )
SEPC & H F A 8]PT.SEPC
EZEREmMEME - FT
B RERELREZE MR
LER(BREREE) Y

design, engineering, procurement, construction, B AR IE B -t BRI - BRET
commissioning, testing and completion of, and making ML REMES TR

good of defects in relation to the two coal fuel steam i 3 5% IR KB B
power plant facilities with net capacity of 150 megawatt & #AE RE R EKAR

each in Medan Industrial Area, North Sumatra,
Indonesia.

As at 31 December 2015, included in the total
construction cost paid of HK$740,379,000,
HK$413,814,000 (2014: Nil) and HK$326,565,000 (2014:
HK$116,184,000) was recognised as property, plant
and equipment and prepayments for construction of
power plants, respectively.

ENFEdb & FIE M & R 5 T
EERAFERS B R150K
REMmERKZETEER
Rt HETHEzREE
BT AE TE &8 RIR
1 WARTE W MERE o

#2m5¢12ﬁ31af
B8 & %K KBE
740,379,000 - B ¥
413,814,000 Jt (2014 4 :
& ) & 7B 326,565,000 70
(2014 4 : 7 # 116,184,000
7‘5)5 %IJ%W%%% 1

REBEBUARELXRZEER
Z?EHTAIE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

31 Material Related Party Transactions 31 EXBEAETRZ @

(Continued)

(d) Construction cost paid to a non- d XA FHEARFZER
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries, & RSEPCK H ¥+ 2 F
SEPC and its subsidiary PT.SEPC (Continued) PT.SEPC 2 22 5% FX 7 (#)
(i) Pursuant to pre-notice-to-proceed agreements signed i) MBREAEE-—FEWERF

between a subsidiary of the Group with SEPC, SEPC is EBASEPCE] iZ 2 78 % 1 T
engaged to procure the main equipment for the ANt % - SEPCHE Z B2 4%
construction of power plant in Banyuasin, South ERNEEE&HPALSES
Sumatera Province, Indonesia, for a total cash Banyuasin 7 5% % & i FT &
consideration of US$39,550,000 (equivalent to JEERHE BREKRE
approximately HK$306,600,000). As at 31 December /439,550,000 T (1 & »
2015, construction cost of HK$112,777,000 (2014: Nil) # 7 #306,600,0007T ) ° R
was recognised as prepayment for construction of 201512 H31H ' & XK
power plants. 7R ¥ 112,777,000 7 (2014
F EEBERAEERESE
R 2 TE T FRIR o

(e) Transfer of equity interest in PTCOI to e) MHERZEHBREH
coll ZE N PTCOI 2 IR &

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group W & 22015F12A318 Ik F

transferred its 10% equity interest in PTCOI amounted to B A& E MUK EE 217,000

HK$217,000 (2014: HK$217,000) to COIl at a consideration TR ERZEEEEEEEH

of HK$217,000. RPTCOIZ 10% % # & 8 & ¥
217,0007T (20144 : ##217,000
7T) e

() Key management compensation N EEEEANEFHMN
No transaction were made with the directors and senior FRN - BRRABSEZNZHME(E
management of the Company during the year other than the ZEBABHE) (BTERAKE
emoluments paid to them (being the key management 13)4h  EEARNANEEZER S
personnel compensation) as disclosed in Note 13. REBABETEMRS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

31 Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

(g) Year-end balances arising from related

party transactions

31 EXRBEATRZ @

Amounts due from/(to) related parties
(Note 18 and 23)
— Zhang Keming, director of a non
wholly-owned subsidiary (Note)
— PTCOQI, a fellow subsidiary (Note)

— China Oceanwide Power International
Co., Ltd, a fellow subsidiary (Note)

— SEPC, non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary (Note)
— PT. Satya Abadi Semesta,
a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary (Note)
— PT. SEPC, controlled by a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (Note)

— Shanghai Power Erection No. 2,
controlled by a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (Note)

Loan and interest receivables from non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
(Note 18)

— SEPC

— PT.GSG

Loan and interest payables to related parties
(Note 23)
— COG, an intermediate
holding company
— COll, a fellow subsidiary (Note)

9 BEATXSEEZE
EEIII:I ﬁ'%
Restated
K E 5
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BT BT
FEd () BE AL
8 (718 2 23)
— KA (—EEZEN B
RAIZES) (M) 1,161
—PTCOI(— [ & Z [} /B
AR (fF3E) 526
— China Oceanwide Power
International Co., Ltd
(—HRZRKEBR A
CBft 5 7,746
—SEPC(— RN B AR Z
FEFE R AR ) (P &) 848
—PT. Satya Abadi Semesta
(—FHWB AR ZIE
7 R A% 5D (Bt &) (1595)
—PT. SEPC (2 — & ki 8
NAEZIEERARR
ze i) (Bt &) 3,873
—Shanghai Power Erection
No. 2 (% — & [ & A A
2 FEVE IR AR R )
CBft 5 (3,873)
10,126
FE WL B 8 A B) FEIZR AR AR 3R
B RF L (HE18)
—SEPC 28,238
—PT.GSG 60,725
FEfSRE AT
B3R EFE (K sE23)
—HZEHE
(—HEEERRQA) 39,762
—HREZEBRBEE
(—HRRAMNBAR)
(P 7E) 5,307
PTERAERAT 201548 1D7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

31 Material Related Party Transactions

2
xR

(Continued)

(g) Year-end balances arising from related (9)
party transactions (Continued)
Loan to a related party (Note 21) BT EE AL (FE21)

— PTCOQI, a fellow subsidiary
NG

—PTCOI (— [ R & K /&

Consideration payable to a fellow subsidiary
for acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 23)

(Bt 5£23)

— COll

—FERZEEERRE

UL RE B B A R A —
RANMBARZRE

Note: Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

(h) Others

i. During the year, a subsidiary of the Group acted as
guarantor and provided guarantee on the
US$400,000,000 senior notes at an interest rate of
9.625% issued by Oceanwide Holdings International
2015 Co., Limited, a fellow subsidiary. The guarantee
was discharged in full in October 2015.

ii. As at 31 December 2014, a subsidiary of the Group
acted as guarantor and provided a guarantee on the
US$320,000,000 senior notes at an interest rate of
11.75% issued by Oceanwide Real Estate International
Holdings Company Limited, a fellow subsidiary. The
guarantee was discharged in full in October 2015.
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31 EABEALRZ @

BAIRBEEZHF
SR

Restated

KL E 5

2015 2014

HK$’' 000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

120,057

Mia SR ARER 2ERARER

HEZ - REEREAFEEMR

4
i

(hy Eft

FRAEE—FEHBR A
EBERA B2/ E
20158 R A Al (A & M B8
A &]) BT # 77 400,000,000 %
TT A R 59.625% 2 18 L E
BREER  ZERER
2015F 10 H T2 Bk o

R2014FE12 A31H ' & &
E—HEBRREAEER
A B ERRBEEERE
RAR(REK B AR A
¥ 17320,000,000 % 7T Al &=
B11.75% 2 18 % Z & 12
ER ZERD R2015F
10 A T2 MRER ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

32 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors
on 15 March 2016.

33 Subsequent Events

(@)

On 25 January 2016, the Company announced a proposed
rights issue to raise approximately HK$4,573,800,000 before
expenses by issuing 5,380,884,353 rights shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.85 per rights share on the basis of
one rights share for every two shares held by the
shareholders of the Company. The rights issue was
completed on 11 March 2016.

On 5 August 2015, the Company announced the acquisition
of certain parcels of land in New York at a consideration of
US$390,000,000. The land is intended to be developed into a
mixed use commercial and residential tower. The acquisition
is expected to complete before the end of March 2016. As at
31 December 2015, a refundable deposit of HK$116,266,000
was made for the acquisition.

On 5 February 2016, the Company announced its proposed
acquisition of land located in the Kapolei area, Honouliuli,
District of Ewa, Island of Oahu, City and County of Honolulu,
State of Hawaii, the U.S. at a consideration of
US$98,000,000.

32 M MR

ZEe0N2016F3/ 15 =%
REK o

33

(@)

HEEHE

R2016F1 258 & 2 7
EhEEHRUNEENEE
4,573,800,000 7T (A AR FH )
FREEAARBRRFETMK
BE1n B — IR IR 1) 2 B %
BEERERID B85 2R
8% B %% 17 5,380,884,353 % 4 A% A%
7 IR E RN2016E3 8118 5%
ﬁjzo

R2015F8 A58 * AARE MU
BETUREAYNz L REB
890,000,000 JT © % & Hb #E A %
BERRABGABAEBEREEKXR
1 o U BE 78 B3 7020164 3 A KX Al
R c R2015F 12 A31H » 25t
7% 5 W B8 X 1575 5 116,266,000 7T
ZAREZESE -

R2016F2 A5H » KA RS
W B3 7 1A = B B g 3R N 1B & L R
HEEEAREBERERHEREZ
+ 3 - (X {& 98,000,000 JT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

34 Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries 3 FENEATZES

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 are as R2015F12 31 B 2 EEME A A&
follows: BAR :
Particulars of Group’s
Place of operations/ issued/registered effective
incorporation capital interest
Name of subsidiaries ¥ M BT/ CEMER %M@ Principal activity
il PN XL i B B3 BREE TETEHR
(%)
China Oceanwide International Asset British Virgin Islands US$100 100 Holding of debt and equity
Management Limited (formerly knownas RBRZH S 1003 7T securities
“China Oceanwide Holdings Enterprises REBEBRREES
Limited”)

R BEBREEEEAR AR (AT
[ China Oceanwide Holdings Enterprises

Limited )
China Oceanwide International Capital Hong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Provision of management
Kong Limited (formerly known as “Mitsuda % /& 7 #10,0007C services
Corporation Limited”) - RIEEE RS
FZBEREREBERAR (RIEI=F
HEtARAF])
China Oceanwide International Capital British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 Holding of debt securities
Investments Management Limited (formerly 55 /8 & Z B & 100% 7T REEBES

known as “China Oceanwide Holdings

Investments Limited”)
FRBEREARREERER DA (R

[ China Oceanwide Holdings Investments

Limited )
China Oceanwide Power Co., Limited Hong Kong US$36,555,000 100 Investment holding and
HEZEENBRAE S 36,555,000 7T provision of loan financing
services
REZRRREERRE
MR

China Oceanwide Power Investment British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
| Limited KBRRHE 50,0003 7T REEZER

HZENREE—BRAA

China Oceanwide Property International Hong Kong HK$4,999,997 100 Investment holding and
Development Limited (formerly known as & /& ordinary shares and provision of management
“P & H Development Limited”) HK$3 non-voting services

HREFBERERARD R (AIHEHA deferred shares* REER R RMEE RS
tRERFRAF]) 75 # 4,999,997 7T

TREBAMABEIT
mIRE
B FERR AR *

China Oceanwide Property Sino Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding and
(formerly known as “China Oceanwide &/ 75 11,000,000 7T provision of management
Holdings Property Development Limited”) services

FZEXREARAE (R ZER REER KR E R RS
MEERAR A

China Oceanwide Real Estate Development  British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
I Limited REEXES 50,0003 7T REZR

RRZEHMEREE -BRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

(Continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 are as

follows: (Continued)

34 Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries

BT (&)

34 FEHMB LRI ZHE @

MN2015F12 A1 H 2 T EM B A Al

Particulars of Group’s
Place of operations/ issued/registered effective
incorporation capital interest
Name of subsidiaries ¥ M BT/ EEMER A% M@ Principal activity
(o) NCIER XL i B w15 ERERE TETEHR
(%)
China Oceanwide Real Estate Development  British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Ill Limited RERIES 50,000% 7T BRAER
HREMEREE=FRAA
China Oceanwide Real Estate Development British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
IV Limited RERTHS 50,0003 7T REER
HZEHMEREENERA
Grand Hover International Development Hong Kong HK$2 100  Property investment
Limited &S 2T MERE
BRERERFR A A
Jeanwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$_2 100  Property investment
EBERARAA B BT MERE
Oceanwide Plaza LLC us. N/A 100 Property development
wEBSAERRA E3e A iE A FERE
Oceanwide Real Estate Group (USA) Corp.  U.S. US$600,009 100  Investment holding
EBRREE (ZR) BHARA xB 600,000 7T BEER
Oceanwide Real Estate International British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
__ Investment Company Limited REBRZHS 50,0003 7T BEER
wBERBERRERRAA
Oceanwide Real Estate Investment HI Corp.  U.S. US$60 100  Investment holding
ERRRZEBTHEREAA xB O REER
Oceanwide Resort HI LLC us. US$500 100 Property development
ZBEBRERNERA R =35 500% 7T MEER
PT. Banyuasin Power Energy Indonesia RP$150,000,000,000 85 Operation of power plant
ENfe 150,000,000,000 2EER
EE&
PT. Mabar Elektrindo Indonesia RP$210,000,000,000 60 Operation of power plant
e 210,000,000,000 %@i&ﬁ
BERE
# Shanghai Gang Lu Real Estate PRC US$16,000,000 88  Property investment
Development Co., Ltd. R registered capital MEKRE
bEREERMEREERAA 16,000,000 7
RV
# Shanghai Pu Gang Real Estate PRC US$7,000,000 80  Property investment
Development Co., Ltd. A registered capital MERE
LEREFHEREARAF 7,000,000% 7T
A& AR
g Sino-foreign equity joint ventures # RINE BB

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or

receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
respective companies or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

&mﬁé}ﬁkﬂﬁ{’“’ﬁ’“tﬂ%%ﬁxﬁﬁ

CVEREREEEQRERNRRAE
E’Jiﬁ%ﬂ FHFERGHIRR  TEES
HEEMBEDE °

PZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

35 Statement of Financial Position and 35 RAFMERRRRFE
Reserve Movement of the Company = &)
Statement of financial position of the NN T B AR R
Company
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRZEKE 660,645 659,865
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK BT /B A R FOE 1,621,076 —
2,281,721 659,865
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 3,028,194 877,400
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables £ & - 8 1 7% 18 K2 £ b g U
HRIE 3,436 3,329
Cash and cash equivalents B RESZEY 259,120 2,113,879
3,290,750 2,994,608
Total assets EEHT 5,572,471 3,654,473
EQUITY i
Equity e
Share capital B& X 1,076,177 896,814
Reserves 1 4,477,023 2,751,808
Total equity A 5,553,200 3,648,622
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

35 Statement of Financial Position and 35 RAFMBERRRRFE
Reserve Movement of the Company B H @
(Continued)
Statement of financial position of the AA A B EARR T @)

Company (Continued)

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT ok -
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals B e 3B & EETIE B 5,071
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE 15 BT BB 2 B 508 780
Total liabilities EEAE 19,271 5,851
Total equity and liabilities EnRkEEHEE 5,572,471 3,654,473
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved N A A B AR S 2R T3 R 201643 A 15
by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2016 and was signed on its HEESSHETHUTRERES -
behalf.
HAN Xiaosheng LIU Guosheng
BRE4L 218 F
Chairman Director
== EF

misERaRAT  20155% 103



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

35 Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

Reserve of the Company

35 &AM #&ARR R K HE
28 m)

AR wfEE

Capital ~ Share-based
Share redemption compensation Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus profits Total
E4XHE R 47 3k B
R4 EE o] ffE  BABRH REAE ok
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  AETR BETT A%Tr  A¥Tr  B%Tn
At 1 January 2015 R2015%E1 18 2,612,756 2,751,808
Profit for the year FERFIHE = 189,630
Write back of unclaimed dividend & 4BER & & 2 # 5] - 23
Issue of shares BIRG 1,535,562 1,535,562
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31 A 4,148,318 323,691 4,477,023
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 /18 2,612,756 3,558 201 1,456 2,028,665 4,646,636
Profit for the year FRFIHE = - - - 96,093 96,093
Write back of unclaimed dividend & %8 ER A% S 2 & [a] - - - - 6 6
Share option lapsed BRK B R = = (201) - 201 -
2013 final dividend paid B 2013 EARH
&S = = - - (197,299 (197,299)
2014 interim dividend paid Bf2014F E 1
%8 — — — —  (1,793,628) (1,793,628)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 B31H 2,612,756 3,558 — 1,456 134,038 2,751,808

The application of share premium account is governed by section
40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of subsidiaries when
they were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of
the Company’s share capital issued for the acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt %5 3R 2% B = (AR

35 Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

36

Reserve of the Company (Continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(@)

)

the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company was
HK$325,147,000 (2014: HK$135,494,000).

Benefits and Interests of Directors

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

The remuneration of each of the directors and chief executive
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out in Note 13(a).

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits for the year (2014: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
does not pay consideration to third parties for making
available directors’ service (2014: Nil).

35

36

ARAHBHERRARRREE
28 m)

biN/NIETR RN )

REABRE(-AN-FREEI(E
ER])  BMABBAHDIIKTRER - R
- REETINERATTIEEBAR
HRE LRI AREFIIEL DK

(@) A B RIS B B AR A e
EHNEHZEE X

(b) R AVEE 2 A BB & E i
PR A BB BT RAR 1 3
B2 @ -

MR2015F12 8318 » Al Dk F AR
A [% 3 B 7% 18 42 %8 & 78 15 325,147,000
7T (2014 £ : 7 #135,494,0007T) ©

EEREAMNRA &S
(a) EERESTHRAEME

AARISEENRSTHRAER
H E2015F 128318 I F E ~
= B 3 P BT =E 13(a) ©

(b) EFRAKEBRNRBEREF

BT =0 F A USRI
{E fa 3R PR 43 ) 3% B BB AR A (2014
FE) -

RERHKEZRB DS
=AxfzRE

NEZE2015F12 A31 B IEFE -
AARYERERBEESRER
F=FEAFREQ014F : 8]) -

(c)

mTERERAT 201568 105



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 3R 2% B = (AR

36 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and

(e)

other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entitles with such directors

As at 31 December 2015, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2014: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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36 EER/AMERE @

(e)

ERUNESE XESE
HzZEREESEHH
BErvEBRBREmAZE
ROEERREMRS
ZER

R2015%F 12 A31H @ # & I &
= XEEEFIZEEREES
EHEZERBAY=AZEN
EERKE MR G L HE(2014
F M)

EERNXRZ RS
W2 EKXF =

R20154F 201412 A31H 3¢
® B £2015F k2014412 A 31
HItEEREMER MEFE
RARIFFI L EAAREBE XK E
RAAREEEEIHAEREY#
BEEANZZEAR S  TH R
B4 -



Results

Revenue (Note 5, 28)

ES

U A (Bf7E5 - 28)

Operating profit # s FE
Finance costs & kA
Profit before tax B 5% B A E
Income tax expense  Fr 5 5 78 B 5%
Profit for the year F A
Attributable to: AT FEAS -
Non-controlling JEVE AR M =
interests
Shareholders of ZAN/NE] | =1
the Company
Assets and liabilities EE R & &
Total assets BERTE
Total liabilities BERE
Net assets BEEFE

2015
HK$’000
BETT

189,208

152,888

152,888
(22,212)

130,676

8,166

122,510

130,676

8,734,914
(2,343,710)

6,391,204

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFUBHRE

Restated Restated Restated Restated
4R E 5 K& K& K&
2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ok BT T BT T BT T
171,008 192,361 177,588 163,056
117,411 199,683 208,847 122,160
— — (762) (1,788)
117,411 199,683 208,085 120,372
(22,966) (16,642) (16,480) (22,011)
94,445 183,041 191,605 98,361
8,637 8,295 9,445 7,359
85,808 174,746 182,160 91,002
94,445 183,041 191,605 98,361
6,757,587 6,552,711 6,612,192 6,736,410
(528,911) (297,195) (836,763) (453,749)
6,228,676 6,255,516 6,275,429 6,282,661
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties held by the Group which have been
completed for existing use or under development at 31 December 2015

are as follows:

R2015F12 A31H  "EBFHED &
BRI EAERZEZ EEWEBHD
T

A. Investment properties A REWEE
Gross floor Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type area interest
=g ih B H Az EEMEE EiEEsE
(sq.m)
(FF 75 K)
Completed =354
1. Various units on levels 1-2, 5-7, The land use term of the Commercial 9,800 80%
11, 15, 16, 20 & 21 and the property is 50 years from =l (exclude
whole of levels 3, 4, 14, 19, 19 November 1992 to car park)
22 & 23, and 50 car parking 18 November 2042 (fFEIHERAN)
spaces in the basement,
Harbour Ring Huang Pu
Centre, No. 98 Luhe Road,
Huangpu District, Shanghai,
China.
REEEmERREASES R ZMETHERAEFAR
o98SREEE AR O 1-2 504 * FR19924F 11 A19
5-7 111516 20 Kz 21 HZE204211 H18H
EZESEA - LAKS: 4
1419 22R23ERE -
K T = B 5 50 B AL o
2. Various units on levels 4-6, 9-14, The land use term of the Commercial 26,378 88%
17-18, 23-24 & 28 and the property is 50 years from = A (exclude
whole of levels 2 & 3 and 152 1 August 1993 to 31 July car park)
car parking spaces in the 2043 (FEHERIN
basement, Harbour Ring
Plaza, No. 18 Xizang Zhong
Road, Huangpu District,
Shanghai, China.
FEEETEERARTRE ZVEIMEREFHA

1857 B FEE 5 4-6 - 9-14 -
17-18 ~ 23-24 [ 2812 % ([
B AN2KRIERE

Ky = EIH152E B AL ©

504 - H1993%8 H1H
Z2043%7 A31H
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
TEWRER (FH)

A. Investment properties (Continued) A. REYZm

Gross floor Attributable

Name/Location Lease expiry Type area interest
=LV 1) ih 32 & HA A& EEER PEAL =
(sq.m)
(F75)
3. Level 29 in Harbour Ring Plaza, The land use term of the Commercial 1,269 80%
No. 18 Xizang Zhong Road, property is 50 years from ]
Huangpu District, Shanghai, 1 August 1993 to 31 July
China. 2043
FEEETEREARTR ZMELHEAEFTHA
18 5% 7 f £ 15 2042 - 504F - fH199348 A1 8
204357 H31H
4. Levels 31 and 32 in Harbour The land use term of the Commercial 1,629 100%
Ring Plaza, No. 18 Xizang property is 50 years from & A
Zhong Road, Huangpu 1 August 1993 to 31 July
District, Shanghai, China. 2043

FELESTERRARTE ZUXTHEREFHS
185578 FE 35 31 ;3248 - 504 * ;1199381 H
E2043%7H31H

Under development 1E 7£ B9 8
5. 1101 South Flower Street, Freehold land with no expiry ~ Commercial 41,800 100%
Los Angeles, the U.S. date (Eha] (exclude
EERCBBLE0R  AXEHLH ®IHA car park
(FEIHERIN)
B. Other properties
B. Hfb¥2
Gross floor Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type area interest
=F Ve b 22 4F Hj AR EEEE Eih s
(sq.m)
(F75%)
Unit 1007 on level 10 in Harbour The land use term of the Commercial 229 88%
Ring Plaza, No. 18 Xizang Zhong property is 50 years from w
Road, Huangpu District, 1 August 1993 to 31 July
Shanghai, China. 2043
FEESTEHRABTRKIS ZWELHMEREFHA
5% 78 [ FE 35 1042 1007 28 fiz 504 * ;31998348 A1 H

2£2043F7H31H
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
TEYRER (H)

C. Properties under development projects C. Y1 H

Expected
completion Gross floor Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type date area interest
=1 i B2 FH A FEEF =R B H EEEE B
(sg.m)
(F 75 5)
1101 South Flower Street,  Freehold land with  Commercial/ 2018 96,449 100%
Los Angeles, the U.S. no expiry date Residential (exclude
RE R REACH KAEELY .  EAEE car park)
11015% 5] 51 (BEEBBHI)
Ko Olina Parcels Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet 92,292 100%
54B, 54C and 55, with no expiry Residential determined
Honouliuli date RE
District of Ewa KAERELH - BR/EE
City and County of HEE|H R
Honolulu, State of
Hawaii, the U.S.

ETHERRMER LT
ZEERANNE EKo
Olina 1= #1548 + 54C &
515
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LISTING INFORMATION
EtmER

PUBLIC FLOAT CAPITALISATION

RBEEFERTE

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
B35 B

REGISTERED OFFICE
AU

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS
BAREERTEEXME

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR
BRERMBFZCHAE

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR
EREROBFERIE

CORPORATE INFORMATION
DAEM

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
R RE

Place of Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
T B BEBMERSFARRA R

Stock Code: 715
&% 2 5%

As at 31 December 2015:

R2015F 12318 :

approximately HK$4,353 million, representing approximately 38.90% of the issued
share capital of the Company

A R ABEA3B3EIT - (B AR E B ETIRAN438.90%

15 March 2016
20163 H15H

20-24 May 2016
201645 H20H £24 H

2015 Annual Results Announcement
N2016F 2 FHE

Closure of Registers of Members
TERMHBAFER

Annual General Meeting 24 May 2016
BRERBFRE 201645 A 24 H
2016 Interim Results Announcement August 2016
N2016F P R E 201648 A

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

64th Floor, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong
EERTEEB 1R RAE4E

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
BEEPREHFZLZERAA

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BEBEFERKNEFR183

AP LATEITI2-1716E

Corporate press releases, financial reports and other investor information of the

Company are available at the website of the Company
RRRNARFNER VBBRERHEMKREEEATHN AR AL

hzmpERAs 201585 | /1



INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)
IRER & ()

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT  Please direct enquiries to:
BREZBRRBEZA MEEHR B
Chairman
e
64th Floor, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong
BALEBI1 AR AE641E
Telephone & &% : +852 3959 5500
Facsimile{@ & : +852 3585 8496

WEBSITE ADDRESS www.oceanwide.hk
#33E
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